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Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Contingent upon Fiscal Committee and Govemor and Council approval of the department
wide transfer, authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Health Equity,
to amend an existing contract with Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (VC#222201), Concord,
NH, which was a result of a competitive procurement, to provide language and communication
access services to the Department, by exercising a contract renewal option, by increasing the
price limitation by $1,450,000 from $3,885,289 to $5,335,289 and by extending the completion
date from June 30, 2025 to June 30, 2026, effective upon Govemor and Council approval.
35.4% Federal Funds. 64.45% General Funds. 0.15% Other Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 16. 2021, item #8,
amended on March 9, 2022, item #9, and most recently amended with Governor and Council
approval on June 12, 2024, item #7A.

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2025 and are anticipated to be available in State
Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and
encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-090-901010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS DEPT OF HHS; PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION, BUREAU OF POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE PH COVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 074-500589 Grants for

Public Asst

and Relief

90577190 $550,000 $0 $550,000

Subtotal $550,000 $0 $550,000

05-95-95-950010-72080000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVC.

HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE. OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER. MINORITY HLTH/

REFUGEE AFFAIRS
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State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

X^armnX

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731 Contracts for

■Prog Svc
Various : ■^$811,763 ^  $0 $811,763

2023 102-500731 Contracts for
Prog Svc

Various ; 4831,763 $0 $81i;763

2024 102-500731 Contracts for"
Prog Svc

• Various $811,763 $0 $811,763

2025 102-500731 Contracts for
Prog Svc

Various . $900,000 $500,000 $1,400,000

2026 102-500731 Contracts for
Prog Svc,

Various $0i
I

$900,000 $900,000

Subtotal $3,335,289 $1,400,000 $4,735,289

05-95-95-950010-50000000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVC
HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE. OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, COMMISSIONER'S
OFFICE

State
Fiscal
Year

Class /
Account Class Title

Job
Number

Current
Budget

increased
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised
Budget

2025 102-500731 Contracts for
Prog Svc

Various $0 .  $50,000 $50,000

Subtotal $0 $50,000 $50,000
Total $3,885,289 $1,450,000 $5,335,289

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to exercise^an available contract renewal option to continue
language and communication access services to the Department. The Contractor's services
include communication access services for individuals who are deaf, have hearing loss, are blind,
have low vision, have speech impairments, do not speak English and/or have limited English
proficiency. '

Approximately 17,260 Department staff and clients will receive services in SFY26.
The Contractor will continue to provide translation services.for written documents, services

and maintenance of technology to support on-demand video remote interpreting and over-the
phone interpreting to Department staff and recipients of Department services. The services
provided by the Contractor enables the Department to remain in compliance with federal and state
laws and regulations pertaining to Civil Rights and Americans with Disabilities.

The Department will continue to monitor services by ensuring communication access
needs are met by clients and the Department staff.
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As referenced in Exhibit A of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to three (3) additional years, contingent xipon satisfactory delivery of
seivices, available funding, agreement of the parties and Govemor and Council approval. The
Department is exercising its option to renew sen/ices:for?pne (1),of!the'two,(2) years available.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, individuals who require
communication access services would not be ableTo.effectively .access'Department services.
Additionally, a lack of.communication access services :in place violates federal civil rights laws,
which-require that communication assistance services be provided for individuals who need it.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: Federal Funds 35.4%, General Funds 64.45%, and Other Funds 0.15%

Respectfully submitted,

^ \ Lori A. Weaver
'vAJt^Commissioner

7%e Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazcn Dr., Concord,"NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1^00-735-2964

nh.gov/doit
5

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

•.jM7irch2],-2025

Lori A. Weaver, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services

Stale of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Weaver:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract amendment with Ascentria Community

Services, Inc., as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2021-072C.

The purpose of this request is to provide language and communication access services to
-  : the Department of Health and Human Sei*vices.

The Total Price Limitation shall increase by $1,450,000 for a New Total Price Limitation
of $5,335,289, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2026.

, A copy of this letter must aceompany the Department of Health and Hurnan Ser\'ices' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/jd
DoIT #202I-072C

cc: Ken Gagne, IT Manager, DoIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Han)pshire's Tomorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and tHuman Services

Amendments

This Amendment to the Communication Access Services contract is by and between the State of New.
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services'.("State" or "Department") and Ascentria
Community Services,- Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 16, 2021 (Item #8), as amended on March 9;2D22 '(Item #9), and as amended on June 12, 2024
(Item #7A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemoriand Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and.set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions,.Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2026

2. Form P-37, General. Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,335,289

3. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment#2, Scope of Services; Section 1.1.6., to read:

1.1.6. Vital document translation.

4. Modify Exhibit 8-Amendment #2, Scope of Services; Section 1.3.1., to read:

1.3.1. Bureau of Adult and Aging Services of Division for Children, Youth and Families protective
cases. ■ • . •

5. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #2, Scope of Services; Section 1.3.1., through Section 1.3.8., to
. read: ' . , - . '

1.3.1. Bureau of Elderly and Adult and Aging Services or Division for.Children, Youth and Families
protective.

1.3.2. New Hampshire Hospital patients.

1.3.3. Glencliff home residents.

.1.3.4. Public Health Emergencies.

1.3.5. DHHS public broadcasts and emergency communications.

1.3.6. District Offices.

1.3.7. John H. Sununu Youth Services Center.

1.3.8. Department Staff in need of accommodations to perform their duties.

6. Modify Exhibit B-Amendment #2, Scope of Services; by adding Section 1.4.1.6., to read:

.  1.4.1.6. DHHS sponsored public forums, meetings, conferences.

7. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #2, Scope of Services; Section 1.4.2., to read:

1.4.2. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the Department to ensure compliance with
the federal Civil Rights Laws Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964, Americans with Disability Acts of
1990, Section 504 Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 1557 of Affordable Care Act. and New

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. A-S-1.3 . Contractor Initials

Initial

RFP-2022-OCOM-O:i-COMMU-O1-A03 Page 1 of 5 '
v7.12.23 v'' - . . •
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Hampshire RSA: 521-A,and 354-A.

8. Modify Exhibit B-Amendment #2, Scope of Services; Section1.4.3.3., to read:

1.4.3.3. Communicate any inability toi accommodate ̂the request as soon as possible to the
requesting individual and the Department's Communication Access Administrator, and provide
other options to meet the requestor's :need, iincludins ah alternative date for the service or a
different modality of providing the service.

9. Modify Exhibit B-Amendment #2. Scope of Services;Sfiction 11:8.2., to read:

1.8.2. If an interpretation assignmentds.canceiled.lesslhan^orty-eight (48) hours in advance, the
■ entire block of time that was scheduled'will be charged, including travel time. Applicable to
scheduled VRI.

10. Modify Exhibit B-Amendment #2, Scope of Services; Section'1;9.1.. to read:

1.9.1. The Contractor shall provide qualified spoken: language interpreting staff who:

11. Modify Exhibit B-Amendment #2. Scope of Services; by adding Section 1.9.2.. to read;

1.9.2. The Contractor shall provide qualified sign language interpreting staff who are licensed by
the NH ASL Interpreter Licensure Board and approved-under the NH Department of Education
(DOE), under RSA 326-1.

12. Modify Exhibit B-Amendment #2, Scope of Services: Section 1.9.3., through Section 1.9.4. 3.,-to
read:

1.9.3. The Contractor shall ensure interpreters sign confidentiality agreement, as requested by
■  the Department on an annual basis and submit to the Department.

1.9.4. The Contractor shall ensure each interpreter keeps detailed records of all communication
assistance services provided on behalf of the Department for quality assurance and utilization

■■ review. The Contractor shall ensure the following information is tracked:

,1.9.4.1. Appointment start and end time.

1.9.4.2. Interpreter's performance and,appointment history.

.  1.9.4.3. Confirmation for payment, *

13. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #2, Scope of Services; Section 3.5.2.6., to read:-

3.5.2.6. The following is the anticipated allocation of the total of one hundred and three (103)
Block-scheduled hours per week for the period July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2026, across multiple
locations:

Manchester DO Southern DO Concord DO Thayer OHE

Spanish 35 hours 35 hours N/A

Swahili/Kirundi/

Kinyarwanda

10 hours N/A 10 hours

Nepali 3 hours
•

American Sign
Language

10 hours

14. Modify Exhibit B-Amendment #2, Scope of Services; Section 3.6.1.1., through Section 3.6.1.1.5.,
to read:

3.6.1.1. Vital Documents as defined by the Department.

Ascentrla Community'Services, Inc. A-S-1.3

' RFP-2022-OCOM-01-COMMU-01-A03
^7.12.23 .

Page 2 of 5

. Contractor lnitials_

p„,3/31/2025"

(nitli



Docusign Envelope ID: 38A2770F-F2F9-4585-B6D5-CCB799E72AD8

3.6.1.1.1. Forms.

. ■ 3.6.1.1.2. Brochures.

3.6.1.1.3. Documents as requested, from English to other languages (including Braille).

3.6.1.1.4. Eligibility materials submitted by applicants and clients.

■  . 3.6.1.1.5. In the event of cancelation by the'Department, the.Contractor shall charge only
for work that has already been completed.

15. Modify Exhibit 8 - Amendment #2, Scope of Services; Section 7.1.1.1.[ to read:'

7.1.1.1. A name search of the Department's Bureau of Adult and Aging Services (BAAS) State
Registry, pursuant to RSA 161-F:49, with results indicating no evidence of behavior that could
endanger individuals served under this Agreement; and

."16. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1. to read:

1.1. 35.4% Federal Funds from various sources.

^  ' 1.2. 64.45% General Funds.

1.3. .15% Other Funds. .

17. Modify Exhibit C Payment Terms, Section 3 to read:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual -expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be In accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-10, Budget Sheet - Amendment #3.

18. Modify Exhibit C-7, Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, by replacing it In its entirety with Exhibit C-7,
Budget Sheet - Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

,  19.-Mbdify Exhibit C-8, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing It in its entirety with,Exhibit C-8,
Budget'Sheet-Amendment #2, which'is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

20. Add Exhibit C-9, Budget Sheet - Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
•  reference herein.

. 21. Add Exhibit C-10, Budget Sheet - Amendment #3. which Is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Asc^ntria Community Services, inc.

RFP-2022-OCQM-01-COMMU-01-A03
v7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 3 of 5

• Contractor Initials

■ Date3/31/2025

r-MtU
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment
remain in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council
approval.

-IN..WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set theirihands as of;the date written below,

State ofNew. Hampshire !
-  ; Department iOf Health and Human Services

4/1/2025'*

Date

-Signed by:

-Hampton

Title: Director, office of Health Equity

3/31/2025

Date

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.
-Signed by:

A477AeO0G431470... m
Name:"'

Title: Presi dent/CEO

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

RFP-2022-OCOM-01-COMMU-01-A03

V.-7'12.23 ' '

A-S-1.3

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office,'is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-Oo^Signad by:

4/11/2025

^OocuSlgned by:

Date

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved'by ̂he Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ' (date of meeting) •

.  OFFICE OF THE'SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

•  Title:

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. A-S-1.3

RFP-2022-OCOM-01-COMMU-01-A03 - Page 5,of 5
v.7:ll23 •
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3/31/2025

. r
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY

SERVICES, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New^Hampshire on June 13, 2011. 1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as'

far as this ofTicc is concerned.

Business ID: 652197

Certificate Number: 0006674707

O'^ IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 23rd day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Sccrctar>' of State



Filing History © Back to Home (/online)

Business Name .

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

.Business ID

Filing# Filing Date Effective Date ' Filing Type Annual Report Year

0005032160 10/22/2020 10/22/2020 Nonprofit Report 2020

0004766972 01/16/2020 01/16/2020 Annual Report Reminder ' n/a

0003053719' 02/27/2015" 02/27/2015 Annual Report 2015

0002849481 09/15/2014 09/15/2014 Amendment N/A

0002849480 09/23/2013 09/23/2013 Agent Change/Resign N/A

0002849479 07/08/2011 07/08/2011 ■ Amendment N/A -

0002849478 06/29/20,11 06/29/2011 Survivor N/A

0002849477 06/13/2011 06/13/2011- Business Formation N/A

Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 8 of 8

Back

NH Department of State, 107 North Main St. Room 204, Concord, NH 03301 -- Contact Us

f/oniine/Home/ContactUS)

O 2022 State of New Hampshire.
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•sp. '3rr •

AscenJnS I  1i, SlnQttuc^cS.treet MA' OlSO.Si

'  L9£C®n.f'li3;or^ I '774.243:3100' I ?!hfp@ilSi6^!?l3lQ?9

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Nicholas Sousa. Corporate Clerk / Secretary. hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected officer of Ascentria Community Services. Inc..

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called and

held on June 25. 2024 . at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That President Angela Bovili is duly authorized on behalf of Ascentria Community Services. Inc. to

enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or

departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other

instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in their judgment be

desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and

effect as of the date of the contract/contract arnendment to which this certificate is attached.

This authority remaihs valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I

further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as

evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they,

have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority

of any listed individual to bind the corporation" in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all

such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 3/19/2025 Signature of Elected Officer:

Name; Nicholas Sousa

Title: Assistant Corporate Clerk/Secretary
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ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

10/31/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. "

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER , ■ * ' •

Brown S Brown Insurance Services, Inc.

980 Washington St., Suite 325 ,

Dedham MA 02026

Janet Walker

PHONE FAX
(WC No Exil- (WC.Nol:

Janet.Walker6bbrown.com

INSURER(S1 AFFORDING COVERAGE NA1C «

INSURER A: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Compar 18058

INSURED

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

11 Shattuck St.

Worcester MA 01605

INSURERS: Zurich American Insurance Company of 11 27855

INSURER C :

INSURER O :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-25 GL Auto UMB WC Prof REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL 3UBR
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYYl

POLICY EXP
(MM/OOftYYYl LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GE'lERAL LIABILITY

E  1 X 1 OCCUR
PUPK26090X2-020 10/1/2024 10/1/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE j  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAD
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PRFMISF.S (Fa ocoHTancal

S  100,000

MED EXP (Any ona parion) $  25,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY S  1,000,000

6EN-LAG6RE<3ATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERALAGGREGATE s  .3,000,000

• X POUCY 1 1 JE^ 1 1 LOC
OTHER;

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG s  3,000,000

s

A

AUT

X

OMOBILE LIABOJTY

ANYAUTO

PHPK2609014-020 10/1/2024 10/1/2025

C(3MBINED SINGLE UMIT S  1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per paraon)

ALLOWNEO ■

AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Par accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par acfjdanti

i

A

X UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS LIAB'

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHimae3B42-020 ' 10/1/2024 10/1/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE i  10.000.000

AGGREGATE S  10,000,000

DED RETENTION S " t  .

B

WOFKERS COMPENSATION

N/A

HC 1469672 - 01 12/1/2024 12/1/2025

Y PER OTH-
* STATUTE ER

ANY PRCPRIETOWPARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory In HH) ' '
II yat. dMtfba uridar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bakmr

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $  1.000.000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE S  1.000.000

E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT S  1,000.000

!a Profasfionsl Liability PKPK2609012-020

RatcoaetLva Data: 1/1/2004

10/1/2024 10/1/2025 Eacti Occutrenca $1,000,000

Agoragaia ; $3,000,000

DESC

Evi

RIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramarfcs Sehadula, may ba attachad K mera apaca It raqulrad)

dence of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

-  NH Department of Health and Human Service
129 Pleasant Street

•Concord, NH 03301

1  ' ' - ■ - •

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

Owen Callagh'an/MCROSB

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

INS025 (201401)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Docusign Envelope ID: 38A2770F-F2F9-4585-B6O5-CCB799E72AD8

Ascehtria

COm;nnMnity ̂ :rVices
A. member ;of Asceritria'Gare Alliance:

Mission Statement:.

We are called to strengthen coniniuniiies by empowering people to respond to life's challenges.

Vision statement:

We envision thriving communities where everyone has the opportunity to achieve theirfull

potential regardless o f background or disadvantage. We become recognized leaders for

innovative community services. Together with our partners, M'e in.spire people to help one

another reach beyond their current circumstances and realize new possibilities.

jE m p'o weri h g ■ Pep pfex St re ng th ̂

A

- ir* .
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS*vREPORT

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts ^

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Organizations), which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements of activities,
changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, |n all material
respects, the financial position of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary, as of June 30,
2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements of activities, changes in its net assets,
functional expenses and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described In the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Ascentria Community Services,
Inc. and Subsidiary and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance virith the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial staten>ents, in 2023 the Organizations adopted new accounting
guidance for leases. The guidance requires lessees to recognize a right-of-use asset and
corresponding liability for all operating and finance leases with lease terms greater than one year. Our
opinion is not modifi^ with respect to this matter.

CLA (DitconLAriOiiAOen UP) ij 4n independent network merriber of ClA G(oUd.'Sce CtAttebal.com/rlhdelfner..-
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, inc. and Subsidiary

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statemonts
Management is responsible for the preparation -and ifair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design. Implementation, and imaintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered In the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the
date the consolidated financial statements are available to t>e issued.

Auditors'Responslbilftfes for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but Is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards v\rill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
Internal control. Misstatements are considered material If there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the consolidated financial statements..

In performing an audit In accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professiohar judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstance's, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's Internal

■ control. Accordingly, no such opinion Is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Ascentria Community Sen/Ices, Inc. and Subsidiary's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit

(2)



Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opmionion'the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The supporting Information shown on page 27 is. presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Maine Uniform Accounting and Auditing Practices for Community Agencies
(MAAP) and is not a required part the consolidated financial'statements. The schedule of expenditures
of federal awards, as requir^ by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, end Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Is also
presented for purposes of additional analysis and Is not a required part of the basic consolidated
financial statements. The supporting information required by MAAP and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures. Including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the Information is fairly stated, in all mateiial respects, In relation to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards "

in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 5, 2024, on our consideration of Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Inc. internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment
Auditing Standards In considering Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Quincy, Massachusetts
February 5, 2024

■(3):



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

ASSETS

2023 2022

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable. Net of Estimated Uncollectible Accounts
Prepaid Expenses
Vehicle Inventory

Total Current Assets

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest In Net Assets of Related Party

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land

Building
Building Improvements
Leasehold Improvements

Furniture and Equipment
Vehicles

Equipment Held Under Capital Lease
Computer Equipment and Software

Total

Less; Accumulated Depreciation '
Total Property and Equipment

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

OTHER ASSETS

Deposits
Right-of-Use Assets • Operating
Righl^of-Use Assets - Finance

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

1,322.647
6.525,898
123,912
183.815

10,156,270

2.128,958

45,314

85,798
1,094,418
353,467

246,311
546,096

147.017

2.518,421
1.786.772

731,649

4,844,990

85,885
"357.966
101.735

545.586

2,025,602

7,645,413
77,315
110.171

9,858,501

2,677,292

45,314
85,798

1,082,718
353,467

246,311
459,810
499,374
147.017

2,919,809
2.161.956

757,853

3,305,910

88,885

88.885

S  18.407.453. $ .16.688.441

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(4)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT UABILITIES

Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Deferred Revenue

Due to State of Maine

Lease Liabilities • Operating. Current Portion
■  Lease Liabilities - Finance. Current Portion

Total Current Liabilities

2023 2022

$  11.468 $  387,028

1.568.879 347.347

1.701,602 1,945,929

2.297,411 3,406.681
. 400.035

319,795 -

43.363 -

5,942,518 6.487.020

LONG-TERM DEBT, Net of Current Maturities 357,609 368.864

OTHER LONG-TERM UABIUTIES
Lease Liabilities - Operating. Net of Current Maturities
Lease Liabilities - Finance. Net of Current Maturities

Total Liabilities

24.808
59.494

6.384.429 6.855.884

NET ASSETS -
Without Donor Restrictions
With Donor Restrictions

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

9,803,241
2.219.783

12.023.024

7.064.981
2.767.576

9.832.557

$  18.407.453 S 16.688.441

See accompanying Notes to Consoliddtod Financial Stataments.
•  (5)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNrTY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

NET ASSET REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTION
Grant and Contract Revenue

.  Program Service Revenue
Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue
Donated Vehicles .
In-Kind Donations

Other Income

Net Assets Released from Restrictions Used for Operations
Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
OccuparKy Costs
Operating Supplies and Expenses
Professional Fees
Garage Expenses
Donated Vehicle Expenses
Client Support Expenses
Translation Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance
Travel Expenses _
Educational Events and Meetings
Management Fees
Taxes

Recruitment Advertising
Advertising
Licenses and Fees •

Insurance

Interest

Bad Debt Expenses
Depreciation and Amortization

Total Expenses

OPERATING GAIN

NONOPERATING ACTIVITY
Gain on Forgiveness of Debt and Accrued Interest

Total Nonoperating Activity

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR
RESTRICTIONS

2023 2022

$ 37,373.688 $ 36,431,238
5.389.567 4,573.932
2,190.415 1,749,085
2,198,508 2,099,794

47,006 36,118
268,665 136,435
894.367

48,362,216 45,026,602

22,537.703 " 20,143,580
4,912,418 4,442,769
1,768,191 •  1.977,762
415.412 494,373

3,201,591 3,119.062
560,375 581,563
865,540 710,400

3,309,534 3;483,488
685,530 669.554
474.127 431.268
905,440 • 840,137
56,259 40,913

4,456,634 4,513,788
433.488 542,826

5,485 1,968
236,657 216,701

5,513 5,045
299,695 259,805
27,107 39,525

294,462 383,195
172.795 130.378

45.623.956 43.028.100

2,738,260 .  1,998,502.

3.553.766

3.553.766

5.552.268

Sm accompanying Notes to Consdidatod Financial Statements.

■  (6) .



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEARS ENDED JUNE SO, 2023 AND 2022

BALANCE-JUNE 30,2021

Increase in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets
of Related Party

Change in Net Assets

BALANCE - JUNE 30/2022

'  Increase In Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets '
of Related Party

Release from Restrictions

Change in Net Assets

BALANCE-JUNE 30.2023

iWithoutiDonor

;  Restriction

5.552.268

7,064.981

2.738.280

'With Donor

Restriction

i$ 1,512,713 '$• 1.087,291

t  ( 5,552,268 . -

1.680.285

2.738.260

1.680.285

2,767.576

346,574

f894.367)

f547:793)

Total

$ 2,600,004

5.552.268

1.680.285

7.231553

9,832,557

2,738.260

, 346.574

f894.367)

2.190.467

S 9.803.241 S- 2.219.783 ■ S 12.023.024

See eccompsnying Notes to Consoliddted Finenclsl Sfafemente..
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.
CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.
CONSOUDATEO STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Ocw»incyC«<«

Op,ndna«iW'"«^g^"""
ProMltMlFtH
om»* M VMCM e««mM
OonMVaNMB^Mm
CitMl«p^e99«tuu
TtwnWME^wMM

n«^wi4IMnUn*nM

TWUltl^MH* -
tflueHWMl ewnlt t>t M««tnoi
UantOMiwMFM*
TccM
RtcnAM^
AAoRldno
UeMwnaMFMs

CmMW F«W . '
ktmnnU

T«UIMMD*fracMM

MRVdKlon «id AfMrtltMen

TtWFiMMAflElVMMt

TrtMpcrUaan
Vtwvlet

I m.isi
213.TM

113.230

t«.B4S

118412
ir»478

310400

447

374U
22).4U

1.044

0.741

a.e»o

U00433

82.400

PnOM•W<4C88

011818Hf
m4

CM4

anOFarty
P»ar8fi»i B8(^6M

SemewFcf

Mm AiMileon*

TOM

Pmoran

3 8.781.77?
1.480.480
873423

144443

4P437

3.ir

8 X834.848
018.338

80X033

74413

1.3S34M

8  8.781.847

1.17X143
48404

33418

3 X831.373
171.833

827.111

108.128

1.137411

8 20.082408
4.4314*8
1.78X173

3«X4I*

34*4,114

801.803

710400

32423

18.137

40,338
200403

0.733

34X048
4.888

31.7(3
138.488

14403

3.003

8X801

.23434

3.370

3400,823
048,408

183.188
248.801

14.404

3.4*2.441

0684*4

41X3*4

•34.727

38.874

331417
232

231

1433

10.878

181

842428

1.808

100 X870 238 1481 4448

00,100 40,147 47,87« 67,887 238448

1.838 370418 38X188

0421443 ' 8433.414 7.137438 1X111.038 37433483

1.000 TS410 1.000 136478

Bu>wi«na«4H844

lil«W04nNni

iftao*c^«i Funara»ir»B

•1,111
11.4*4

230.7**

113487

•4.0U

1447

18.004

8.410

1430

4.ft18.7*»

2N.701

1400

4.780

30.828

0484.730

T«Ul

^8#£4e4«^_^

8  Ol.ltl
11,484

220.700
11X887

84.048

1.047

1X804

8,410

1438

4.813.718

21X701

1400

4.780

38.U5

8404.730

T«ttl

8 20.143.880
4,443.780
1.8n.783
484473

Xtll483
881483

710.400
3.443,4U

088484

.  431400

040,137

40,013
4.813.788

842.020

1.888

31X701

X048

238.803

38.833

383.183

43.887;723

130.378

j^SiJUL

Sm •ceonvofl)*V No<w to ConooUdtfod FlrMKi$f StMtvimt*.
..W



ASCENTRIA COMMUNltY SERVICES. INC
CONSOUDATEp STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In Net Assets
Adjustments to Reconcile Chapge in Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided by Operating ActlviUes-
Depreciation •
Amortization of Financing Right of Use Assets'
Adjustment of ROU Assets - Operating, Net of Amortization
Bad Debts

Gain on Forgiveness of Debt and Accrued Interest
Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

/  (Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts Receivable .. .
Prepaid Expenses '
Deposits

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party ■
Vehicle Inventory

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities: l
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Deferred Revenue
Due to State of Maine
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
.Purchases of Property and Equipment

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments on Finance Lease Liability •
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt

. Payments on Long-Term Debt
j. Advanced from Related Parties. Net

HelGaehUeed'^-FTnarhcfhg Activities
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginriing of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash Paid for Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Forgiveness of Debt and Accrued Interest

2023 2022

$  2.190.467 ' $ 7.232.553

.  124,192
48,603
(13.365)
294.462

(346.574)

(1.174.945)
(46.597)
3.000

894,908
(73.644)

1.221,532 .
(244.327)

(1.109.270)
(400.035^

1.368.407

(97.9861

.. (97,986)

(47.481)

(386,815)
(1.539.080)

(702.955)

2.025.602

^  1-32? fiii?

S  m?

130,378

383,195
(3.553.766)
(1.680.285)

(2.834,968)
23.611
23,307

23,557

(53.525)
15,560

2.972.305
(150.491)
2.531.431

(106.8601

(106.860)

380,000

. (33,892)
(5.126.0411

(1.973.3761 (4.779.933)

(2.355.362)

4.380.964

t  7

$  3 553 7RR

See Bccompanying'Noies to Consolidated Financial Statements. .
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIEIDANT ACCOUNTjNG POLICIES

Organization -

~  ' Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (ACS) and'.Ascentria Community Care, Inc. (ACC)
(collectively, the Organizations) are corporations exempt from tax under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code as a public chanty. The Organizations provide community
service programs to children, families, refugees, and developmentally disabled adults
throughout New England. ACS Is the sole corporate member of ACC. Ascentria Care
Alliance, Inc. (Ascentria) -is a sole corporate member of ACS and also serves as the
management agent;

The Organizations provide the following programs;

Transportation Services - provides low-income individuals with transportation, such as
ownership of donated vehicles or access to shared rides, providing these individuals wi^

■ access to jobs and other economic opportunities, thus helping them to achieve economic
independence.

Disability and Mental Health - Disability and Mental Health comprise of a wide variety of
programs that enable persons who are economically disadvantaged, have disabilities,
chronic illness, rr>ental illness, deafness and other challenges to t>ecome and rernaln
guccessful contributors to the communities in which they live and work. Support services
Include: Access to medical resources, personal case management customiz^ for
individual needs, 24/7 supervision and support in a residential, setting for Individuals
diagnosed with chronic and persistent mental illness, and services offered to individuals
diagnosed with mental illness in the comfort and familiarity of their homes.

Child and Femiiy Programs - through a variety of programs, the Organizations provide
services related to therapeutic, foster care, unaccompanied refugee minors support,
housing for teen mothers and their children, housing for homeless, small group homes
serving teenagers, various support services and living accommodations for
developmentally, physically and mentally disabled adults and other various social'
support programs.

In-Home Services - In-Home Care is a licensed Home Health Care agency that offers
comprehensive, nonmedical personal care services to horrrebound Individuals or those
with a disability. in-Home Care caregiyers assist in light housekeeping, transportation to

'  appointments, recreational activities, bathing and personal care, meals, and exercise.
Additional nonmedical services supervised, by a registered nurse.

Services for New Americans - through this program, the Organizations seek to provide
resettlement, employment, case management, medical case management. English as a
second language classes, and other support services to refugees, asylees, and
immigrants.

Adoption - through this program, the Organizations provide services related to domestic
and international adoptions.

(11)
■K ••



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of Conaollf^^tl^n

The accompanying consolidated financial statements present the consolidated financial

S'^lh^'oraantatin expenses
.  efiidrrsSaUor '^Pn^Potions and balances have been

Method of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organizations have been prepared on the
accrual method of accounting. Accordingly, assets are recorded when the Organizations

.K II? ! ° 's eilitled to claims for receipt and liabilities are recordedWhen the obligation IS incurred..

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations consider all short-term debt securities purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Recelvqf^lB ^ -

Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance of expected losses. The allowance is
estimated from histoncai performance and projections of trends. Credit is extended to
customers amj collateral is not required. When the accpunts become past due, historically
the Organizahons have not charged Interest to these accounts.

Inventory

Vehicles identified for the purpose of being delivered to program participants are valued
based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the reporting period which
approximates the lower of cost or net reallz^ value. ■ ,

Program vehicles expected to be sold at retail are recorded based on trade-in value.

Vehicles exposed to be sold at vk^iolesale are valued using the average sales proceeds for
all vehicles sold during the reporting period.

Vehicles are recorded as donated vehicles or donated vehicles - wholesale when the
vehicle is received.

Property and EQulnment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Assets with an estimated usefui life of more
than one year and a historical cost in excess of $2,500 are capitalized. The Organizations
capitalize acquisitions and improvements," while expenditures for maintenance and repairs
that do not extend the useful lives of the assets are charged to operations. Donated property
and equipment are recorded at Its fair market value at date of donation. Gifts of long-lived
assets are reported as net assets without donor restriction support unless donor stipulations
spec fy how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to
acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support.

(12) , - V



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES
(CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment fContlnuedl

Absent explicit donor stipulation about how long those assets must be maintained, expiration of
donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed Irito
service. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated usefui life
of the assets. ...

Related Party Loans Receivable

The Organizations' loan portfolio Is comprised on unsecured related party loans receivable that
are noninterest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms, as detailed in Note 3. ar^ Is
considered a single portfolio class. Related party loans recewable are recorded net of an

^  ' - allowance for expected loan losses (allowance). The Organizations establish an allowan^ as
an estimate of inherent risk in the Organizations' loan portfolio. Although management believes
the allowance to be adequate, ultimate losses may vary from its estimates.

The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses that Is charged to expense.
Loan losses are charged off against the allowance when the Organizations determine the loan
balance to be uncollectiblerProceeds received on previously charged off amounts are recorded
as recovery in the year of receipt. The Organizations determined that ail related party loans

T" receivable are fully collectible as of June 30,2023 and 2022.

The Organizations review the adequacy of the allowance, including cdnsideratiori of tl^
relevant risks In the loan portfolio, current economic conditions, and other factors periodl^lly.
The Organizations Internally monitor related party borrowers to assess the nsk of
nonperformance. The Organizations determine that changes are warranted based on those
reviews, the allowance Is adjusted.

All of the Organization's Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Parties are measured at
Level 3, as outlined in Note 13.

Net Assets .

Net assets of the Organizations are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary In nature, such as those that will be met
either by actions of the Organizations and/or the passage of time. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual In nature when the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction
expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Net assets with donor
restrictions consist of $2,128,958 and $2,677,292 for beneficial interest In net assets of
related party and $ 90.825 and $90,284 other program resUlctions for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. There were no net assets invested in perpetuity
as of June 30, 2023 and 2022.

.  (13) , . •



ASCENTRIA COMMUNnTY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

^  (CONtK!°^ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Contract and Grant

The Organizafions derive revenues through cost-reimbursable and unit rate federal and
state contracts and grants, which are conditional grants based on TO perfo^ance
requirements and/or the Incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses Accordlnolv the
Organizations are subject to the regulations and reporting requirements of the applicable

grantor agenctes. Amounts received are recognized as earned and are

rnntrrr"® T ■ ^^^0 incuited expenditures in compliance with
a^ $10 219 9R7 was $10,926,595

Donated S6rv|qe^
Donated services are recognized in the oonsolidated financial statements if the services
mtT, specialteed skills are XS by
by donation'^®®®®®'"® ® ''® Purchased if not provided
Donated Vehicle Revenue

Donated vehicle revenue includes vehicles that will be repaired and delivered to oroaram
participants. J^ey are valued based'on the average contract reimbursement rate for the

m^t the donated vehicle revenue includes donated vehicles that do not
hao w program participants. These vehicles are sold at auction and valued
af a nnrnf « recognized
$ 25^665 and S? ® ^023 and 2022. there was
stSnfof respectively, included In donated vehicles on the consolidated,
Federal and Stale Relief Qr^nt RflV?n'7
During 2023 and 2022, the Organizations received federal and state grants to provide

The Organizations received paymenS
Relief Fund (PRF), which Is administered by the U.S. Department

of Health and Human Services (HHS). The .Organizations received PRF payments and
reco^ized revenue in the amount of $-0- and $296,858 during fiscal year 2023 and 2022
respectively. The revenues recognized are included In Federal and slate ̂  Qrani
Revenue on the consolidated statements of activities. The PRF payments have terms and
conditions that the Organizations are required to follow, and these funds are subject to

Hl^ tf it m ®'® S"''.®®' P°'en«al recoupment by
rnnHrtll r? . u • ® '^®''® ®P®"' accordance with the terms and
Junfrio^ S22 '■®®°9"'^®P appropriately as of
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNimCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED) — - 7

Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue IContlnuec»

The Organizations received payments from the state of New Hampshire, which is
administered by the Division of Medicaid Services. The organization received payments of
$-0- and $2 427,047 and recognized revenue.in the amount of $1,566,836 and $647,374
during the fiscal year end 2023 and 2022. respectively. The revenues recognized are
included in the Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue on the consolidated statements of
activities. Amounts received but not year recognized are Included in deferred revenue on the
statement of financial position. The payments have terms and conditions that the
Organizations are required to follow, and these funds are subject to reporting requirements
and audit. The payments are subject to potential recoupment by the Department If it is
determined that the funds were not spent In accordance with the terms and conditions.
Management believes the amounts have been recognized appropriately as of June 30. 2023
and 2022.

The Organizations received payments from the state of Maine, which Is administered by the
Office of Maine Care Services. The organization received payments of $-0- and $980,509
and recognized revenue in the amount of $263,849 and $716,660 during the fiscal year end
2023 and 2022. respectively. The revenues recognized are included in the Federal and
State Relief Grant Revenue on the consolidated statements of activities. Amounts received
but not year recognized are included in deferred revenue on the staten^nt of financial
position. The payments have terms and conditions that the Organizations are required to
follow, and these funds'are subject to reporting requirements and audit. The payments are
subject to potential recoupment by the Department If it is determined that the funds were not

1  spent in accordance with the terms and conditions. Management believes the amounts have
been recognized appropriately as of June 30, 2023 and 2022.

•  ' ^ ' * *

Additionally, the Organizations recognized payments from the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts Executive Office of Health and Human Services (EOHHS).of $359,730 and
$88 193, respectively, as revenues as of June 30, 2023 and 2022. The revenues recognized
are included in Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue on the consolidated statement of
activities.

(15)-



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Program Service Revenuf
To detemine revenue recognition for the arrangernents that the Organizations considers

scope of Topic 606, the Organizations performs the following five steps:
(1) Identify the contract(s) with a customer, (2) Identify the performance obligatlon(s) In the
contract. (3) detemirie the transaction price. (4) allocate the transaction price' to the
^rforrnarice obligation(s) In the contract, and (5) recognize revenue when the
Organizations satisfy a performance obligation. Program service revenue Is from private pay
services, translation services, and interpretation services. Program service revenue is
recognized as customer services are provided over time. Payments received in advance of
services are reported as deferred revenue.

The Organizations contract receivables related to exchange transactions were as follows;

Beginning Balance. Contract Receivables $ 1,384.711 $ 914 227
Ending Balance, Contract Receivables 793^200 1 384 711

202? contract liabilities related to exchange transactions as of June 30, 2023 and
Advertising CoatB

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs paid for Ijy the Organizations
amounted to $188,312 and $180,583 for the years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022
respectively. Contributions of advertising are recorded at the estimated fair value on the
date of the contribution. The Organizations received contributions of advertising estimated to
have a value of $47,006 and $36,118 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022
respectively. '

Use of Estlmatflfi

The preparation of consolidated financial statements In conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted In the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities; at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The cost of providing the various programs and services are summarized on a functional
basis. Costs are generally identified as to program site, and are then allocated between
programs and supporting services that benefited based on total direct expenses. Salaries
and benefits are allocated on the basis of time and effort. The expenses that are allocated
are the portions of depreciation and interest expense that are not directly attributable to
specific programs or services. These expenses are allocated on a square footage basis.

(18)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income Taxes

The Organizations are nonprofit corporations as described In Section' 501(c)(3) of the IRC and
are exempt from federal and state Income taxes on related Income, pursuant to
Section 501(a) of the IRC.

Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with professional standards, assets and liabilities measured and recorded at fair
value are required to be categorized into a three-level hierarchy based on the priority of the
inputs to the valuation technique used to determine fair value.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the
inputs used in the determination of the fair value measurement fall within different levels of the
hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement. Assets, and liabilities measured and recorded at fair value by the
Organizations are categorized as follows:

ie\/e} 1 - Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that an entity has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities In active markete
and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for
substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Fair values for these instruments are
estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or
discounted cash fkws.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically
based on an entity's.own assumptions, as there is little, If any, relate market activity.

In instances vrtiere the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement in its entirety. Valuation techniques uski need to maximize the use of
observable Inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There have been no changes
in valuation methodology used at June 30,2023 and 2022.

(1?)^



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases

The Organizations determine if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Operating leases are
includ^ in right-of-use (ROU) assets - operating and lease liability - operating in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Finance leases are Included in right-^f-use
(ROU) asset financing and lease liability - financing on our consolidated statement of
financial position. ,

s '

ROU assets represent the Organizations' right to use an underlying asset for the lease term
and lease liabilities represent the Organizations' obligation to make lease payments arising
from the lease. ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on
the present value of lease payments over the tease term using an appropriate risk-free
discount rate.

The individual lease contracts do not provide information about the discount rate implicit in
the lease. Therefore, the Organizations have elected to use a risk-free discount rate
(applicable U.S. Department of Treasury risk-free treasury rate) determined using a period
comparable with that of the lease term for computing the present value of lease liabilities
Lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably
certain that the Organizations will exercise that option.

Lease costs for operating lease payments are recognized on a straight-line basis over the
(ease term. The Organizations have elected not to separate nonlease components from
lease components and instead accounts for each separate lease component and the
nonlease component as a single lease component. The Organizations recognize, payments
for short-term teases with a lease term of 12 months or less as expense as incurred.

During'2022, the Organlzatlons followed the accounting standards in effect at that time and
recorded rent expense on a constant periodic rate over the term of the lease agreement.

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 642). The new standard increases
transparency and comparability among organizations by requiring the recognition of right-of-
use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial position for
those leases classified as operating leases. Under the standard, disclosures are required to
meet the ot)Jectlve of enabling users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing,
and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases.

The Organizations adopted the requirements of the guidance effective July 1, 2022. and has
elected to apply the provisions of this standard to the beginning of the period of adoption,
while continuing to present the comparative period in accordance with the guidance under
the le^ standard In effect during that period. The Organizations have not elected to adopt
the package, of practical expedients available In the year of adoption nor the. available

^ practical expedient to use hindsight In determining the lease term and In assessing
impairment of the Organization's ROU assets.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 OROANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTJ^CCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Subsequent Eventa

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Organizations have evaluated
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through February 5, 2024, the
date the consolidated financial statements were available to be Issued.

NOTE 2 ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest In Net Assets of Related Party

The Organizations record beneficial Interest In assets that are held by Ascentria in the
..arriount of $2,128,958 and $2,677,292 at June 30. 2023 and 2022, respectively. For the
years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022, the Organizations had a loan payable. Included in
accrued expenses, to the fund totaling $340,524 for both^years ending June 30, 2023 and
2022. Contributed assets are transferred to Ascentria by either the donor or the
Organizations with the approval of Ascentria. The donors did not grant variance power to
Ascentria.

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organizations have entered Into the following transactions with related parties:

•  The Organizations are charged annually by Ascentiia for accounting, management
services, and overhead in monthly installments. Charges to operations for these
services totaled approximately $4,410,163 and $4,432,496 for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022. respectively. These expenses have been included on the
consolidated statements of activities under the caption Management Fees. In
addition, Ascentria Is the central contracting entity for insurance coverage, and
Insurance costs are then billed monthly to the Organizations.

•  The Organizations have various office space rentals to and from related parties and
vehicle rentals from related parties. Rental revenue from related parties amounted to
$140,012 and $123,101 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. respectively.
Office space and vehicle related party rents amounted to $359,957 and $3^,307 for
the year ended June 30,2023 and.2022. respectively.

j

•  Related party loans that bear no interest and have no fixed repayment terms, are
as follows:

2023 2022

Due from Related Parties:

Ascentria Care Alliance. Inc. $ 4.844.990 $ 3.305.910

Total 4 844.990 s 3.305 910

09):



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 AND2022

NOTE 4 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The Organizations participate in a defined contribution plan (the Plan) qualifying under IRC
Section 403(b) maintained by Ascentria. 'Tihe Plan permits discretionary employer
contributions based on a specified percentage of annual compensation and employee
contributions. The Organizations had no pension costs charged to operations or

V. contributions to the plan during the years ended.June 30,.2023 and 2022.

NOTE 5 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The accounts receivable balance consisted of the following at June 30:

2023

Accounts Receivable - Program Services
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts Receivable, Net

2022

$  9,201,902 $ 8.057.869
(676.006) (412.456)

S  8,525896 $ 7.645.413

NOTE 6 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organizations to concentrations of credit
.  risk consist principally of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents .

The Organizations maintain cash and cash equivalent balances in several federally Insured
.  financial institutions in the same geographic area as well as a money market fund. During

the year, there may be times when uninsured cash is significantly higher and exceeds
federally Insured limits.

Major Customer

The Organizations receive significant funding from various federal and state agencies. The
states, through which funding was received, include Massachusetts, New Hampshire, and
Maine. Approximately 88% and 87% of the Organizations' revenue was received from state
and federal agencies directly or via pass through for the years ended June 30, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

Beneficial Interest In Net Assets of Related Party

The Organizations' unsecured gifts, held by a related party, amounted to $2,128,958 and
$2,677,292 at June 30,2023 and 2022, respectively.

Accounts Receivable

The Organizations extend unsecured credit to Its customers. Accounts receivable amounted
to $8,524,021 and $7,643,538 at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 57% of the
Organization's receivables at June 30, 2023 are due from a related party.



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 7 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The useful lives of property and equiprrient for purposesi)f «)rhputing depreciation are:

Building, Building improvements, and Leasehold Improvements
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures, and Vehicles
Equipment Under Capital Lease
Computer Equipment and Software

5 to 40 Years

3 to 10 Years

3 to 5 Years

3 Years

Depreciation and amortization expense charged to operations was $172,793 and $130,027
for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 8 MAINE MEDICAiD LIABILITY

ACS provides services for Medicaid eligible individuals under terms of costs-based contracts
with the state of Maine. Accordingly, ACS provides for the estimated amount of settlements
with Medicaid as a liability. Final reimbursement is not determined until the state, of Maine
accepts the cost report. There was no liability due to the state of Maine for the year ended
June 30, 2023. The amount of the estimated liability was approximately $400,000 for the
year ended June 30. 2022, respectively. Adjustments to these estimates are reflected on the
consolidated statement of activities under the caption Grant and Contract Revenue to.the
extent not previously .recorded in the year the final settlement Infprmation becomes available
to management

NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT

The Organizations are liable on long-term debt at June 30 as follows:

DftacriPtkm

Note Payable
Term note payable to Cambridge Trust Company face
amount $380,000, due June 30.2032, secured by
business assets, payable in monthly payments of
principal plus Interest through maturity, commencing
July 29,2022. Interest rate is fixed at 5.27% annually.

Term note payable to Bank of America face amount
$350,000, due August 7,2033, secured by business
assets, payable In monthly installments of interest
only through August 2008 then monthly payments of
principal plus interest through maturity. Interest rate
is fb(ed at 7.105% annually.

2023 2022

369.077 380,000

146,737

(21),



NOTE 9

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
—

Descriotion fContiriHed) 2023 2022

Mortgage payable to Bank of America face amount
$370,308, secured by real property owned by ACS at
two locations, and guaranteed by Ascentria, with an
interest rate of 7.01%. due August 2032. Monthly
principal and interest payments of $2,670. $

$ 229.155

Total Long-Term Debt

^Less: Current Maturities

Long-Term Debt. Net of Current Maturities j

369,077

(11.4681

3S7Rnfl s

755.892

(387.0281

368 864

In July 2022, the OrQsnizatlons paid off the term note payable and mortoaQe payable to
Bank of America.

The agreement with Cambridge Trust Company Includes a covenant to maintain a debt
service coverage ratio, as defined in the agreement, of at least 1.10. The Organization
believes that it has met the required ratio at June 30. 2023.

Following are current maturities for the next five years:

Year Ending June 30 Amount
2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

"  Thereafter

total '

$ 11,468
12,150

12,815
13,517
14.210

304.917

$ 369.077

Interest charged to operations for the above long-term debt amounted to $24,300 and
$39,525 for the years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022. respectively.



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 10 LEASES-ASC 842

The Organization' leases equipment under" finance leases and office facilities under
operating leases. The leases are for various terms under long-term, noncancelabie lease
agreements and expire at various dates through '2027.

The following table provides quantitative Information concerning the Organizations' leases:

Lease Cost:

Amortization of RIght-of-Use Assets $ 48,603
' Interest on Lease Liabilities 2,807

Operating Lease Cost 694;384
Total Lease Cost $ 745.794

- Other Information:

Cash Paid for Amounts included in the
Measurement of Lease Liabilities:
Operating Cash Flows from Finance Leases $ 50,288
Operating Cash Flows from Operating Leases $ 707,747

. Right-of-Use Assets Obtained in Exchange for New
Finance Lease Liabilities 5 150,338

Right-of-Use Assets Obtained in Exchange for New ^
Operating Lease Liabilities 8 1,035,930

Weighted-Average Remaning Lease Term-
Finance Leases 2.48 Years

Weighted-Average Remaining Lease Term -
Operating Leases 0-77 Year
Weighted-Average Discount Rate - Finance Leases v 2.67%
Weighted-Average Discount Rale - Operating Leases 2.61 %

The Organizations classify total undiscounted lease payments that are due in the next 12
months as current. A maturity analysis of annual undiscounted cash flow for lease liabilities
as of June 30. 2023 is as follows:

Year Endina June 30. Oowatino Finance Trtals

2024 $  322.769 $ 45,360 $ 368,129

2025. 22,890 36,806 59,696

2026 2,100 21,082 23,182

2027 - 2,985 2,985

Thereafter - - -

Undiscounted Cash Flows 347,759 106,233 453,992

Less: Imputed Interest (3.156) (3,376) (6.632)

Total Present Value S  .344.603 $ 102.857 $ 447.460

(23)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL*STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2023 AND 2022

NOTE 11 LEASES-ASC840

The Organizations, elected to apply the provisions of FASB ASC 842 at the beginnlrig of the
period of adoption, through a cumulative effect adjustment, with certain practical expedients
available. Lease disclosures for the year ended June 30. 2022 are made under orlor lease
guidance In FASB ASC 840. "

"  ' * ••

The Organizations lease land, buildings, equipment, and motor vehicles under various
operating lease agreements with terms of one to three years. Total rent and related
expenses amounted to $1,061,974 for the year ended June 30. 2022.

Future minimum lease payments under these agreements were as follows:

Year Ending June 30

2023

2024

2025

Total

Amount

446,252
151,270
5.316

$  602B38

NOTE 12 CONTINGENCIES

A significant portion of the Organizations' net revenues and accounts receivable are derived
from sen/ices reimbursable under Medlcald programs.' There are numerous healthcare
reform proposals being considered on federal and state levels. The Organizations cannot
predict at this time whether any of these proposals will be adopted or, if adopted and
implemented, what effect such proposals would have on the Organizations.

A significant portion of the Organizations' revenues are derived from services reimbursable
under Medlcald programs. The base year costs utilized In calculating the Medicald rates are
subject to audit which could result in a retroactive rate adjustment for all years in which that
cost base was used in calculating the rates. It is not possible at this time to determine
whether the Organizations will be audited or if a retroactive rate adjustment would result.

Effective June 2022, the Organizations and subsidiaries entered into a line of credit
agreement and a term note payable with a financial institute and paid off the previous line of
credit balance.

The term note payable has a balance of $1,680,000 and resides on the books of a related
party as of June 30, 2023. All borrowers are jointly and severally liable for payment of the
debt which is due June 30, 2027. The note Is secured by certain assets, payable in monthly
payments of principal plus Interest through maturity, commencing on July 29. 2022. interest
rate Is fixed at 5.06% annually. The line of credit has a limit of $1,900,000 with a variable
rate of Interest of the Wall Street Journal published U.S. Prime Rate, with a floor of 3.25%.
The rate was 8.25% at June 30, 2023. The line is collateralized by various business assets.
There was no balance on the line of credit at June 30, 2023. The agreements Include a
covenant to maintain a debt service coverage ratio, as defined in the agreement, of at least
1,10. The Organization believes that It has met the required ratio at June 30, 2023.

(24)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED RNANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2023 AND.2022

NOTE 12 CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
-  I

The Organization is subject to legal proceedings andiclalms that arise In the ordinary course
of business. In the opinion of management, the ultimate resolution of these matters is not
expected to have a material adverse effect on the Organization's financial position, results of
operations or liquidity.

NOTE 13 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Organizations use fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain
assets and liabilities to determine fair value disclosures..For additional information on how
the Organizations measure fair value refer to Note 1 - Organization and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.

The following tables present the Organizations' fair value hierarchy for those assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30;;

2023

Beneficial Interest in Net

Assets of Related Party:
Total

Beneficial Interest in Net

Assets of Related Party
Total

• Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

S 2.128.958 $ -  $ $ 2.128.958

;$ 2,128.958 s; -  3 $ 2.128.958

2022

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$ 2,677,292 $ .  ■ $ ■ $ 2.677.292"
$ 2.677.292 $ .  $ $ 2.677.292

The following table provides a summary of changes in fair value of the Organizations'
Level 3 financial assets for the years ended June 30: ^

2023 2022

Contributions.

Payments

346.674
(894,908)

$  .1,680,285

Since these funds are held by a third party that pools the Organizations' Interest with other
related organization's assets, management has determined that the inputs are unobservable
and therefore, valued using a Level 3 methodology. The principal valuation technique is the
fair value of the underlying Investments and the unobservable input is the term of
distributions.

(25)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

-NOTE 14 AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
commitments. For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures
over a 12-nionth period, the Service considers all expenditures, related to its ongoing
program activities as well as the services undertaken to support those activities to be

.  general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12
months, the Organization operates a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient
revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources. The
Organization considers the follovring to be available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable. Net

Total Financial Assets
Donor-Imposed Restrictions

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs
for General Expenditures Within One Year

2023 2022

$ 1,322,647

8.525.896
$ 2,025.602

7.645.413
9,648,543 9,671,015
(90.8251 (90.2841

9.757.718 Jl, 9.580.731

(»)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF DEPARTMENT AGREEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE SO, 2023
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OFiFEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

N0TE1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures ofdederal3wards {the Schedule) Includes the
federal award activity of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary under programs
of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2023. The information in this

-I Schedule is presented In accordance with the irequirements of 2 CFR Part 200,,Uniform
-  Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards

(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of, it is not Intended to and does not present the financial position, changes In net
assets, or cash flows of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accouriting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Negative amourits shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits
made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary has elected not to use the 10^percent de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

(20)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts • .

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2023, and the related consolidated statements of activities, changes in
net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 5,2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opiniori on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services inc
and Subsidiary's intemal control. ' . ■ '

A deftciency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect arid correct,■ misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies. In
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

CIA ICIiltonlArtotiAllcit UP) ii dii oiclcpemlent imwo<l< JnemUc of ClA Cfobal, S«C CLAatebal fom/dltdalrtmr
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Report on Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and
Subsidiary's consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance writh certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have" a direct and matenai: effect on the consolidated financial
statements! However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do'not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Govemmenf
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of pur testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report Is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. , .

.CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Quincy. Massachusetts
February 5, 2024

<31)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPUANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM ANDTIEPORT ON INTERNAL

CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Ascentria Community Services. Inc. and Subsidiary .
Worcester. Massachusetts

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each M^or Federal Program
We have audited Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit In the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Ascentria Community Senrices, Inc. and Subsidiary's major
federal prograrns for the year ended June 30. 2023. Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and
Subsidiary s major federal programs are identified In the surhmary of auditors' results section of the
acconipanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In. our opinion. Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary complied, in ail material respects
with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Mq/or Federal Program
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemhtent
Auditing Standards \ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements

-Of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilitles'under
those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the
Audit of Compliance section of our report. '•

We are required to be Independent of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of Ascentria Community Services. Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective Internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to
Ascentria.Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's federal programs.
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Auditors' fiosponslbUlties for the Audit of Compliance
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about vyftiether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred,'whether «due.ito fraud or error, and express an
opinion on Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and' Subsidiary's compliance based on our audit.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is notebsotute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ,GAAS, iGovemment Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of npt detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than forithat resulting from error, as fraud may
Involve collusion, forgery. Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there Is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about Ascentria Community Sen/ices, Inc. and
Subsidiary's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance. whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Ascentria Community Services. Inc. and
Subsidiary's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

'  effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion Is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
Internal control over compliance that we Identified during the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2023-002. Our opinion on each major federal
program Is not modified with respect to these matters.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our
compliance audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Ascentria
Community Sen/ices, Inc. and Subsidiary's response was not subjected to the other auditing
procedures applied in .the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.



Board of Directors
Ascentria Community Services. Inc. and Subsidiary

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Our consideration of Internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described In the
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to Identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we did
identify certain a deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant
deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
cornpliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over ,
compliance Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there Is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
intemal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency in infernal control over
compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2023-
001 to be material weakness. . .

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is.expressed.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on Ascentria
Community Sen/Ices, Inc. and Subsidiary's response to the Internal control over compliance findings
Identified In our audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Ascentria Community Services. Inc. and Subsidiary's response was not subjected to the other auditing
procedures applied In the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.

The purpose of this report on Internal control over compliance Is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of Intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

CllftonLarsonAllen LLP

Quincy, Massachusetts
February 5, 2024

m



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued:

Internal Control over Financial Reporting:

• Material weakness(es) identified?

• Significant deficiency(ies) Identified -
that are not considered to be
material weakness(es)?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards

internal control over major programs:

• Material weakness(es) identified?

• Significant deficiency(les) identified
that are not considered to be
material weakness{es)?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are
to be reported In accordance with
2CFR200.516Ca)?

Identification of Major Federal Programs

10.SNAP
93.676
93.576

Unmodified

_yes

^es

_yes

Unmodified

^  yes

no

.yes X hone reported

no

no

jes X none reported

no

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
Unaccompanied Alien Children Program |
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary
Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-iisk auditee?

S  750.000

X  ves no
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Section If ~ Financial Statement Findings
Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported In accordance with Government Auditina
Standards. ^

Section ill - Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Programs
2023-001

Federal agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Federal program title: Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants
Assistance Listing Number: 93.676

Pass-Through Agency: Church World Services; Lutheran Immigration and Refugee Services
Pass-Through Number(s): Various

Award Period: 1/1/2023 - 9/29/2023

Type of Finding: Material Weakness on Internal Control over Compliance

Criteria or specific requirement: The Organization is required to maintain records of the time spent
on each federal award on a monthly basis. The records must reflect the total activity for which each
employee is compensated and the percentage of their time that is spent on each federal award. The
records must signed by the employee or a responsible supervisor and must be certified by an
authorized official of the organization. The records must be,maintained for a period of three years from
the date of submission of the final expenditure report.

Condition: During our. testing, it was noted that the Organization did not have Internal controls
designed to ensure employees time and effort spent on the above reference program was Drooerlv
documented. . '

Questioned Costs: $4,992

Context: The Organization did not have timesheets or the proper approvals to support the payroll costs
that were charged to the federal program.

Cause: The Organization did not have a process or controls in place to document time spent on each
federal award on a monthly basis.

Effect The Organization is not in compliance with federal law and time and effort reporting as required
under Uniform Guidance ^

Repeat Finding: No "

Recommendation: It is .recommended that the Organization design controls to ensure time and effort
spent on programs are properly documented In accordance with Uniform Guidance.

Views of responsible officials: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

(36)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2023

'  Section til-Findings and Questioned Costs Federal Programs (ConHnued)

2023-002

Federal agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Federal program title: Unaccompanied Alien Children Program

Assistance Listing Number: 93.676

Pass-Through Agency: Lutheran Immigration and Refugee Sen/ices

^ass-Through Number(s): 356-22-00

Award Period: 1/1/2022 - 12/31/2022

Type pf Finding: Internal Control over Compliance

- Criteria or specific requirement: Expenses must be supported by source documentation such as
receipts, Invoices, or cancelled checks.

Condition: During our testing, we noted that the Organization did not have adequate controls to ensure
that expenses were supported by source documentation.

Questioned Costs: $77:45

Context: The Organization did not have source documentation to support one of the sixteen expenses
that were selected.for testing. .

Cause: The controls In place were not operating effectively to ensure expenses are supported with the
proper documentation.

Effect: The auditor noted one instance of noncompiiance and a lack of internal controls over these
compliance requirements.

Repeat Finding: No

Recommendation: it is recommended that the Organization design controls to ensure expenses are
supported by source documentation.

Views of responsible officials: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.
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Board of Directors 2023

Last Name First Name Title(s) Corporate Officers

{current only)
' 1

iBoard & Cmte Officers

(current only)

Jenoure Frederic Director
•

.Board Chair

Cowlagi Ashish Director 'Board Secretary

Goodman Ross Director Board Vice Chair

Bartholomew Alexander Director Finance Co-Chair & Board Fin Sec'y

Robertson Keith Director Governance Co-Chair

Mayo William Director Immediate Past President

Campbell Marybeth Director

Fisher Charran Director

Gibbs Brain 'Director

Jackson Debora Director

Luster Stacey Director

Ruhe Barbara Director

Schmidt. Peter Director

Bovill Angela CEO

Director

President

Mitchell Almee Chief Community

Services Officer

Executive Vice

President

Wade Jeanette Chief Ops Officer

Chief Fin Officer

Executive Vice

President

Bettlgole Michelle Chief Senior Care

Officer

Executive Vice

President

Sousa Nicholas EA Community

Svcs & Operations

Assistant Clerk/

Secretary

Browne Tara Manager of Exec.

Assistants

Corporate Clerk/

Secretary

Russo Nicholas Senior Director of

Treasury

Treasurer

11 Shattuck Street, Worcester, MA 01605
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ALEN OMERBEGOVIC

EXPERIENCE: February, 2001-Prcscnt Ascentria Care Alliance Manchester, NH
Director of Business Development

.  ■ " Contacting current and potential clients to establish rapport and arrange meetings to promote
new services and to improve customer satisfaction. Participating in development of new
marketing initiatives and ideas. Researching organizations and individuals to find new

■ " * opportunities and develop ne\v products. Handle customer issues and contract negotiations.
Writing proposal, bids and grants.
Language Bank Program Manager
Coordinate and manage all day-to-day aspects of interpretation sendees forpeople with limited

• English proficiency. Create awareness of services available thru Language Bank to medical, legal
and other facilities in New Hampshire. Recruit and manage staff interpreters in a variety of
languages.
Job Developer
Provided case management to assist clients in overcoming barriers to employment leading to
long-term career placement. Assessed client needs and advised clients on career options,
developed goals and time lines for achievement of goals. Developed and implemented
training programs to enhance client cmployability. Planned, directed and supervised
Employment Services activities for newly arrived refugees, and low-income clients
Educational Case Worker

Providing help to children in school, teachers and parents to communicate to each other and
working as support for educational liaison.
Health Advocate/Interpreter
Acted as translator and advocate in liealthcare and social service settings; Provided health
orientation; Maintained strict confidentiality; Providing referral services for refugee clients
and follow up their appointments needs
Case Aid-Part Time •

Transported clients to and from medical and social service appointments. Provided
interpretation for clients/caseworkers from Serb-Croat and translated documents.

1999-2001 MacNelll Worldwide Laconia.NH

Machine Operator/Machine Tech ^
Assembly of varioiiselectrical parts, on machiner>'; Sorting of cleats; Fixed, maintained and
troubleshooter for machines; Knowledge of setting up molds and ability to start new job on
production line. . ^ .

1997-1997 Organization for Security and Co-operation Bosnia
Translator

-  , Provided translation assistance for this independent company during elections in Bosnia;
Assisted in problem resolution.

1996-1997 Brown and Root Service Company Bosnia
Food Service Supervisor/Translator . •

. Supervised fifty-two men in large kitchen providing food serN'ice to United States Army "
soldiers stationed in Bosnia; Translated for staff and superiors.

CAPABILITIES: Fluent in Bosnian and English. Basic knowledge of Russian and Dutch.
Good knowledge of the computer operating systems; Word, Works, Power Point and Access
Ability to be a team player as well as work independently

EDUCATION: High School Diploma
Concentration in Computer Science Zvornik, Bosnia

Certificate - Southern NH Area Health Education Center

The Art ofMedical Interpretation Training Manchester. NH
Legal Interpretation ' . Manchester, NH

CultureSmart-Medical Interpretation Trainer Boston, MA
Train the Trainer - "Essential Piece of Medical Interpreting
GED - Manchester School of Technology • Manchester, NH
Southern New Hampshire University ' ' Manchester, NH

B.S. Justice Studies
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• Radia Sefiane

Objective: To secure a position within a service environment where I may utilize my education
languages, office management and case management experience, as well as
community out reach skills and social services.

Qualifications:

• More than 14 years of Community Outreach, concentration on Minority
Population

•  Office management
•  Experience in teaching foreign language
•. OverlO years of social,work experience.
•  Excellent communication and problem solving abilities.
•  Compassionate, mature and professional individual.
•  Good computer skills including Microsoft office.

• Multi-lingual iti French, Arabic, Algerian, and Greek.
•  Provided post resettlement and referral services for refugee clients.
• Acted as both Interpreter and advocate in healthcare and social service settings.
•  Provided cultural orientation and staff training
•  Produced contractual reports in a timely and efficient manner.
• Developed organizational systems to ensure the delivery of services.
• Maintained strict confidentiality with clients.

Relevant Professional Experience:
'OWe.c.Xor Ascentria Care Alliance ■ ' ■

Language Bank, Manchester NH 2018-present
Handling complaints and queries (from customers and staff).Maintains customer satisfaction by
providing problem-solving resources; managing staff, recruiting, "onboarding new hires, training,
assigning, scheduling, coaching, counseling, and disciplining employees; communieating job .
expectations; planning, monitoring, appraising, and reviewing job contributions; enforcing policies
and procedures. Handling payroll and billing. Overseeing Field and office staff." '

Assistant FrogramMan^ger^'Ascenlria Care Alliance '
Language Bank, Concord NH 20] 1-2017
Design and implement office policies, establish standards and procedures, organize office
operations and procedure, prepare time sheets, payroll, and billing and maintain office equipment
and supervise field and office staff. ' . • ^

Medical Case Manager, Ascentria Care Alliance
Refugee Program, Concord, NH 02/01/2004-2010
Schedule and coordinate all medical appointments for SNA refugees, Providing interpretation and
transportation. Provide education about preventive care and health care system to refugees.
Provide 24-hour on-call care for emergency evaluations.

•>

Foreign Language Teacher, Strajford School
Elementary/Middle School, Strafford, 2006-2007
Taught French and Spanish to Elementary and Middle School children during the school year.
This involves preparing, presenting, and evaluating the lessons. The ages range from seven to
fourteen years old. Each class consists of between eighteen to twenty four children. In addition to.
State and Federal oversight, parents are quite involved in the curricula.

✓

Minority Outreach Coordinator E/Z/o/
Breast and Cervical Cancer Program, 2002-2008
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Developed, initiated, presented and evaluated programs designed to reach the minority population
in Manchester for the purpose of educating women about the importance of preventive care and

• • • , early detection regarding breast and cervical health.Commendation; Was recognized for
"outstanding work supporting the cause for breast cancer awareness in the Greater Manchester
area" in 2006 and community outreach by Minority Health Coalition, Manchester Community.
Resource. •

. Social Worker and Case Manager, Belraria Hospital
Algiers, Algeria- 1993-1995

- Coordinated, implemented and managed activities foriennhai^y ill children including, providing
social work services, counseling families, collecting assistance^n clothing and food, writing
reports, supervising four caseworkers, and perfo.rming.case-Teview and team meetings.

Youth Caseworker (volunteer), Red Crescent/Red Cross
Algiers,"Algeria- 1992- 1994
Organizing youth activities for tenninally ill children, including social events and physical
activities, coordinating and distributing donations of clothes, toys and books, and providing
friendship and companionship to the children.

Other Experience: . , '
Swing Manager, McDonald's Restaurant,
Manchester, NH- 2001- 2002

Responsible for supervision of staff, opening store, balancing and checking drawers, making bank
deposits, serving patrons, and providing customer service. ' ' -

Professional Basketball Player Kefa Lovresos Women's Team
:: ' Larnaca, Cyprus-1995-1996 ^ ■

Played professional basketball against other professional teams.

Coach For basketball team, Kefa Lovresos Girl's teams
Larnaca Cyprus-1997-1999 . . ' '

-  .Teaching basketball to girls between the age 12-14 and 1 Sand up ■ ■

■  Private French lessons

Larnaca Cyprus-1996-2000
Teaching French language to kids between the age 10-16

Education: ,

Certificate of Completion
Keyboarding, Fundamentals of Computer and Word I and II
Keeping Soffware Simple. Manchester, NH- 2000

B.A. in Sociology
Institute ofSociohg}', A\g\ers, A.\%qx\^- 1994 ^

High School Diploma
Omar Racin Secondary School, Algiers, Algeria- 1991

Languages: Fluent in French, Arabic, Algerian, and Greek
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Nazir Ekhlass

A highly motivated and multilingual research professional/with a long history of successfully managing projects that
target high-risk and hard-to-reach audiences. A collaborative communicator, who quickly connects with clients and
builds rapport. Adept at conducting complex qualitative and quantitative research, analysis, and reporting. A strategic
professional, with a strong personal and professional network. ,

Project Management I Team Leadership I Qualitativeiand Quantitative Analysis I Photography •
Interpretation/Translation | Graphic Design | Sales' | Communication | Data Visualization |

'' Presentations I Customer Relations

[EXPERIENCE-

Language Bank (LB) ' ' Manchester. New Hampshire
Customer Service & Business Manager/Tier II Interpreter , 2022-2024

I initiated my career with LB as a freelance interpreter in 2022, marking my first role in the U.S. within the initial 30 days of my
immigration journey. I transitioned to the position of Customer Service and Business Manager in 2024. This role included:

•  Providing efficient on-site, in-person, and phone medical/Social interpretation services for non-English-speaking clients
in hospitals, clinics, schools and society.

•  Led the LB support team,'managing online Q/A, customer service, and billing issues, providing one-on-one support, and
creating custom reports for clients.

•  Established and maintained customer accounts for data platforms and remote services, ensuring seamless onboarding
and support for Language Bank customers.

•  Collaborated with the finance office and scheduling platform to guarantee accurate billing, address collections, and
resolve bad debt issues, demonstrating strong internal coordination skills.

- • Conducted routine analysis of performance metrics, generated detailed reports, and worked closely with the Call Center
Manager to minimize missed appointments and enhance operational efficiency.

•  • Played a key role within the LB Leadership Team, contributing to top-quality service delivery, identifying revenue
enhancement opportunities, and ensuring optimal performance of online platforms and phone apps.

.• Fostered professional relationships with industry influencers, strategic partners, and referral sources, representing the
program at meetings and gatherings to strengthen external connections.

LUMANITY _ New York, New York.
Senior ResearcK Executive , 2022-2023

Managed and coordination with all aspects of qualitative research projects, including;
•  Assisted the Project Managers with data analysis, source verbatim, and high-quality presentations for multiple clients,

resulting in enhanced data interpretation, improved client understanding, and increased project success.
•  Sei*ved as internal lead on logistics for multiple projects at a time, such as approving recruitments for accuracy and

alignment with the client's specific requirements. Provided timely and comprehensive client recruit updates, liaised with
,  internal teams, fostering collaboration and effective information flow, while also maintaining open lines of
communication with freelancers, providing them with valuable guidance and support to optimize their performance.

•  Excelled in building and maintaining strong relationships with clients by promptly responding to their queries and
consistently providing them with updates tailored to their heeds by delivering comprehensive daily and weekly reports,
which encompass crucial details such as project status, recruitment, and valuable insights keeping them engaged and

•  informed throughout the duration of their projects. ,
•  Managed multiple projects simultaneously while ensuring that each client received regular updates regarding their

project status keeping clients informed and engaged throughout the entire project lifecycle.
•  Utilized MAXQDA to facilitate qualitative data analysis, including tasks such as organizing and coding data, conducting

content analysis, and generating visual representations of data relationships.
•  Proficient in utilizing Microsoft Excel for data analysis and organization, as well as creating visually appealing

presentations using Microsoft PowerPoint. . ^ ,
•  Updated/drafted screeners and discussion guides for multiple clients.

;1
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Afghan Center for Socio-Economic & Opinion Research [ACSOR)
Research Project Manager and Data Analyst

Nazir Ekhlass, Page 2

Kabul, Afghanistan
2010-2021

I successfully managed a diverse portfolio of over 200 complex projects, showcasing exceptional project management skills and
delivering consistent, impactful results that contributed to ACSOR's success and reputation.
•  Managed large-scale quantitative and qualitative research projects, including sizable qualitative projects involving up to

80,000 respondents.

•  I successfully oversaw the meticulous data collection process, which involved a substantial sample size of approximately
•  10,000 individuals each year for the 'Survey of the Afghan People' in collaboration with the Asia Foundation. Over the
course of eight waves/years, 1 managed the data collection from all over Afghanistan, handled data entry, coding, data
cleaning, and conducted data analysis.

•  Managed a comprehensive 2-year research project for one of Afghanistan's leading telecommunication companies, MTN,
providing them with up-to-date mai ket trends.

•  Ensured quality control by extensive national travel, offering on-site trainings and field monitoring as well as updates to
our clients.

•  Effectively presentations research findings to various high-level clients, including Afghan Cabinet members, the Minister
of Counter Narcotics.

•  1 possess a strong background in effectively managing a diverse range of qualitative and quantitative research and survey
projects. My expertise spans across various sectors, including government agencies, non-governmental organizations
(NGOs), public health initiatives, media monitoring, market research, and policy-making endeavors.

'  • Proficient in using a wide range of research methodologies, including mobile phone surveys (RCS 'Remote Collection
System' software), traditional paper and pen surveys, web-assisted interviews, observational studies, voice recording,
and GPS coordinate collection.

•  Assisted in developing research screeners, questionnaires, discussion guides, and updating the RCS software/database.
•  Provided translations of the research instruments into local languages, Dari and Pashto.
•  Moderated IDIs and focus groups with variety of audiences, including senior experts and KOLs, often with hard-to-reach

audiences and covering highly sensitive topics.

•  Extensively utilized SPSS and Excel for in-depth data review.s, quality control analysis, and comparative analysis of data
across different timelines. These tools have empowered me to ensure data integrity, identify patterns, and derive

'■ valuable insights .. " '
•  Successfully led and managed healthcare-related projects, including a yearlong tracking initiative of recovering heroin

addicts and a comprehensive evaluation of national retail pharmacies. . , -

•  Experience Past 2010

AMMC

Riverview Logistics & Support

^  Clothes for Poor Campaign
Photography

Graphic Designer and Customer Relations officer, 2004-2010.
Co-Founder and CEO, 2017-2020' - , ■ .

Co-Founder, 2014-2018
Freelance & Street photography, 2004-2021 (Afghanistan)

[EDUCATION

KARDAN UNIVERSITY, Kabul, Afghanistan
Business Administration / Management

[SKILLS
—-i

Microsoft Office Suite, Adobe Suite, MAXQDA, SPSS, Corel DRAW, Tableau. GIS, Qualtrics, Bilingual, Photography.
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Styrling Rohr

Early career nonprofit professional with experience in research, case management, and project management. Dedicated

to helping communities problem solve, identify resources, and positively promote themselves in their cities. Strong
interest in nonprofit organizations with focus on the arts, education, immigrants, multi-religious populations & advocacy.

Professional Profile

• Social/Community based work and'educational experience

• Experience with multicultural populations in international, residential, and nonprofit office settings

• Detail-oriented, community-partnered, and rriission-driven

• Ability to coordinate with teams and workindependently -

• Able to initiate, design, implement, and assess research, programmatic, and office projects >• '

-  . • Qualitative, Ethnographic, Archival, and Gommunity Mapping research experience

• Data management experience using Microsoft Office, Google Suite, and -

o Client management software (Apricot, Civicore, Empower, Salesforce),

o Website management software (Wordpress, Microsoft Publisher, Wix)

o and others (Dedoose, SPSS, Loggerpro, Adobe)

• Languages: intermediate Hindi, intermediate Arabic, beginner French

Selected Professional Experience

Translation Coordinator jAscentria Care Alliance! Manchester, NH Aug 2021 - Present

• manage document translations program and have coordinated 6,000+successful translations to-date

• communicate with a diverse team of translators covering nearly 200 languages and with corporate and individual clients
nationwide ' '

• -direct recruitment, technology advancement, quality'assessment, and marketing efforts relevant to the departrnent

Personal Assistant I Outpost 186 Gallery! Combr/c/ge, MA Sep 2020 - June 2023

.  • assisted owner in all matters with re-opening a shuttered music venue and art gallery including financial tracking, website
' development, grant identification and writing, transportation; and coordinating with local contractors

Cornmunity Services and Refugee Resettlement Intern j International Institute of New England! Boston, MA Sep 2020-
Jan 2021

"  • successfully saw 40+ refugees and asyleesfrpm 17 countries through to successful applications for health, rental,'child
care, food, housing, and visa assistance in Massachusetts

• conducted 6-week Cultural Orientation training; coordinated with interpreters, clients, and staff; managed client profiles

Residential Counselor! Asian Task Force Against Domestic Violence! Boston, MA Apr 2020 - Dec 2020

• managed domestic violence shelter, answered crisis hotline calls, and assisted tenants for select shifts

• assisted in 4000-line data transfer from Empower software to Civicore

Research Assistant and Media Director ! Artemis Fiction Inc.) Bluffton, 5C Sep 2019- Apr 2020

• conducted historical research on Medieval Europe, religious history and fiction marketplace research

• designed and maintained organization website
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Researcher, Cinematographer, Interviewer, Editor ISikh Gurudwara of NC| Durham, NC Summer 2018

• collaborated-with the leadership for the Sikh Gurudwara in North Carolina and Elon University to design, film, and edit

' short film sharing Sikh stories of life in the United States

'  • conducted more than 80 interviews with Sikhs, students, local community members, &. musicians

created a comprehensive Sikh curriculum module based onithis research

• curated and marketed photography exhibit of Sikh North Carolinians

News,Travel, and Communications Chair-Per/c/eon5c/jo/orsi|Elon University] 'Elon,'NC ■ Sep 2016-May 2019

• researched Sri Lankan culture, history, social issues, current events andjnon:profit;work

• traveled to Sri Lanka to pilot a community tourism program

• led meetings; compiled advisory documents to aid in travel ito Sri Lanka ior AA/esterners interested.in community tourism

Secretary jElon University Departrhent of Anthropology and Sociology] 'Elon, NC Mar 2016 - Jan 2018
• researched relevant articles and information for faculty members "

• communicated with faculty members and students, provided office support and designed promotional materials

Education .

Elon University ] B.A. Anthropology, B.A. Religious Studies ] 3.95 GPA, Summa Cum Laude May 2019

Minors: Asian Studies, Middle East Studies ,

Honors: Phi Beta Kappa, Phi Eta Sigma, Phi Kappa Phi, Phi Lambda Alpha

Alpha Kappa, Provost Scholar, lyiultifaith Scholar, College Fellow

American Institute of Critical Language Scholarship, U.S. Department of State - Hindi Summer 2019

,  Intermediate Hindi Spoken Proficiency Jaipur, India
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Brianna D. LaMonica

Key Highlights ' . ..

Proven ability utilizing a variety of innovative techniques to achieve department, organization, and individual
'goals . , ,
Track record of displaying professional growth and judgment related to individual and department initiatives

. Strong willingness to work with others and share expertise and materials ;
Professional on a remote level demonstrating excellent written, verbal and [Droficient signing communication
Responsible, courteous, and respectful behavior with customers, faculty and staff
Proven ability providing a positive, challenging, supportive environment, effective instruction, assessment, and
evaluation

Solid working knowledge of ASL/English Interpretation, Deaf and Hard of Hearing Community, RID Code of
Professional Conduct and Best Practices

Professional experience/solid working knowledge of Scheduling and Multi-Line Phone Systems, Special
Education, Curriculum planning, Microsoft Office Suit, Google Office, WebEx, Zoom, ASPEN Industry Software,
Mindbody Online Software, Schedule Interpreter, and Interpreter Management Software

Professional Experience

Ascentria Care Alliance - The Language Bank, Manchester, NH - 202i - Present
Coordinator.of Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
Professional duties and responsibilities include:

• Partner closely with senior.rnanagers to promptly identify and fill open positions with suitable candidates
• Develop arid implement service support schedules per ASL/CDl/CART interpreter/provider availability using
. database SI-Schedule Interpreter ■

Coordinate effectively and consistently with Recruiter and Business Development Specialist when onboarding
. new candidates - .

• Properly identify appropriate match of interpreter-to-consumer based on language needs and skill sets
• Consistently seek out, obtain and confirmed dernographic information with all parties- entered/ updated as

necessary

• Consistently and professionally maintain confidentiality between Deaf Services, interpreter team, consumer, and
clientele ^ •

• Manage timely changes/ updates to ASL interpreter schedules in central scheduling system daily

Brazilian Top Team of Londonderry - Martial Arts - Londonderry, NH
Office Assistant - 2022-Present (Part-time)

• Maintain data using computer and manual system, sorting and record keeping of students, maintain attendance
and filing system, monitor inventory on supplies and gear; completing assignments and projects according to
instructions from supervisor

Pinkerton Academy - Derry New Hampshire - 2018 - 2021
Program Educational Paraprofessional Instructor - 2019 - 2021
•  Professional duties/responsibilities included full syllabus support as a Para in Special Education classroom,

providing resources and support of various needs of tasks relating to'instructional needs of students,
•  Developed/drove implementing instructional programs with the inclusion of self-help and behavior, recording

management of student.instruction with Case Coordinators , ' ■ .
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World Language Educator-2018-2019
•  Convey knowledge and develop skills of American Sign Language and Deaf Community of a High School level,

Administration

•  Established clear, accurate grading procedures, monitor progress of students and issue reports when
appropriate

•  Developed/managed accurate attendance records for students
^  Successfully/.consistently utilized available resources of the department and others .in establishing effective

communication with students and parents when appropriate-

•  Engaged and promoted opportunities for students within Deaf Community and encourage interaction

Fairgrounds-Middle School - Nashua, New Hampshire 20r6'-2018
Program EducationalParaprofessionallnstructor ' ,
• . Assisted Teacher of the Deaf, facilitated communication, provided academic support with Deaf and Hard of

• Hearing students grades Kindergarten/ Middle School in a Self-contained-classroom

Educational Background

Bachelor of Arts, Communication Arts and Deaf Studies, University of New Hampshire, Manchester, N.H., 2016
Certification, Northern Essex Community College, Sign Language Interpreting Program, Haverhill M.A., 2020

The. Justice Interpreter: Law Enforcement Course, Camaraderie-Solutions, N.H., 2022

The Learning Center for the Deaf, Framingham, M.A. 2016

Student Representative, NH,Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf, 2015

The Children's Center for Communication; Beverly School for the Deaf, Beverly M.A., 2015
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Kimberly Otero
Relationship Manager | Call Center Operations

Professional Summary

Patient Relationship Manager with expertise in call center operations, policy development," and strategic
leadership. Proven success in improving service quality, operational efficiency, and patient satisfaction. Skilled
in EMR/ENR/PM systems, relationship building, and problem-solving, committed to driving continuous
improvement in healthcare management.

Key Proficiencies

Relationship Management & Customer Service - Strong ability to build and maintain client
relationships, ensuring high satisfaction and retention.
Call Center & Operations Management - Expertise in overseeing high-volume call center operations,
optimizing workflows, and implementing policies.
Process Improvement & Problem Solving - Skilled in identifying inefficiencies, developing solutions,
and streamlining operational processes.
Team Leadership & Training.-ExperieiK^'in mentoring, coaching, and managing teams to drive
performance and efficiency. ,
Compliance & Regulatory Knowledge - Familiarity with HIPAA, OSHA,'Med Safe, Medicaid, and
other regulatory frameworks. . .
Healthcare Systems & EMR/EHR - Proficient in electronic medical records (EMR/EtTR), patient
scheduling, and medical practice management systems.
Technical Proficiency - Strong knowledge of Microsoft Office, scheduling platfonns, softphone
systems, and virtual communication tools (Zoom, etc.). ■ .
Reporting & Data Analysis - Ability to track performance metrics, analyze call center trends, and
create strategic reports for leadership.

Professional Experience

Call Center Manager - Ascentria Care Alliance | Language Bank - Manchester, NH
September 2024 - Present

•  Supervise and train scheduling staff to ensure efficiency and high customer service standards.
•  Collaborate with leadership teams to minimize missed appointments and improve scheduling

effectiveness.

• Work with HR and IT departments to ensure system efficiency and staff competency.
•  Ensure compliance with DDL, Medicaid, HJPAA, and other regulations.
• Manage grievances professionally, ensuring timely and satisfactory resolutions.
•  Develop and implement department strategies and procedural improveriients.
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Patient Relationship Manager - ClearChoiceMD Urgent Care Centers I CareWell Urgent Care Center

Concord, NH

February 2021 - May 2024

Led the integration of urgent care call centers duringiaimerger, ensuring operational efficiency.
Directed and mentored a remote-based team, enhancingperformance and service delivery.
Established a temporary COVID Command Call Center, supporting statewide health initiatives.
Developed policies, procedures, training manuals, and reporting structures for compliance.
Implemented a new phone system in collaboration with IT, improving patient communication.

•  . f '

Practice Manager - Derry Medical Center Primary Care — Londonderry, NH "
2019-2020 _

• Managed staff recruitment, scheduling, and daily operations to ensure practice, efficiency.
•, Built partnerships with specialty providers, expanding service offerings.
•  Ensured compliance with healthcare regulations and resolved staff and patient concerns.

Front Office Manager - Derry Medical Center - Derry, NH
2017-2019 ■ ■ ,

•  Oversaw front office operations, staffing, and training across multiple locations.
• , Strengthened relationships with specialty providers and drug representatives.
•  Maintained compliance with HIPAA, Med Safe/OSH A, and billing regulations.

Manager of Call Center Operations - Derry Medical Center ~ Derry, NH
2013-2017

.  • Managed 20+call center representatives, handling 1,800+daily patient support calls.
•  Designed and implemented a new phone tree system to improve customer service.
• . Partnered with executives to optimize scheduling and call volume management.

Practice Manager | DMC Wellness Center - Derry Medical Center - Derry, NH
2007-2013

Education & Certifications - Bryman Institute, Brookline, MA
Medical/Clerical Assistant - Graduated with Honors (1992 - 1994)

♦  Notary Public

References available upon request
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms andiconditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacantposltions.

Contractor Name: Ascentria ConTmirnity Services, Inc.

.  .ili

NAME'. ' ■JOB TITLE '

i:„. .ANNUAL. -
■-AMbuNtPAID;

FROM THIS
CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Alen Omerbegovic Director of Bus Develop $17,672.60 $88,363.00
Radia Sefiane Director of Services $17,672.60 $88,363.00

Nazir Ekhlass Customer Service and Business Manager $12,427.80 $62,139.00

Styrling Rohr Translation Coordinator $10,360.60 $51,803.00
Brianna LaMonica Coord of Deaf/Hard Hearing Services $10,567.60 $52,838.00

Kim Otero Call Center Manager $12,654.80 $63,274.00.
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ExceDertcy; GovernorClyiBtopherT^ Suhunu"
\ ;and tho'HonoraWo Cound
Pago 2 of 3 .mk., ''

T>

c;

d5-9i5-95-960'0i0*72080(^0 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVC,
HHS COMMISSIONERS OFFICE. OFFCE OF THE COMMISSIONER. MINORITY HLTH/ ,
refugee AFFAIRS '

State

.Fiscal;
Year :

"Class/
Adcbuht

•  « ir ■

Class Title. :
Job

Number !

Current

,  Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

, Revised
K Budget

2022 102r50073Vi
'Contracts for

■ prog Svc

Si

Various
Wli;763 -  '.$.0' ;$e;iT;763^

.* -Arj.'

;-2023 102-500731
5 ,

Contracts for

Prbg.Svc
Various

.  - $811763 $811,763

2024 ; ■102-500731 ' Goritracts for
prog Svc '

(

- Various ,
$811.763: 1?! $Q $811:76.3

: 2025 102-500731
Contracts for

;  iPrpgSyc; ■Various .j
$900,000; $900,000

•V .

i v: ' ^

\  ■ - ■

V-:.
'  - . .Subtotal $2,435,289 $900,000 $3,335,289

. Total $2)985,289, ,$900,bop $3,885,289

^EXPLANATION .
THe pOrppse of rKis„request is; for the Contractor to icoritinue to provide language and

xortimunication faccess services to'the Departmerit. jThe Contractor's :8ervices include,
communication access services for individuais w^ are,'deaf, have hearing loss. are blind, f»aye
,low vision, have speecti impairments, dp, not speak English and/pr have.. Llmrt^, .English

' Proficiency. ' ;" ' ,
'TherDepaftfnent-.staff and clients ''will, receive^ejvices approximately 15;20b timesiihV

SFY25.- . , ' ' , ■ ■
•The Con1r0Ct'or..W'll continue to provide translation .services for wntter)..ddcument8. services

and maintenance of technology to support on-demand vidM remote Interpreting and over-the-
phpne jnterpreting'tp Department staff and recipients :of Department services. The pervices
provided by the Contractor enables the: Department to remain-in compliance with federal and state.,
lavvs and fegiilations pertaining to Civil Rlghts and Amencans with .pjsabiiities.

The Department will mphitbf senrices by .ehsuhhg^
:• Individuais served indicate their 'communication access needs were met as

evidenced .by.bo% of individuals 8uryeyed,reporting they are satisfied with the
interpreting services. • .

department staff/reppri they^a^e able .to, iappropriately serve individuals with
'com'munication access needs as evidenced by 90% of staff surveyed reporting that
the cpntractp/.appropriately delivered se^^ J,-'..-.:
Department staff^ have the translatecl'.vyritten -niateH they need:to serve clients'
effet^ively,- as evidenced by staff reviving the feguested translated materials In
the-target'ianguage wthin -14 icajendar.days. of the;time..

:•/

•VJT'

>'5

0

ft ''fi

»*' •

, t
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•Wa pjcMtlency. Govemibf Chriatophw ^nunu
' • ai^ ihfi HonoraWe CouncD,.
Page 3 of 3

•  Spoken language. interpreting service capacity is con^stently maintainlra' ̂
.eyidenced. by 95®/t of Department's submitted spokert language Interpretation
requests being fulfiiled directiyi of through , a mutually agreeable alternative
provided by the Qontractof This perfdrmance:rhe8SMre applies to requests that are
submitted ̂  least-S calendar days in advarxie of the requested date.,

•  Interpreting service capacity is consistently maintained as evidenced'by 95% of
.Departments' submitted signed ̂ language interpretation requests t^ing fulfiiled
directly' or through a mutually agreeable altemative provided, by the Cqntractdr,
Thisl^perltormance measure,::applies to requests that are .submitted at least ,-.10

"  calendar.days in.advance of the requested .date.

■As referenced In Exhibit A of the original agreemerit. the parties have the cTiitibn to extend
the agreement for up ;to three. (3)! additionaj'yearsr contingent upon sallsfaclofy delivery o(
services, available funding, agreement of the parties ;and^Govemor and Council approval. The,
Department is exercising its option to renew'services for one (1) of the three (3) years available.

Should th'e Govefhof arid Council not authorize this"^uest. individuals would not be able
tb effectively jccess Department services, Itncluding yaluable informatiori available through public
fjotTjrnS' 'and. emergency communications bulletins. Additionally, a iack of communication access""
services In place violates federal civil rights taws, which require that communication assistance
servlces.be provided for iridividuais who need it. ' v;

y  A>ea served: Statewide;.
iSourc^ofFederal.Fun^ds: Assistance^ Listing'Nyrnber #93.391, FAIN'# NH75OT000d31
Iri.the'eventlhattheFederalFundsbecomebb.lpngefayallable, additional GeneralFunds.-

will'not,be requested to'support this prpgramV .... . .. — .. .. ^ ^ ^ ^

^  ̂ Respectfully submitted,

'il- rl A. .Weaver
L-Commissioner

f?- j •

^

The'D^'rtment of Heolih and Human Stnncet'.MMionis (ojbi/i communilin qnd famitiet
.in providing oppqrtuniliesJqr^cUiuni,to gchitvt hdalthondindependenct. '?• '

•  • ■

■•a
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Dchls'GouIct

Cd'mniissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
:departmentof information technology

27 Hazcn Dr., Concord, NH 0330r

Fa"x,.603-271-1516 TDD Access; 1-800-735-2964.

mv^'.nh.gov/doi I.

'May 21.'2024,

■If

,Lori-Weaver,vCdmmissibner-
pcpanment of Health and Huln^^ • :!
State bf'New^HampsJijre
129 Pleasant Street j-: . ^

lConcorcJ,;NH 03301 ' -
'.1 -• I * .

Dcar^Gommissioncr Wea'vef:'

ThisMerrcr represents fpnnal notifipation thaVthe pcpartiiicnt of Infonnation Teclmology (l5pIT)
'has approved your agency's request to cnjcr into, a icontract; amendment with Asccntria Community
;Seryiccs, Inc.,of Concord, NH as dcseribcd bclo.w, and referenced as DolT,N6..2021 -.072B.-

•tr-

■  I

The purpok of.this request 1s' forflhc Cbntractor fo .continue to provide language
-and "communication access services to ahe .Department., 'The Contractor's^"scr\dces.
' include, communication' access services for'|mdividuals .who arc ,dcaf,' have hcaring.loss,
iare'blind, have low Vision, have S|>eccH impai'miciits, do not .speak English ahd/pr
have .Limited English Proficiency- •

/The:;price limitation- wiTi increase', by '$90.0,000. froJn^$2,9^5,289 to $3,8.85,289,.
icfifcctive. upon Go.vcrno'r and Executi.ye .CpunciLapprbval through''.Juhc 30, 2025.-

:-~Jy

n? A copy of this letter 'should accompany the Department of.Heallh and Human'Services' submission
.fp^hc'^Gpvcnior for approval. •;;;

.  ' , ■ Sincerely,

't)G7RA'
:D.olT #2021:0728 :.i
;cc: "MichacrWilliams, IT Manager, DolT...

•Denis Goulcr
..r-

/ , i-'V j'i • *' t r'■"Ihnpyative Technologies Today fpf-New Hamp^^^ Tomorrow"
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OocuSign Enye^e ID; O62ECE15f6B0MF7^9383-B02«^

•  • '*■ . . .. j't
State qif New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
Affiendment #2 >

:This Amendment to the Communication :Access;Service^^ contract is by and. between the State of New '
:Hamps'hlfe, Department' of Health and' Human Services C'State" or "Department") and Ascentria
■^Gommunity Sefyices. Inc/ ("the Gontrac^oO-
WHEREAS, pursuant to ah agreement (the "Contract") approved.by the-Governor and Executive Council'
on June i6,.202"1(ltem #8), as arnendi^ on ;March 9. 2022"(ltem #9). the Contractor agreed .to perform"
'certain services based iupon the terms; and conditions specified in the-Contract as\amended and,-in
•consideration of certain'.sums specified; and

■WHEREAS, pursuant to Form. P-37', iGen^eral. Provisipms, the Contract may be amended Tjpph written
agreernent of the parties jpd approyarfrpm the Governor and^Executiye Ccurrcil; and
,NG>WTHEREF0RE. In.cpnsideratlpn prthe'foregoing and the mutual covenants.and cohditidns cOntairied
In theContract arid set.forth herein, the parties, hereto agree to amend as follows: ^

t. .Form^R-37 General Provisions, Block 17. Completion'Date, tO-read:
3une'30:!^2025

.  V', I*

1.2' Form P-37, G'eneral Provisions, .Block 1:8, Price .Limitation, to read:
$3,885,289 '

'3.- Form P-37, General Pfoyislpns, BJpck 1,.9. C"on.tracting Offic.er fprStat_e:Agency,,to;re^^
•^Rpbert:W.'M.oore^ .Director

4; 'Modify'Exhibit B,. Scope' of Seiyicesi;; by'replacing in its entirety with; Exhibit-B Amendment #2;
■' Scope of Services, which is attached.heretoand.ihcorporated by reference herein., . '

'  5! 'Modjfy;Exh|biLG; Payment" J.erms by.,addin9 Section:!, to read: -
«  l./thrs Agreement isfunded by;; ../'

4.-1.. 26.2% Federal Funds ffbm~N^rious.sources. ' . ^ '•
73.'8%General.FCinds.-, w

- - ■■■■' -'/--.-i

6'.. jAdd Exhibit C-7;.Budget SheeL''Am®ncimerit#2', SFY 25 vvhich is.attached hereto.and incorporated
by reference herein. . ' '

' 7... Add Exhibit C-8,^Budget Sheet;'Amendment#2,.SFY 25 which is attached hereto and'Jn'corporated
Ijy reference herein^ " ' .

Ascentiia'Community.Services|^lnc. . . ... A-S-1:3 . .Cohtractor Initials
RFP:2022-OCOM4J1.:COMMU.-0.1-!a02" Pac|e-1',of3 f

te?

v7.12.23,.
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D<K|uSl9n Envetoi^ ID:,062ECeiMBOMF7^^9383^B02A28C3747l

A*. "

remain

in fuirforceiapd-effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2024, .upon Govemor and Council
... ..^pproya!-.

"  'N W JNESS VVHEREOF, the parties hayejset jhe1r'hands.as o1 the date \vritten below,

State;of New Hampshire

J.:

5/?y2.024

Date

"yvy

5/24/2024

Date

u;

;?r

A'

r-f.

0—OoeuStQn«4 by:
-4FE»r4q7a»*A2.. ■

Name: Reuoen Hampton

Title:
01 rector, office of. Heal.th. Equity

.Ascentria.Community.Services, Inc.. m;

.7—OocwSlOJ^ by:

77—rr'"—^^MnAeooe«3i«7o.. —
.Name: Angela eovill

Title:

&

President/CEO

•M.

i"

1-r

%

»y

•Ascentria Community Services. Inc.,

,RFP-2022-OCOM-0i:.COMM0-01.-A02
v.'7H'2.2'3

."il-j'.-y

:Rage,2df 3
\r-\ .
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I^Sign Enyelope ID: Oe2eCE15^BOMF79-9383-W2A20C37471

I.; '.U

The preceding Amendment, having been, reviewed by this office, is approved asJtp form, substance,'and
'execution. - . • • - ^ ^

OFFICE OFTHE ATTORNEY GENERAL .

V. I7a7)4»4404l4e0

5/24/2024

Date
...

'Name: Robyn. Guiari no
Title':

Attorney

I.hereby certify that theToregoing Ahriendrrieht was approved by-the GoVerhbrahd'Executive'Cbuncil ,bf
the State of New.Hampshire at.the fCleeti.ng'on: ■ - '.(date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARX^QF STATE.

Date .> Name:
Title:'

:>i;

i. .

)3'<i 'i'r

Asc^hlha.Commuhity, Services, Inc.-

R^P-2b22.OeOM-0VC6MMU-6l-A02
•v."7.12.23'"'' ~ ■

,A;S-:.i.3

'Rage'3,pf 3
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I?

DocuSign En\^lopaJD; DC^^7-7p98^C0EF807E_-M37qWE4E1C

y  New HarripsKire Department of Health arid Human Services
Communication Access Services

EXHIBIT B Amendment #2

Scobe of Services

'1; Statement of Work T. General ; "
I  ' ' r

1,1. The ■Contractor'shall provide a uniformJand comprehensive "approach for
individuals.to.obtajn the communication access services they need, including;
1.1.1- burfeht and potential clients of The Department interacting with

Department staff. ...

tI .1 ;2. Individuals seeking employrnent with the Department and those who '
work for'the Department.'

1.1.3, Employees of the .pepartmehi, to enable them to eiffectively "
comm'uhicate with clie''ritSv applicants for services, an'd ^members of
the public. ■ " ' r.; vr.;

1.1.4. Members of the public attending Department sponsored, public
forums, such'as events, conferences^ and/or meetings. . *

^'Members of the public: receiving Department-public broadcasts and '
emergency communications. ' ^

1.1.6: DQCument'tfa'ns'latidn.- ' ■

■' "i.2. The Contractor shall provide commumcalion.access-services for individuals
.listedjn. .Section T. 1,365 days a.year, •24;,hours^a-day 7. days a week who

'  'cbfTespiJria ,w|th t6g.iRe"R.aitmerit.wHa ' ' w
1.2.1., "Are deaf.

;1.2.2,; Have .hearing loss.

i1.2.3,. Are blind, .
"(i -

1.2.4. Have .lo.w vision;
«  k • >*i

1.2.5. Have speech.impairments. J
T.2;6;, Dp not speak English .
I.2.7.- H'ave Lirriited English Proficiency'(LER).

1.3. The Contractor shaU'respond to .unplanned, urgent needs for communication
access within forty-eight (48) hours of receiving* notice frprn the Department,
whichlhcludes but is not iimited..to services' needed for:
1.3.1. 'Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services or Division for Children, Youth

and Famines protective, cases. «.•

New.Hampshire.Hospital patients., ^
T .3.3. ,(3lencliff home residents.

'1.3,4. .Public^HeaJth ^Emergencie^^^^^ ^ds
"  . f !£>

RFp;2022-0'C'OM-.0.1-COMMU'dl-A02 Contractor Iriitiats- .
.  -. .5/1^20'24

Ascentria Community.Se.ryices, Inc.. Page 1 of 22 (Dale - ' '

I':
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bocuSigh Envelope ID: DC4456A7-7D9MCoi8b7E-A637()9CE4EiC

:New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Communication Access Services

U  ̂ EXHIBIT B Amendmeht #2-

•1.3.5., DHHS piiblic broadcasts ahd.«mergencyicbmmu'nications.

1.3.6.. 1 district Offices-., '■

t  . 1.3.7. Philbrook AdultrTransitionahHousing., .. .
'  ' — —1 ' ..

1.3.8".-; John H.iSuriuriu Youth Services Center.

1'.3.9. Hampstead Hospital

■ 1.,3.10v ^Department Staff in need of.accornnnodations'td perform their duties.

1.4. Scheduling Appointments:

1;4.T.. The Corit'raclor .shal[ p.mvjde-\cpmmunicatlon access services to. the-'
Department by providing', the following activities.which include'but are not
lirnited to;

l.-Adt- iS.cheduled_app^intmenjs,
1c4,1;_2. Walk4n assistance.

1.4.1.3. Telephohe'assistance.

1:4]iL4- ' Tra.nsJalipn_s:of writteji d^^

t;4-,V.5. ' Staff meetings^.

1.4.2. the Contra'ctof'shall v/ork collaborativeiy with the Department to ensure
,cpmplj.ance_with the federal Civil,Rights Laws Title yi, Civil. Rights Act of
"1964, AnierjcahSvWilh;DisabiIlty Acliof 1990, Section 504 Rehabilitation

.  AcVbf 1973.; and New Hampshire, ̂RSA:;521 -A and 354-A.

■1.4,3; The Gontracfor shall:';
T...4,3.1 Ensure Gustpmer^Seryices Cpprdinatpr's answer phbn'es^hd

take requests for communication: access' services during
business ;hours, .and a-24/7 after-hours .'weekendjans^weririg
service, to <answer ;calls and assist, with' weekend
erhefgenciee. 'The Customer Services, Coordinators shall
obtain the" following informatipn, which Jncludes but; i.s not

.. ^ limi.ted t.a . •> :
1.4.3.1.1. .Names(s) and contact information for 'ihdividual(s)

attending the.app.pin'tmeht,
1.4.3;;1:2^- ^Effective and apprbpfiate mode pf communication

.  requested;

1.4',3.1..3. Reqiiesled interpreter, if applicable.,,
1,'4;3..2. Provide an American, Sign Language (ASL) Coordinator

during^ business hours lari'd for the Weekend ^answering
services, to: monitor'the requests.Teceived for Deaf ajid^Hard

'.ii ;of Hearing Services/ ' )
RFP-2b22TOCOM-OlCdMMU-dl ;Ag2 Qonlraaor Initials

■A

U:-

'}!

Ascentna'CoirirnunilylSe^ices. tnc". Page 2 of 22' " , '
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g  New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Communication Access Services'

EXHIBIT B Amendment #2

1.4.3.3. Communicate^ any inability to accommodate the request as.
•soon, as possible to the requesting individual, "and provide
'-Other 'options to meet; the .requestor's'need; including, an
alternative date for the service or a different rhodality of
providing the service,

■' 1.4.3.4.- Ensure, that* ,any ^fpreseeable 'interpretei: absences -lare
coordinated with' Ihe pepartment, and that' .alternative
inle/preters are rnade available forlhe given period. •

'1.4.4. .The (Goniractor stiall p/ovide; a iceritralize'd ^appointment scheduling
system that is accessed via a secured web-portal. The Coritrac'tor shall:

'1,4.4'. 1. :Pro'vide .credentials itp ̂ access the 'database to each person
-V' fwho will.b'e requesting services-.

■1.4,4:2.;. Assign;:th0 most appropriate available interpreter, and then
isend email icohfirmatjon to the requesting person; The
Department will have' the" option to 're^view the following

:vr v'- ..^infojmatlon.iwHich'shaH include but is not lirriited to:

.f.4.4.2.T. rnterpretern'ame,

^t4A^Z'.2. Interpreter credentials, as available.
'1.4.4/2.3, Edit, request:
.1 ...4:4.2:4. :;GajT.ce[ req.uest.

'1.4,4:3/ .. 'Maintain- and, "preserve electronic retrievable . jndivid^ual.
■  records relating to'each' individual served, which includesM
'  'is ihot limited to: i •

■fi
Client'name;

,1.4.4.3'2'. Client communication'access preferences.
• T.4,4;3i3. InYerpreter-Rreference.s. gs

1,.4.4."3;4'. IhstructlohsTor'interpreler preferences, particular
arrangemenits or, any other specialized
instructidns '.can also b.e noted; on the' request.

'/• 1.4.4.-3'.5". List of clients who have been served through
previous Department service requests,

'.Efisure the .Departrrient's Account Administrator for -ihe
platform is able to .add/remove users iand change • user
permission'levels to .increase self-service abilities within IHe

j-i P'atfoirn,
i :4.4.5. Ensure that the web-portai and database is a secured website

that ensures the-privacy rights bfjiridividu'als served^" gh
.  - ^ [ ■« 'RFP-2022-OCOM-OirCdM^XU-p1:-Ab2' ^ ■ Contractor Initials tL
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1.5.

'i

.  1.6.

1.4.4.6?^

this Agreement. 'The Cbhtractor shall rhaintain all informatipn
in' apco.rdance with standards for confidentiality of all .
participant information that is acquired by any means. .Access
to confidential information pertaining to the Agreement and.
the, individuals served through it are .limited to only those stdff
that have a need 'tp!knpw;in*order tp perform their job duties"
Ensure ..every service encdunter or transaction provided by '
this Agreement is linked -to the centralized apppTniiment, •
scheduling system; to permit analysis of utilization by bgth the
Contractor and the. Department.-

1/4.4.7-.
.rv

'><}■

. Provide the pepartmerit's authorized users with access to the,
'web:portal,,scheduling platform and database-forsdheduling,
and access to a variety of reporting tools and'trainings. the]
tpols shaJiinclude, ,but is not llmjted to: ■
1.4.4.7.1:. Interpreter usage;

The Cbntraclor shall utilize all 'dedicated iPads. paid for with funds from
previous Agreement's and this Agreerrient, as, referenced in-Exhibit C-1; the
iPads shall include the . Contractor's translation software" serVic.es.. the
Contractor'shall ensure'that the., iPads are returned to the Depa rtment within
thirty (30) business days p_f Agreement completion date, as "re'ferenoed within
the,P-37, if. aniextension is.'needed the Contractor will, make the Departrhent
.aware. . The^ IPads "can only be lised to support services as defined in this-
Agreement: . • ,i.-.
the.^Gontractpr agrees.to, the following' terms regarding the ownership and use.
•of the iPads. the.'Contractor shall:; "
t.B.'l., , [Ensure that the- iPads arei.returne.0o the.Department.witjiln thirty

;(30)' business'-.days of Agreement completion/date,.as,referenced
within the:P-37, if an extehslbri is, needed the Contractor wilfmake

^  ;the"Department aware. The jPads-can Only 'be used fo support
'services as defined in this Agreement:

1.6.2. 'Use of the iPad is a non-transferable right for the User to use the
■ iPad".'

1.6.3.. the Contractor shall.maihlain, manage an asset inveritory,.,ahd shall
notify t.lje Department if theJPad is darriaged, jbst orrslolen,

1.6.4. The Contractor agrees applications loaded on'toj.he iPad will b.e
li restricted to sbftware required for language,interpretatioo". Email '

ebftwareOr accessibility-will not be perm'itted.
116.5: Jh -accprdance with" Exhibit Kj- .lrifbnma'tipr);Secufity Requifernen'tS,

ithe Contractbr acknowledges fespojnsibilijy'for maintaining
•i' ••Ti r.. . ■ '

nh.
RFP-2022^0CpM•0,1-CpMMU♦pUA02

•s i H
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standards ihcluding but.not limife.d^to'ahtivirus softwafe..patchlhg and
software updates'. ■ s - -

.6.6. The'Contra.ct'or acknowledges tHelD.epartmehl's Security Office and
NH DbIT will hot'provide techriical'^sis'tarice or IT support in
.association.with the.use.of'the iPa'd.

•1:6.7. Prior to returning the iPads the, Contractor agrees to sanitize; alj data,
'a'rid no'h-factbfy issued s6ftwa>e ffdm:said devices. The Gontra'ctor
agrees to cleanse all data arid using the Purge technique unless

"  Purge cannot be applied due toihe firrfiware involved. For National
Institute of Standards and Technology,(NIST) Media Sanjtization
'Guides refer;,to t.he NIST Special Rublication 800-86 Rey.1 ,'or j.aTer'
for guidelines at https;//csrc.nist.gov/publicationysp800.

'1.7. The Cbniractdr shalL notify; the'Departmeht (the Department shall notify" the
Contractor): 6f, ca.nceliatipnV.pfall iirirP.erspn foreign language interpretalipri
'appoihtrnents. within twenty-four'X24) hours .of the scheduled appointrhent.

,  Payments by the Department when^foreign language interpreter assignments
are icancelled by the Cbntjactpr are as Ypn'ows, includiiig cancellations due lb
■incierrient;weather: ...
1.7.1. , If. an interpretation assignment is cancelled Imore than'twenty-four

(23) hours in advance, there,will be np charge to .the Department; Th[s
is' afso, applicable to scheduled,.Over-the-phone interpretation (OPI)

'  .. an'd-Video Remote Interpretation;; * ■
-  TiZ-.?: I.f anjintejpreiatio.n assignment isxancelled less than tw.erijfy-four j[23)

hours in advance, the.enlire.block 'ortime that was-,sche^duled may be
charged by the Gpntractor..'TKisJs also-applicable tb'scheduled.OP!

.  -and/VR!; arid , ' b
i.'7.3. : For document translation requests- that are cancelled by- the

department' after .work 'has commenced, ;a fee based on .the
percentage of fhe seivices p.erfpTrned may, be, charged ,to the
Departmehf; ' '

1.8". 'the Contractor shall, nbtify'.the Department (the Departmerit shall! notify the
Contractor)'of'cancellations of all •Jn-person •American Sign .Language (ASL),
'Certified Deaf Interpreters i(CDI). and Communication Access ReaJ-Tinrie
'(CART)'«Services (CARJ) Interpretation, appointments within forty-eight (48)
hours of the. scheduled app'ojntment. .RaymentS: .wh.en ■ASL/Cpl/CART

'.-interpreter a.ssignments are cancelled ^are as follows, including cancellations
..due to.indemeritweather; . '

'■•i' T jf an jnlerpretatlqn asdgnment js cancelled more than forty-eight (48)
hours, in 'advance,; there will be no chargerto the Department. This is

;,also applicabie'io scheduled ypi'i^and, . d,
2  V .. •RFp.2022'OCOM^1-reOMMU^1;A02 Cohtractor Initials;
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'.1.8.2/ lf;an interpretation assignment is •cancelled less lhari forty-eight (48);
hours in adyance. the.entireiblpckiofJirfie that-was scheduled will be
charged, including travel'time'and, mileage. ^Ipplicable to scheduled

. VRI'- " ' ■ ' I'
'1-.9. Interpreter Qualificatiohs: .%* m

1.9.1.' 'the Contractor shall providequajified staff'who are licensed.by ,the, .NH
Interpreter LicensiKe Board and approved under'the NH Departmenipf

■  Education (D.OE), under RSA 326rl, who:. . 7: ^.^
■  1.9.1;.\' Demonstrate linguistic competency and, proficiency .in both

^English and eno'ther language, alonp .with sensitivity fo .the
"  culture of individuals needing commuhication assistance.'with

the demonstrated ability to accur,ate|yjelay inforrnation inlboth
;  languages, fluently.

1.9.1 .-2: -fdave cornpieiedia minimum of 'six^',(60)'hours of a certified
"interpretation training program, including fifteeri (15) hours
vi/ith a language-specific coach, and have passed a series of
aptitude tests;' ihcludlhg English and. the; target language
prof ciency. tests, ' .

;  1.9.-1.3. ConnpleteasixtyjSpJ-hburtrairiihgcbursecertlficat^ahdpa^
,  an in^hpuse.medical interpreter skills test.

;Have eonripleted certlflca.tibn through p qualified interpreter
certification board. . " " '
Complete:at:]east two'-conTnuThg education classes per year

' as well.as mandatory annual employee,training Including,the
./ .tb^pic^of HipM. infections disease, cultural competency,pnd

.  sexual h'arassmeni:

"1.9';1-6. Uegaj'iriterpreters must te observed; in'a legal setting by the
Quality AssurahcbXo'ofdinatof'or bthbrdesighated staff-and
haye receiyecr a satisfactory score. They-must, also passi^an
In-house legaltermiriology test:

1.9.1.7. Unde/stahd interprete'r-ethics and client, corifidehtiality hee^^^^
ahd~;ablde by the medical/legal, interpreter professional code
.of conduct.

1.9;1.8. . Have ap'pmpriate pre-employment1mm"uhiz'ationis and health-
-'■ screenings,' ,including the tuberculosis test, C0VID-i9'

Vaccination, if, applicable, .and :preferred 12 panel - drug
'screening. •'

i.9:,1.9. Ensure that all qualified interpreters have full'background
a; checks including Criminal, Ciffender Record lh^M"":ion

- ' ^ .[it.
RF^Pr2022-OjC'OM;Ql:CpMMU,-Oj-A02 • -• .Coritfactof Initials V ' ■
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■  (CORI), Sex Offender- Registry. Information" (SORI), and
.monthly Office, of Inspector General (GIG)-- Qualified
interpreters.must have passed a successful New Hampshire
criminal background check.prior tb performing services under^
;this Agreenient.

1.9;.1 .„i6. Understand interpreter ethics and client confidentiality needs ■
and abide by the professioria! code of conduct,

^1.9.2., The Contractor shall ensure Interpreters sign confidentiality-agreerne.nt," .t
V. as Tequested by the Department dh an annual basis and submit to the

'■ Departments, , '
.i .9!3'. The Contractdr-shall ensure each'interpreter keeps detailed records ef

all communication, assistance services provided on" .behalf of the
. Department fo'rquaiily assurance and utilization review. The' Cdnlractdf

shall ensuTe the fqlipwing information is tracked: .-x
^ppoihtmeht start and end time.

I  ̂

1.9.3.2; Interpreter's performance and .appointment history:
■  '1.973:3.3 Gpnfirmaliqn for payment, •

'i.i:b:v.the Contractor., shall work cioseiy and.icollabofatively with pepartment staff .to
ensure, that the Departrnent's comrhunication access needs' a/e being rhet
effecdvely.-wHIch' includes .but is. not limited to the £bntraclor:- i

>, l.ldit. Rarticipatihg in the D.epartmdnt Communication Access-yyork Group,r
;comphsed of cross-DepartmentTepresen'tatives.as needed.

T.I0.2. Developing and providing regular data and.reports that ind'icaiertrends
.and needs'of services provided, statewide.

,1.'10.3V Responding 'to annual assessmenis and feedback frorfi divisions
within thepepartrTierit to meet comrnunicatipn rieeds statewide.

T,i,b.4. .f\^6difying:the proposed servicefdeliveiV. model in response:to;these:
inputs, as needert, .to ensure cp.ntinudUs quality irriprovemeht.

1J0.5. Woi'kihg cpllabpr^atjvejy-with 'pepari^^ to learn the variety of
services available in>order for the Contractor's staff to'effectively

\  describe these services to clients/applicanis?
1.-10.6_^ Teaching Depa_rtment staff.about the variety of cpmmuni'calibn access; ■;

r; services available through^ this' Agreement,as .well as the, specific-
'pt;ocesses and procedures that will be used forVccessiilg services.

•1.10.7. Updating^and providing-ai/current list; of available interpreters and
.  translators to.lhe Pepartm'erit.on' a quarterly basis.-

K  4.10.8':, ■Suppprtirig communica'libn; access"- "services provided 'he'
r; Depajtment., .Suppprt/will •jn.dude, but npljs.not limited to:

:RFP-2022-OCOM.0.1-COMMU.-d'i:-A02 ' Contractor lnilials'^>^^—^ H
•Ascentria:Cornnriunity'Services;inc.'. Page7:of.22 . ■ ,
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i'j

Creating'oryupdating Ihfo'rnhational hiatehals; language
identificationJcards, and

1.10:^2. Assigning a .single point oTcontact who is responsible .for
cbordihation of all services, and is available to address all
questionsrand concerns as they arise.

The Cpntfactor shallattend meetings with the Department eyery two (2)
months, and shaH provide updates and report on their progress towards
meeting all pedprmance. measures and oyeraH prograrn objectiyes..

dt'

2. .'Statement of Work - ServicesTdr individuals who are Deaf or who have >-
Hearing t-oss, of for indiyidu,als.who experience Speech Impairments

" 2^.1. The tCdntractof shall .pro^iSe, statewide Corh'munication access serviced, to
indlviduals.who are deaf, haye,hearing loss, are blind,.have low vision, or.have
speech irripajrments^ Seryices shall be provided twenjy-fqur (24), hpujs' a day,
seven (7} days.per week. Services must irtclude, but are not:limited'to:''

2.V.T. .Arnerican Sign.Language (ASL) Interpreters;:

Certified DeafJnterprete_rs,(CDjj;
•  * A:'

;2;-1.3. i OralJnterpreters;'

.2.1 !4. Deaf-Blind TactiieJhterpreterls;; " r.

■ CommunicatjpnAccessJ^ealjT'rh^ (QARJ) Services;.

"2.1.6. Nepali Sign Language"{NSp via video'rerTi9te1nterp,reti.ng,'(VR|) p
2.,f j> ■' -ilarge Print; and
2'::1...8^ ASL'Sjght.TransJatLonya^

2.2'. The Gontfactor shall ehsure-sefvices ,afe available.ih fhultiple :settirigs. which
include buf are not limited to: " ^ "

_2-2.1'.. Department" district offices-,, satellite. - offices; ' iDepartment 'run
institutions and various-centrajjzed locations throughout the Staje;-

2:2.2. ' In the communityVsuch as iri clients'.homes;^ and '
2,2-.3, Pubjjc_fleeting venues;

2l2:4. . Virtual yidep fneetings:
3.. Statement of Work - Sen/ices for individuals who may not speak English or

have Llm|ted_ English Proficiency,(LEP), Braille translation for individuafs who
are blind and services for individuals who-haye LOw.-Visipn.,
-3.1. The Contractor shall pfoyide spoken language ihterpretatioh'sefvices statewide

for Jndjviduals who are np.t.English"'speaking or have lEP. .In addi^'os^he
'  ' \U' '

Contradpr [njtiakRFP.2022'-bcOM.01-CbMM0-dl-A0~2.

'Asceriilia Community 'SeryiOTS, ,lnc.^,

•  ••f
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5i?:

Contractor; shall provide Braille, translation services si^tev/ide fpij-indiyiduals
who are blind, and service's for individuafs who have Low-\/isibn.'The-services
rniist be'available in a variety of languages twenty-four (24) hours a day,.seven
,(7) days per week.' The' in-persdn, over-lhe-phprie, video/emote interpretation,
services'"shall include brut are nbtjimited tojhe following languages:

Ti

•3.1.^. Arabic'

'3ri,.2. Albanian,

f3.1;3V. Albanian (from Kosovo)

,3.1.4. Amharic!

'3^1:5. Arabic':

3.1^.. Bosnian

a. 17. Burmese:

f.l8.. 'Cambodian/Khmer

3-19- Chinese (Cantonese).

.3.1:10. >Chinese:(Mandann)^

Croatian

3; 112, Dari'

3;i.13. Dzongkha (Bhutahes'e)i

'3;1:1'4.' Farsi

' iFreiich (Parisian).

3.1.16; .'French (Canadiari)

3.1.17. Ga

3,.1;t8: German >

3.1.19; Greek

3.1 ;20! Guam-

3.1.2_1. Gujara'ti;

3.1'22.' Kpitian Creole,

3.1.21 'Hindi -
.'j,

3Vl .2'4, vindonesian

3.1.25. Italian

3.1.26, Japanese

-3\i1:2'7.: ...Kikohgp

;vt. CO

'A<

, RFP-2022-OC,OM^1-COMMU.O,i-AOl

Ascenltia Com.munity'Services, Inc;
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3.1.28., Kinyarvyanda/kirundi ~ . *-

3.1:29: Korean ■ . - "

3:1.30: -Krahri : r.

r.1.31. Kurdish ' ' ■ .

■3.1.32.. ^liberian English ■ .

■3.'1.33. Lingaia 'v.-
3,1.34.^, Luganda j'. , ' , ■ -
'3.1.35. Maay ft ■ ■ c,
3.1.36.. Malay "

■3,1 ;37., M_alayalam"

3:1.38. Molddvah /

3:1:39. Nepali
3.1,40. Nepali Sign Language (NSL)tvia VRI only),
3:1:41. Polish _

3:1.42. Portuguese iv •;/
;3M:43. Punjabi

3j1 ;44.^. .Rohingya '• m.
,3..1.45. Romanian " . "
3:1 ;46.,. Russian-
.3y.47. Serbian' ' v " ' :i-, ' '
3.1:48.- Somali t:

.3'1;49. Southeast Asian , .

■3:J,5p., Spanish

• 3.1.51. SwaTiiii
3.1.52. tamil.' vja over the'phone interpreting (OP!) only
3.1.53. Thai

3.1.54. Turkish

-  .3,1.55. Twi ^
3'.-1-:56.; Ukrainian

3.1:57. Lirdir
.3:1.58: VieTname'se . """

V'. '-'-i

RFP-2022-OCOMeiXOMMU-O1-A02 " '•>
.m
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.3,'1.;59. Other languages upo.n request

3.2; the Gontractor'shall ensure interpretation' services are available ir^. multiple
settings, which include.but.are not limited to:.'

J;:. 3.2.1r District offices;, satellite-offices,^ Jnstitutipns and v^arious cen'lrailzed
'  . - j,: .locationsthroughoutthe.State.. .

'3:2.2.,, In the,Community,:such as'in clients'-homes."

3;2.3;. .:Rublic nrieetlhg venues.

:3.2;4., VirluaLvideo rneetings.

i'/ '3.3. The*.Contractor-sha,il prpvidexommunication, access .aids, which shairinclude
but is not limited to:

i  " '3:3.1. Race,-to-face,i(FTF):Tn-:person jnterpretation.
^  . ' I

3:3.2. - PyerTthe-pRpn.e.interpretahpn (OPI).

' 3.3.3. Video R^emote Interpfetation (VRI).
3^4. The .-.Cbntractor shall provide site-specific, dedicated interpreters stationed at;.

high-ryolume.District Offices for scheduled blocks pf time during regular.work
,  .hours, as described.lh Section 3.5:2.6 belbw"".;

3*:5.- 'Siie-Specific Dedicated] Interpreters

'3.5.1. The Contractor shalhprpvide up to'pne, hundred and ten.(1.10) hours
.  p'er .week"of 'dedicated blpcR-^s^chieduled ori-site interpTefeirs,-whp-m

:be s'tatLpned buring regular-work hours as identified :in..Section 3.5.2:6.

3,5.2.' The Contractor shall .collaborate with pepartment:staff to,ensure the.
interpreter's* itirrie is" oT I^axifh'um be"nefit 'by Providing'' bi-Ji_ngual
isuppprt services when direct face-tb-face. inteTpreiatibri services are
po.t heeded.., Such suppoii'.may include but is not limited, to: ^

.3.5.2:1.- Placing phone callsxri behalf of Department siaff.

(3-55".2, ■'InTerpretihg' .tefephpne messages received on-site and at
otherlbcatipns; ■

3:5.2.3. Reading arid interpreting written materials'for Department
r  Staff:

3.5.2.4. Translating written imaterials ,(if the, interpreter is also,.a
qualified translator).'

■. :3.5.2;5. The Departrnent \wHI conduct a-p.eriodic reassessment of on-
site interpretation needs .every six (6) months-and reserves
the right to change ■ the allocation of languages and
interprefer'hours upon a- ithirty (30) day' written'advance
notice to.the :Contractor. The Contractor shall ens^" aff

•  _ ' ■ ■ 1 ■
RFP-2^22;bcqM-oVcqi^^^^ Contraaor Inllials.- > ^

, "7" 7 \ " 5/iV202^. ■
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have.jtie ability to wpht al other locations on' a short-term
■' basis'.as requested by the .Department, when.the volume of

interpretation rieeds-within the specified district-office jsmot
suWdent to warrant the specified fult-time equivalents oj if a
shor;t-lerm;need arises'at a different location.

,.3.5.2:6. The following !s the'anticipated allocation pf the.total of .one
hujidred arid ten;(T'1p) Block-scheduled hqui^ per week for-

■  the period July i, 202.1 - June 3p; 2023, across^iriultlpie
.  locations: " . •

Manchester DO. Soulhern'DO Concord DO' "Thayer OHE

^Spanish . 35 hours ,35 hours N/A

Swahiii/Kirundi/

Kinyarwanda.

lO'hburs N/A lOh'ours

V-i

Nepali 10: }\\ I

American Sign;
Lanquaqe .  r; -

10 hours

:3;6; Translatipn.Seivices'
;3.'6.1. The Contractor shall translate written materials for the ^Department

withiri''5-10 business: days, unless otherwise requested Ijy the'
pepartnient; which include but are ri ot.limited to:-
3.'6.^'l.: Fbrrris;.
3.6',t.2. .iBxOchures, . . ■ "

3:6..r.3T Documents'as requested, from Englisli to .other-languages;
,.j :(ihcfuding"Braiil8).*

3.6.1.4.- 'Eligibjlity rTiaten.als submitted by applicants and clients:-
3.6.1:5:, -In .the event of; 'cancelatioh by the .Department; -. .the

^Cohtractor'shaircharge'oriiyTor .work that has aiready;been
•cpmpJeTed.

'3.6.2". The Cpniractpf shall prpvide translation services for written materials
as follows: ' .

3:6.2/1. .Source.-fexf is. prepa/ed for 'translation (if -.dqcurrieht is
editable; translator works,;within the' source Hie or within a
iWord fiiexpnverted from the original, or document contents,
may be extracted'Jnfb a bijinguaj two-column formal^

3.6.2.2- . .Department staff- can be consulted for answers to any
lerminolpgybrformat.questions; *-OS

te

' i'

R.FP-2p22-;OCO.M-0.1;CpMMy-d
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3.'6.2.'3- A translatortrahslate"s.the text/

Vv li

3:6,2,4.- Translated textJs reviewed by^,an editprj- .

'3.6,2-5; A secondrtranslator proofreadsjthe transfalion If needed: ' J--
3;6.2\6, The. first trahsiatdf Veviews/acceptsTaddfesse^^ any/

corrections; ..

■' .3:6.2.7;,. .■project rnanagement checkS' for basic errors: "fe;g.,
.misspelling,, number errors.- •omissiphs. '-^awksy'ard, page-
breaks;' character display)'and.ensures that everything is in

•,v " ' order; ' v
■  t. • • , 'v

,  3;6:2.8; 'if .ifinal document proofing is'needed, Contractb? graphics.1 '
,7 team places.-the text' irito its. finarTjormat and; the-first

;  ̂ translator reviews'lhe''final fbfmat.>to.be sure'text-displays .
r.' . correctly; and: - . . i'. -

3j6/2;;9-. project ^management delivers the p,rpjej:l' oa, tiirie .'and
■'according to'Department expectations.'

ft

'■i

_  4..T

4. 'Scope of Services -..Gneyance & "Appeals Process and Client'Satjsfactipn
[Surveys

4:1. The Cbnlractor shallensure blie.nts have the righttolile a.complairit or grievance
and have such reports reviewed withjnrthree i(3} days, .unless "the cpmplajn
directly inripacts the health iand weilness of the individual, in .which icase the
,cornpiain.t.rh.us.f berreviewectvvithjn twelve!(i2)'hpurs. All,report must be.seni to
the b,epart}nent;Wi,^^^ . .. .

;.-.i '4.2. The C'ontractoKshali conduct client satisfaction surveys to measure/customer "
satisfaction, and, provide .them tofthe department on fa'm'bnthly basis, and as
requested. The'Contraclprbhall-mpnitoi the-competency, confidentiality,:and ■.
co'nduct.of sert^ices by:\ '
■4-.2/1. Sending' Department staff, who 'work.with' Interpreters .^an 'overall

satisfaction survey yiea mobile application upon the cornpletipn,.of the
scheduled appointmeht '

4.2.2. , ^Sending at minimum a monthiy. Survey Monkey>urvey to clients and
, customers to co/nplete, which includes a sta.terhent;thatajl res:p_pnses

.s; willTemain.anonymoUslf'the clientselects this-.option:,
s:: '4;2.3. Providing'the option to utilize a smiley face index survey, if needed.

A2A' If ;th^e. client request, providl.ng'the"pptipnrto caH clients, on a rnjnirnum
•• of once a month."

4.3. The donfractorshall report anyclienfconcerns or/complaihts-to'the Department
.... iWithIn vthreg'K?) business days'fpf receipj. The gpntractpc ishall -he

■  RFR-2022-dG6M-Oi-C6MMU-bl-A62" 'Contractor lniiials_S—^ ;
.. T' r ' ■ - ■ V. ; - • 5/l/,2,Q2.4
Ascehtria Community'Services,"inc.' Pagej13 6f-22' , Date.
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V,i *\f.

I'Lvitf

Departmeril'lmmedlately if any cljent-scheduling and
work to, find a mutually agreeable solution. The.Contractor shall:

.4;ll. Monitor all, surveys.and ensure-conectiveiTi'easures'are taken with"
-■v interpreters and staff as necessary.! i .

".4.3:2. Ensure concerns of'-a iqualitative mature'-are: handledi by either the
;Contractor's ""Quality" ' Assurance. Coordinator or program: .

■f.; nianagement.
.4,3.3; .PrpyTd'e individuals wTth concerns/complaints .with access to different, ..v.

■' ' levels, of management if they'feel their concerns/cornplaintsare not
being acldressed. ' '

4.3..4,. Ensure, mariagement; .investigates each complaint to determine if
there are measures that can be taken to mitigate the reoccurrence'of
the Uhsatisfactory orunacceptable experience; within thirty (30) days-, j,.
Cf.-receipt.o.f the complaint.

:4;3.5., Report alhcbncerns/compjaints to the .Department .within three- (3) „
business "days of receipt and nbtify-the Department immediately^ if
cjientached.uling issues or conflicts arise: ... - r

'  . ss*

.5,- Exhibitsjricqrporated' *
5.1. Th¥CohtractoTshall useahd-dis"d6'se Protected Health Information in compliarfce

,i^with„ the" Standard.s''for Privacy^of Individually Jdentifiable Health Iriformatlon - k"
'' ' (Prtvacy Rule)' (45CFR Parts 160 and 164) 'undefthe,Health Insurance Pprtability

and/'Accouhtability ^^ct (HIpAA) of 1996/and. in accordarice-with the attached ,
Exhibit i, B.uslness.AssocialeAgr.eenienl; whi'ch has'been executediythe-'parties:"

";5.2: The GontractpriShalJ manage alf confidential d.ata related to this Agreement In ■.
.... accordance.with th'eTe7m"s"of Exhibit'K, DHHS Irifdrmalioh Security Requirements-. "

5;3../The'Contractor .shall comply with; all Exhibits Q-through; K,; which .are attached ■
-heVeto and incorpprat'ed by reference.herein. . ; -v '

;6; Reporting RequTremehts. ■"
--- 6.1, The-Contractor shaif submit progress' reports'to the" Departrheh't on =a quarterly

basis, and as requested by theQepartment,, The reporl format will be provided to
the Contractor after the effective .date of Agfeement.The report sha![ inc[ude, but, •
is.,notTimited to:

■  6.'l?1. Project outcomes.
^  6.'1.2. Benchmarks reached.-

6.'1:3. Barriers to reaching benchmarks and solutions to barriers experienced in
•?: the previo.us;quarter.,

6.1.4. SuWeyscompleted/ *•

: . • / ^' . • " . . . . R&
RFP.2022-OCOM-Ol-COMMU-Or-A02 - ^ Contractorlnitials

^  V.1/2.024 ;• .
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7^

!6.1?5. -Service encounters or transaction provided by this Agreernerit .
f}.' .. . . ,

'7; Performance Measures '

■7:.X. The Contra'ctor:shail achieve the following;outcornes and be; reported for eVery'six
. . (6) monlhiperibd:

. 7^1.1. Individuals served indicate their communication access needs were met
as\evidenced by ninety pe/cent (90%)-of individuals surveyed reporting .
they are satisfied with the interpreting'.services.

. ■ 7.1 .'2. , Departmeht staff repori^-they are.able .to appropriately serve individuals
j  with.cdmmunicatipnaccess needs as evidenced by ninety percent (90%)

of .btaff surveyed reporting that the contractor appropriately, delivered-^
V. services.

7.1.3.- .Departcnent staff have the translated written materials.they need to serve
•clients. effectively, as. evidenced ^'by staff-receiving ■ the requested
translated .materials m thetarget language within fourteen (14) calendar'

■  days, niriety percerit (90%) of the t^^ "V'
7.1.4. Spoken larlguage service capacity Is consistently, maintained ;as

ey,id.(Bnced'..'by riihety-five percent .(95%) of Departm.ent's ;su.brnrtte.d
Jntefpretatipn/compurijcatipn access\being fulfilled directly, or through a
rnutually ■ agreeable alternative • provided by. the" Contractor. This '

•'performance me'dsure applies tcT requests that are. submitted, at.'least 5
• cale.nda[:-days Jri.-ad vanc^ pf the* requested, date.,

7,.1.5!. Interpreting se.rvice capacityl,s;corisjslently maihTa1^ evidenced',by.
niriely-fi.ve':percent''(95%) of Departrpents/'Spbrhitted^
"ihtefpretatidh requests, being fulfilled ,;directly, or through ;a' mutually
agreeable alternative' provided, by ihe Contractor. This perfprmarice

^  ' measure applies tq..req'uests that aretsubmitted at least 10 caleridaYdays
In advanc'e oTthe requested date.

7.1.6. The Contra'ctor,shall.actively and regularly collabprate with the Department to
enhance contract managemerit. improve results.- ^and adjust program delivery
.and poJiCY based on,suc,cessful outc.dmes,'

7.2, The'Contractor'shali provide, other keyidata^and metricsrto"the" Department,
including .client-level demographic, coordination performance, satisfaction-
performarice, and relevant service data,-as requested by the Department'.

„,7;3., yvhere .applicable, ,the Cohtractoi; ishail collect and share data with ,the
Department In arfo.rmat specifie'd by the Department. . ' & ■

7..1.lBackgroundiChecks "

RFP.2b22-OCOM-0'l-:COMMU:01-A02 ■ . " " Contractor Inilials-.
if?

.  r- • -V, . 5/1/2024
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1- 7.'1 '1. Prior to permitting ariy.mdividual to provide services under.this!
Agreement, the;Contractor'iT)ust.ensure that said individual has .
undergone: . .. ,

. A crirriinal backgrouhd check,, at the Contractor's expense, and
j.jj, has no. convictions for crimes that represent evidence of

•  ' - , ■ behayipr ^that could ^enda^■9er .individuals served under this
• Agreenrient;

y. ' .. ■ 7.1.1 r2-. . A name search of the Department's Bureau of Elderly and Adult':
.  - ■' Services (BEAS)'State Registry, pursuant to RSA16-1-F:49, with,

results indicating no evidence of,behavior that oould endanger
indjviduals isJerVed underlHis Ag'reemerit; and

7.1.1.3. A nartie search oi.the Department's Division for.ChiFdren, Youth,
.  .. and 'Families (DCYF) Central .Registry pursuant to IRSi^ .169-

'  C:35, With results indicating ho evidence of behavior that could
endanger indiyiduals served under this. Agreement.

7.2. Confidential Data

•7.2:1:1. The eoritmclpr Imust meet^a iriforroatiOn security and :privacy
"  requirements as'set by the Department and in accordance ,with the

• •• . Department's Information ■Security Requirerrients; ExhllD.it as
.Tefdrenced belpyy:

•n ' ' ' ■""" • «' • ^ ^ ^ ' , .. . . ". . .
•/.' 7.2.2. The Cdntr;actor must..ensure any individuals involved .in deliyering-

V  services throug'h'this Agreernent.contract sign an .attestation agreeing
■  to access,, view, stoTe.'ond discuss Corifidehtiai Data in accordance,

with fdderal .and state laws and regulations and'jhe DepartmenVs
V  ' . ;iriformation Security iRequirements= Exhibit. The Con.ti;aclor. must

■.ensure:-s,aid Individuals ;have^.a;iusti'hable business .nOpd to: access,
confidehtiaf data, the ConYracior must pcoyid.e

/Department.re.quest

j■ s 7.3; Department OwnedCeylces, Systems and Network
7.-3.1. . irContractor Ind, Users, detine.d in. the Departhrierit-s Jnformatton^

if ' 'Security ■Requirements, Exhibit that is incorporated iritO; this
Agreement, are authprized by the Department's.Informatiori Security
Office to use ;a Department, issued device (e.g. computer, tablet,'

. mobile telephone) or access the Department network in the fulfilment
of thjs Agreement, each End User nhtist:
7.3.1.'1. !Slgn and ..abide by applicable Department 'and N.ew

Hampshire .Department of jnformation Technology (NH
DpIT) ose agreemehts, policies, standards, procedures
■and guidelines, and complete applicable trainings as
required;

w
RFP."2b22-6c6M-0i-G'6MMUO1-A^^ . -/ Cohiractor Initials LV

'  5/1/2024. .
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7.3, Use the informatlpn that they have perrnjssion to access
''' solely for conducting'-bfficial Department business and

agree ;ihat all other use or access is strictly forbidden
including, .but nolJ[mited. to personal or other priva.te and
noh^Department use, and that at. no time shall '.they
access br atternpt't0:'access irifbrrnation iyvithout h'aying

I  f the express aulrtbrlty of the Department to do_so:

7.3.1.3". ., Not access:or attempt to, access informaiion in a manner
incpnsistent witm the approved policies,^ procedures,,
and/or agreerhent relating to syistem entry/access;"

T.3,1,.4/ Not copy,;share. drsVribute, sub-license,^ modify, reverse
engineer,:, rent, or. sell-.:S9ftware licensed, developed, or
being evaluated by the Department, and at all times, must
,use utmost-carpto protect and keep such software strictly,

'  confidential in accordance with the license or .any pther
'  agreementexecuted by the Department;;

-7:3:1.5":, Only- use 'equipment software, or isnbscnptro:n(s)
r'. authorized by 'the Pepartment's Jnformation. Security.

Office brdes1grie'e;t - S

7:;3:1X^- install non-standard software on any DepartmenT
,  equipment .unless authorized by, the' Departmenl's-

'lhfdrmati6n;Securlty.0ffice or desighee;

t;3l.7r.;., -Agree that email and other electronic cbmmuriicatibh.
I?." rnessagesxreated, sent,'and received on a Pep'artrnent-.

.• h:... . issued email systerh are the property of the Departm^^
of New. Hampshire and to be" used'for business purposes"

*■' pnly^:; Email 4s. defined'as "internaLemall systems" 'or
.  "Dbpartmeht-fuhded email systems."

•' ',7;3!l..8..,. Agree that use; of email must follow-'Departmentand^NH..
ppIT policies.iStandards, and/or:guideline,s; and

«  7.3i1.9.. Agree wh"eh utilizing'the Department's email system:

7.3.1.9.1. To ^bnly use a Department email address"
assigned to; them \ ^ with a
alliate.pHHS/NH,Gbv"-. '

7.3.1.9.2. include in, ;the signature lines- information
identifying the.,End User as a non-Department
workforce merhber; and ^

.>• . ■ _ r/.; '
7.3.1.9..3. Ensure" the ifoilbwing confrdentiality notice'is,

.o embedded underneath the signature lif^o? ■'
«  [M'

;RFP.2022^O.COM:0ixC.OMMU;01-A02t Contractor. Initials
,  -5/172024.
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5^

•''ivi-'::

.CONFIDENTIALITY-NOTICE^ .This message, may.
contain information that is privileged and confidential
and is'.intended onjy for the use.of the individuals)^
to whom it is addressed.^ If you feceiye this message''

" in error, please notify the-sender immedi.ately'and
.  ■ , ■ i .. ■ .deletethls electronic'message and any attachments.

«  »• from your system/Thank/pu forlyour cooperatipn.".

•  ̂7r3T.1p. Gon'tractor'End Users with'a Department Issued email,
access or potential access'to Confidential Data,; and/or a^
workspace in a Department buildinj/facility, rnust:^

'  ' t , . . s « • .*
7-3J,1.p..1. Complete^ the,,, Department's Annual

,f ■ - . _ information Security & Compliance.
'  Awareness Training prior tdraccessihg,

vie.wing, handling,, hearing,' or *' „>
transmitting Department pats: or

>. Confidential Data'. ■

■7-3Lt--l5:2; Sign the .Department's* Busih.ess" U.ser
-  and Confidentiality Agreement and

.  ' Asset' Use Agreerrient, and! ihe ,NH
'  DdIT Departnn.ent wide Computer y.se ■

,  Agreement ,up6n. execution, ef vthe
Agreement and jannualjythereafter.'

7:3;iI.,\Q!3'; pnl'y.access;the Department"s\intranet,
■  ' ' % to view the Department's Policies .and

Procedures and Information Security ̂
■  ■ ■ '. ■ webpages. . ^ >

7.3.T.1i . Contractor agrees,' if. any-End User iMound to .be; in
violation, of-any of the above terms and conditions, said

^  • End .User-may face .removal from the Agreement,.and/6r' ■ n
. crirninal ahd/pf civil prqseciitipciV-if.the act.cpn^^^^^^
violation oflaw. •'

7:;3:.1.12j Contractor agrees, to notify the Department a minimum of
three busipe.ss days prior .to, any. upcoming- transfersior

w  ..terminations of End Us'ers who possess Departrheht
.Credentials and/or ba.dges orwhphave system privileges.
If End Users who ppssess.'Department credentials and/or

.  is badges or who have system privileges resiign or 'are
, dismissed wjtho^ Contractor agreps
'to notify thp .DepartCpont's Information SecurityOffice. or
Jdesignee irhitiediately. '■

7-.3":2.< Workspace,Reguir.emenl (T""''
RFR-2622T6COM-01rC6MMppi-A02 bbnlra.ctor.lnitials.L

hi'
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7.3.2.1.> If applicable! the Department will vypfk with Contractor to.
determine requirements for providing necessary
yyorkspace and State equiprnent for its Efid Users.

7.4. Contract End-6f-Life Trahsihoh Sen/ices

•7:4!i. General ReqCiirentents

,7.4.1.1:.

7.4:1.2.

7.4.1.3.

.vyj

7.4.1.4:

R/p.2022-OCOM:p1-CpMMU-p1-A02

Ascenlria Cc^inupily,Se'r>nces.Jric.'

If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the
AgreemenTthe parties agree to cooperate in godd faith to
effectuate aomodth secure transition of the Services from
the Contractor to the Departrnenf and, if applicable, the
Contractor'engaged by the Department to assume'the'
Services preyiously perforrried by the Contractor for this
section ''the new " Contractor ' shall be known as
"Recipient"). Ninety (90) days prior to. the end-of the
contract or unless othenvise specified by the. Department,
theXontractor hiust begin working'with the Department,
and If'applicable,-the new Recipient to develop a Data
Transition Plan (DTP). The Department shall provide the
DTP template to the Contractor. .>

'The Contractor rhust use reasonable efforts to assisTthe

Recipient; in ^connection vyith, the transition from the
■performance of Services by the'Contractor-and its End

■ Users .to the performance of such iServices. this may
include assistance with the secure transfer of records
(electronic and hard copy),, transition of'historical data
(electrohic and hard copy), the transition of a'ny'such
Sefyjce from" the hardware, software,, network and
'telecorhmuhication's equipment and ' intefhet-related
iriformatidh technology infrastructure Clhternal IT
Systems") bl^ontcactor to "the Iriternal IT{Systems of the

' R^cipient^' and ppoperation' with and .assistance to any
■ third-party consuitants- engaged by Recipient in
'connection with the Transition Services.

If a system, database, hardware, software, arid/or
.so^are'licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to
manage,' track, and/or store Department Data in
relationship to this'contract said Tools will be inventoried

•^and returned to the.Department, along with the inventory
:docucnent. ppce; transition of Department Data is
complete.

The. Iriternal plannirig'of the" Transition .SeAMces by the
Contractor and its End Users sKall be provid^w the
' ' ' ■/" . mContractor initials >■'

Page 19 of 22;.
5/1/2024

Date.^
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Departrrient and if applicable the Recipient in .a timely
'  ,•/ ^ ■ :manner;.Any such Transition'Services, shall be-deemed ..

totbe ServicesTor purposes of this Agreement;

.7'.4.f.5.. Shouldihe data Transition extend beyond the end of the
.  ' Agreement, the. Contractor agrees: that'the' Information

,Security .Requirements,- and, if .applicable,' The
"  Depa^rtment's Business Associate Agreement terms and

condjtipns remain in effect'until the'Data Transition iis
accepted as'complete by the Department.

•  • ' 3 7.4..T.6.- "In ihe" event 'where the Contractor has coniingled
,  2 ' ;n Department Data and the destructionp/Trarisifion of said

data is not feasible^, the Department and'Contractor will
_  Jointly evaluate regulatoryand professional standards'for'

retention requirements prior tpjdestructipn,.:vrefer'tp, the
•** terms fand ..conditions of the Departmentls DHHS

.  ' Information Security',Requirements Exhibit.

■. 7.4,2. Completion of Transition SeMpe^^
Each .s'ervi'ce; or Transition phase 'Shall -be .'deemed
completed (and rhe Trahsitioh process finalized) 5al the.
end^:'ofT5 business days after-the product, resulting frprn
the :Seivice, "isYde1ivered to'the Department' :and/or The

•  Repipient in accordance with the mutually agreed" upon
t/3jnilH9h;plaQ;:.uriless'wlth'in ^aidT.5 busines.s day.term'

,  - the Corilractdr ■notifies; the, Dep of^ian issue,
requiring,addilionafTime to. compiete said product. , ,

"V * ■ , 7!;4;2^2.; Once alj parties agree t]\e data has been niig^
.  . ■' Contractor will.h'ave^Sp days to'^destrpy the data per-the

.  terms. 'and conditions of .the;Department's jhformation,
-  . • , 'Seturity^Requiremejits Exhibit.

7.4.3. ■Disagreement.dver tfansiiion Services Results •
^  :7.4;3'.1!. In 'the event the'.Department js'not satisfied .with" the

results, of the Transition 'Sejyice, The Depalrfmenl sjiall
notify-the .Contractor, in writing, stating the reason for the
lack ..of,satisfaction within 15 business .days of .the final
pjoduct pr at any'tirhe during the data Transition process.
'The, Parties ;shall "discuss The -aclions to be taken to
resolve the disagreement.or issue. If anragreemen't is not
reached, at .any tjnne the Departoient shairbe^entitled to

' initiateiactionsin accordance with the Agreement...

.8. Additional Terms ^ ...

■  ■ " ■ ' , . fl6
.  ' RFP.'20h-OCbM-bT-CdMMU ; Contractor (nllials V

-• ' 5/1/2024
[Ascentria.Cofrimunity Seryices/tn^^^^^ Page20of22. ,
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Nevv Hampshire Department of Health,ahd Human Services
Communication Access Services

EXHIBIT B Amendment #2

to

■ <'l

6.1. impacts Resulting from Court Orders of Legislative Changes

i  The Gontracfor agrees^ that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation pr .court orders may have an impact'on the 'Services
described herein, the'State has theright to modify Service priorities'
and expenditure requirements' underlhis.Agreement.so.as.to achieve
compliance'therewith.

8.1.2. Credits and Copyright Owh'^rshlp ^

8.1.3, Aii documents, notices,'press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
preparatjpn ef this {report, document'etc.) was financed under a
Gontractwith.the State of New Harripsh'ire. Department of Health and;
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the. State of 'New
Hampshire and/pr such other funding sources, as were available or
requixed, e.g., the. United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

'8.T.4. All materials, produced or purchased under'thC'contract shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,

^distrrbu.tlQn or use. '■

8..1-.5. The .Deparirpent shall felain- copyright ovynership for any- and ell,
original materials produced,■including, but not.limiled to; ^
18.1.5.1. Brochures.

8.1.5.2;' Resource directories.- .v

.  ■ 8.1.5.3. Protocols or guidelines;

8;1v5.A., P,ostefs.
8.1.5.5. ' Reports;

8.1.6. The^Contractor shall not reprpducelany rnateriajs^produced,under the
c'ontract withe'ul pri.oT-wntten apprOvaTfrom" the D'dpartnhe'ht.

?. Record's

9.1. The Contractor shall keep records;1hat include, but are noflimited to:
9'.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data

evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
■■' Contractor lin the performance of the Contract, and all .income received

'or collected by the Contractor.

rj 'l9'T-2. All records must be- maintained Tn accordance .with- accounting
procedure's and practices; which suffLcienlly,and properly reflect all such

"  'costs and expenses, arid which are "acceptable to the Departrr^*oa'>ndibjhclude.'without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, ancj^g^ lal
'RFP-2b22-6c'pMO Conlrador Initials

' * . ^ - . 5^^^-2024 "
Ascenlria Community. Services, lhc.» Paoe 21 of 22 =-. Date

«•
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•DocuSign'Enverppe'iD: OC4456A7-7D98-4C0B-8p7E-A63709CE4ElC v.-.

New Hampshire Departmentof Health and Human Services'
\Cpmrf)unication Access Services

^  • EXHIBITS Amendment #2

7^.

vi' • evidence: of costs sOchias purchase-'requisitions and prderSj vouchers,
;requisitipns:fpr rna.terialSi invehtories.'valuations of in-kind contributions,
;iabor time cards, payrolls, and pthenrecords requested or required by
the Department. ' „

9.2. 'During the "teirn of this-Agreernent and the^period for retention hereunder, the
; Department, the United^taleSiDepartnhent of Heallh and Human Services, and
any of,.their designated, representatives shall ihave access to ,all feports and
records ■rnaihtainec! pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase-by. the Department

,  of the maximum number .bfvunits provided for'in 'the Agreement and upon
payrherit of the price lihiitation hereurider; the Agreemerit'anda.ll the obligations
pf the parties hereunder (except such obligations- as, by the terms'of .the

►nP/ : Agreement are,to be performed,after the.end of the term of this,Contract and/o'f
survive the. terrnihation Of the Agreehherit) shall terminate, provided .however,
that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall
disallow-any expenses claimed by the Contractor as posts hereunder the
Department shall retain the'fight, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as, are disallowed or to recover such sums from the'Contractorl

5?!

•j< . -'l

u

RFP,-2022-OCeW-Oi;cdMMU-p1^

•Asceniria Cbmmuhily^Servjces.lnc.' Page'22'of-22

.Contractor Initials •
-5/1/2024

Dale -
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FEB23'$2pm 3:10 RCVd
1

;Lorl A. Sblblficlif

CefnmjjtlQner '

'j; LorlA. Wwm ...

Deputy Cpmmfjsloitcr

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

. OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0330l,-3857 •
603-27I-9200 l-S00^S2-334S Ext. 9200

Fax: 603-27M912 TOD Accesi: i:800-73S-2964 www.dhhi.nh.'gov

U-

December 30.'ZO^I
«>t

His Excellency, Governor Chrisiopher T; Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State-House ^ ^y. j. ^ ^
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 ' v. '*-

re'questIeo ACtidN

*  Authorize-the Department oj Health and Human. Services. •Plvislon of Public meallh
Services, to amend an.e'xisting contract with Ascentria Community Services. .Inc. (VC#222201),
Concord. NH. to provide communication access' to cornmunily partners to'support COVID-19
services, by increasing the price limitation by $550,000'from $2,435,289 to $2,965,289 with no
change to:the contract completion date.of June'30. 2024, effective upon .Governor and .Council
approval. 100% federal Funds. ' •

The original contract was.approved by..Goverhor and Council on.June 16,-2021, item #8.

.Funds are available in the following accounts for'Sta'te'Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, .and
are anlicipaled to be;a.vailable,in State,Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of [unds'in the future operating budget;iwitK the authority tb adjust budgef line Items, "
withiri'the'pnce limitation and encumbrances lietween'state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
If fi'eeded and justified. • . . i::;

095^90-901010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOClALrSERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION, BUREAU OF POLICY,AND PERFORMANCE,
PH COVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES . .

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job:'
Number-

Current^
Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised,
. Budget

2022 074-500589 ̂
y

Grarits for.'

Public Asst

and Relief

TBD

$0 ■$550,000.
i

.  ■$550.,00D

Subtotal $0 $550,000 $550,000

i..
05-95-042-^220.10-79210000 Health .and Spcial'.Servlces, Dept. of Health.and Human Svs;,
HNS Human Services Div., Office pf.Health Equity, Minority Health/Refugee Affaiirs

Slate
Fiscal
Year

Class /
Account

Class Title 1
Job

Number ,
Current
Budget:

Increased
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised
Budget

i  ■ -i .  . .

L  ' r, , ,

The Dtparlmerit'of Htallh and Hiimon SeruUeTMiision'it lo/oin communltict and fomi'lica^
.in pwuUtiiig'opfkirluiiUietforeUueiTs to.achieve'hcbllh^iCd indepcmUiite.
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'  His Excellency, Govert>or Chrisiopher T. Sununu .
. -'and theHonorabidCoun^
.Page 2 of 3

2022 102-50J)731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
Various

.58.11.763; $0 .-$811,763

2023: .'102-500731
Contracts for

prog Svc
Various

S811..:763 $0, $8'li;763

.r

2024 ,102-50073.1
Contracts for

Prog Svc
Various.

$811.763. $0 $811,763.

j

Subtotal $2,■<(35,289 $0 $2,435,289

r *  - Total ' 12,435,289, .$550,000, $2,985;289,

?  EXPLANATION.

The purpose of this; request is for the Contractor to provide communication access to
cofnmuoity partners to support health equity work related to C0V1Dt19 services. The Contractor
willproyide.comrnunication access services to cprpmunity partners'that.iriclude: spoken language

"  Interpretation, American Sign Language, Certified Deaf Interpreters, Orarinterpreters. DeafrBlifid
Tactile Interpreters, Cued Spee.ch""lnlerprelers and Communication Access Real-Tirn.e Service.

The Contractor will provide will.services .to individuals who are Deaf, vytio have Hearing
i Loss, who experience Speech Impairments.'who may nol.speak English, have Limited English

Proficiency (L£P). and Braille'translation for individuals who are blind or who have low-vision;The
.population served includes residents statewide. ;

The cornrhunity partners, which iriclude non-profit prganizalions.'muriiclpalilies, and health
care, providers, will contact the Department to, request communication accesf for the purpose-of,
C0VID-i9 services and to'supporl health equity across the State. The Departrneni will work with
the Contractor and the community paftner'tb ensure .communication access-is available.

■The Department .will.,rnonito''r ^contracted services using 'the following performance
.measures: ' '♦ ■

•  Individuals served'felirtheir'cbrhrnuhicatioh access needs' were^mel as evidenced
by 85% ,of responses reporbhg satisfaction.

"> .Depa/tmerit staff fpel th!.ey are able , to appropriately serve individuals with
communication access need^'as evidenced by 85% of pepa.rtment_staff'survey
returned responses reporting lhat ihe coritractor appropriately delivered services'

•  Departmentstaff.have the .translated.wrltteri.materialsthey.need.in order to-serve
clients effectively as/evidenced by translation requests, being fulfilled within 14
calendar days at least 90%'of the time.

■  • Comrhunicatioh Access service capacity_is consistently maintained as evidenced
by 95% of OHHS' suBmiiled Inlerpretaiidh/communicatiori access requests are
fulfilled.br a mutually ag'reeable alternative Is^provlded by, the, selected vertdor.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the original agreerrient, the parties have the option to" extend
the agreement for up to three (3) additional ;years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
se^nrices. ayaliable. funding^ agreement of.the parties and Governor and Council approval. The
PeparfjTi.fnt'.s not.exercising itS'Oplipn to /©new aj this tImeV m, t,.

'Should the Governor and Cpuncii'npl authprize, this request partners comnriunicatlon
access services may be .unavailable to indlYidual.s^rTiost iri;nee3,pf C.oyip-19 seivices who.may

S- -



Docusign Envelope ID; 38A2770F-F2F9-4585-B6D5-CCB799E72AD8

pocvSign 3E320F3O^B&^S8l>M8A-6853868Ce08A
•  • "r-;. . V;

His ExceBency, Governor Chfcstopher T. Sunuftu
Vftd U>e"HonoraQto CouncB ♦.<

P3ge''3 of 3

;not speak English, have limited English proficiency, are deaf or have hearing loss. Further,
individuals may nof be able to .access valuable information available through public .forurns.

•; .conferences, :and/or events sponsored by the Department. Additionally,, emergency
•v/ ■communication .bulletins may not reach those most in-heed of the emergency alerts; Lack of

communication access services violates^ federal 'civil ' rights .laws, which require ^thal
■commuhicatidn assistance be provided for individuals who need it'.

•  •

.  '.Area servedrStatevvide ' . • H -
Source of Federal Funds:.Assistance.lisling Nurribe.r.#93.39l;.FAlN #^I^H75OT000d31 ^
In the everit that the Federal Funds become no longer available. -peneral Funds .will.not

be requested to support this program^.
Respectfully submitted,

-  /-

—pwuieMflbr

■/IiaJL H".';
— nSAU'EbWDW-.

Ann Landry

Associate Commissioner

r,'.

fj".. i'.'
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n
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v,>;

"■ j " Slate of New Hampshire
»  i Department of Health and HumanlServlces ~ ""c^ . ,

Amendment #1

'This Amendment to the Communication Access Seryicesicontraci is by and be^een the State pf New
Hampshire. Department of 'Health and Humari Services ("Stale" ,:or;"p.epartmenr) and Ascentiia
Community Services, Inc. ("the Contractbr"). . '

'  vyHEREAS.'pursuaht to an agreement (the "Contracr) apprbved'by the Governor and-Executiye Councij
on June 16. 2021. (Item U 8). the Contractor agreed'to perform certairTiservices'based upon the terms and
conditions specified Jn the Contracland in consideration of certain sums specified; arid

; WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17. the "Contract may.be amended
' upon written agreement of the partie_s and approver from the Governor and Executive Couricil: and

WHEREAS, the partiesegr.ee to Increase the price limitation and modify the scope of servlcesto support .
continued delivery .of these services; and .v "• - ^ •'
N.QW THER^f^ORE, in consideration of the foregoing ahd'the rhutual "covenants and condiliohs;contained
in the Conlract^and set forth hereirii, the parties'hereto agree to arhend as follows:

}  "1-. 'FormP-a./.GenerarPrpyisipns, Block T.8. Price Limitation, to'read: ^ . . *
■  .$2i985.289

2- .Modify Exhibit.B. Scope of Services. Sectibn/l Stalbrnent of VVprk - General, by adding Subseclio.n
1.11 to read:''

1.11 The Cohlraclof shall provide communicafion access as descrjhecl'in Sections 2 and 3 to
■ii ' .communilypartners.tas approved by the Department, for the purpose of.suppdrting health equity

!vy.od< related to .C0>)lD-19 services., Communily partners may inelude, but are.nol limited .to;
^  i.11.1" Not-fortprcfitorganizations-. .

i.11.2 Municipalities. c. •

.. 1.'1^3 Healthcare providers." "Cj

3; Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services. Section VStalement of Work'- General, by adding iSubsecjipn
r.1.12toread:.

1.12 The Contractor shallicomply with al( Department tequiremenls, "policies, and,procedures
relative to infection prevention, mitigation, and cpnlrprtip mitigate the risks of.disease transmission,
prior to the commencement of services.

•  -

4. Modify Exhibit C. Payrriehl TerrHs,,Section 1.,lo read:
^ '1. This Agreement is'funded by:' r.,

■  l.'l. 23%. Federal founds from various sources. d,

j. 1.2. 54% General funds. .

.  1.3., 23% Federal funds from from the-New Hampshire Initiative to Address COVID-
19 Health Disparities, as awarded'on May 27, 2021 by the Centers for Disease

I'f Cpntrpiand Prevention, CFDA#93;391, FAIN NH750T000031.

.VI

^  >?

I;

'Ascentiia Community Services,'IrTc.-.
RFP-2022-OCOM« I -CQMMU-O I.-AD1

?•:

ASi;2
I  I > "

Page .1 of .3,
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OocuSlgn Ei'vbl^lD: 3&320F30-6pBS-4Sej>-94^.68S380aC808A

IN WITNESS yVHEREOF.^lhe:

^^.2/22/2022

Dale

sw.

•Stale of New Hampshire '
Department of Health and.Human Services.

D*ewS%na« ky:.

H".
~:4DAC37C0(1C(MI- ' ' V

Name: Ann h. landry
Title: '

Associate commissioner

2/21/,2022

Date.:

t
-Ascentria Community'Service's, Inc.,

70ae«SlQM4 »yi .

WjolL. ̂ ' .;.V
M1UCWM^C40C.. . ;

Name: Aimee MitcheTl

. Title:'"
Ch'ief Conwiunity Services:.Officer

i: i'-'.

r:

-•A

{:i

0-'..'

••5- h......
r*.v*

'Ascentria Cbmmurnly Services,' trie.

RFP.2022^0M-0»C6MMU-01-AOI

" ,A-ST:21i;

Page 2 [of 3 ^
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'DocuSlgn'^velope'lO: 3E320P3Or8q8S;4$ai>-948A-88S380BCe0BA ' >

The.precedirig Amendment,, having been.reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,,substance, and
execution. .

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERALfr.'

,2/23/2022

Date

-DMvlienMty;

Name: Robyri .ouan'no

'Title:" • ...
Attorney

( hereby certify that.the. foregoing Amendmeni was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the .State of New Hampshire at the^Meeting on: '(dot® of moating)

■OFFjCeOFTHE-SECRETARY OF-'STATE

Date Name:
Title;

7;':

C-: -"j

i:\' .'v

Tt
r  -n -'

if ' -

i'-'
' 'SS

• A-

Ji-f 'f/.

A' SI

Ascehlria Commuhily Inc.'
RFP.2022-dcbM^'l-COfliMU^O'l-Abl,

'A-S-^i!2 r.

Page 3 of 3
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N^y26!21 pH '3:'29RCOo

L<»H a: SMblnritf

&r^iy Camflritda w

STATE Of NEW H>^PSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES'

y<^mC£OAr//£ ^
I iV RltASANT STRtCT, CONCORO, NH'O

,^>ni-M06 i-soo-MHJMjeM/Woo
Fax: 603-}7M9i2 TC^O Accni: »v»*>«".dhh».nh;g®v

'-*1 rr

t'ft

r-^-i

.Jr May 25.J"Q2i' ■
Hi$.Exce[lehcy, Governor-ChrisjppheY T; Sunun . ... ' F'
. apd .the Honorable Council
Slate House , tj, ,
.donOort, New.Hamp6.hire-0330.! ' , t

REdbeStED'ACTION Ci

y :Ayihofize1he.Departrnenl of He'eirh and.Hyrnan Se^j^s; Office of the Cpmmi^fpneri jo
.lent'eKinloa corilra'ci.witfi AscVntria.Co'nirhuni^^ Se^icos; inc. (yd# 222201).'Coficord.,h/H ih the,
amount of $ 2,435,269 for siat^We"communication 'eccesVs'e^ with the option to"renew for
up toVthree;(3) additional years, effective u|^n.Governor and .Council epproVdl.jhroi>gh.June'30. ■
>2024-/28% Federal Funds. 72% Generel Funds. . ' -
r  it, ■

Funds ere enti^paleid Ip..be,ayail8ble.jn;$iele Fiscal.Yea.rs 2022,:'2023; and 2024. upon/
~'tKe availabilily-and continued,appropriation.pl.-funds in the..future operaiiog budget, 'with the

■ authonty.to adjust budgel;linp Items s^l.thlnjdie; price lirnitallon'and encumbrances .betwe.en state
'fiscatyears-thrp'ugh.theBudgejpffiM -
.d5;95-04i:422010-7M pp^t., of Health: and Hurnan.SyG., ■
HHSituman S0rv.lcesypjy,,;pffice of Health^gujty, .Mi.nbrjty He_aith/R^fugee;

, - State. 7
'Fiscal year

,;Clas07 , if
, , vAccouht

"  ci6ds;titip ' Job Nurhbier Total Ajtiourit,

2022 V02-500731 .Conj'racts7br:Pr6g'$vc 'Various .$811,763

.202'3 ■Vo2-^7.3'1;;|^. Coniracts'fpr Prpg'Svc •Various $8n;.763'
i:2j)24- Ib2-500M:-' Cpnjracts Syc Various

*i*7 ' " . . vSubfofe/ 'S2^435,289

r:.

EXPLANATtON. u'

The purpose of this reguest.is'fbr aiaiewide.cb.mmuhicatibh/dccess services fbr'ihdlviduals
^whp correspond with the pep.ailment who^ared^Lhaye hearirig'toss, are blind, have low vision;
i.lipeech j.nr)p3irrne.nt5, d.p.no,l speak English.rpchave'LimjledVEngitsh ^ oddiiion;
jhiS" requesl ls'Jor cprnmuriioatiorf accp.ss, se'fyl«s"forpepa"rtmenl staff, to ensure employees,of

i.iho .'DopaHmenr 'cb'rt'pom with client's jhal/'cprlres^^ ,wlth the Dep~artrn;eni'.. This
Oepariment staff' seeks services, that include, but iaVe .not limited to',- telephone I'ser^'ces.

.!;trans[a\iondfwiriltenm'8terlais.and:ih-pef6ph'«M /• ''
The' Contrwlo'rVvvill^brvice; individuals '.who.'are Pe'af; who' :heye.'Hearin ,''who

experiehce.'Spe'ech lmpalrrnents.:.whd may.fwt speak-Goglish'. have."Llrhlied English .Proliciency

-a

j7T)i'0t^/ln>r/ii o///ro/iA oiit/.r/iimoii'Sc/vricriiArriuioti UjoJoiu cootniunitUi'onit fomilitr
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..'i

r.- 'W ■ 1?

■:k (LEP), end Bfaitle translalidn for'indiyiduals.whp'ere^blindprv^o have Ipw-vision. Thejpppulation
'■ 'sajvedjnclypesresid^^^ • . " ■

The'Conlraclor vvill provide IniWprolalio.n'and jrenslatibri services in.muUipie iocalions'Ip
_ciirrent and ppiahiiaVwsiorri.ers^of Ihe DepartrnenVincluding If^e-public who..aUend Depai^rr>ent-.'
"^spon'sored public; fiairns, oV'^who recelye bapartmenl'-public bfoadcasls or 'e/rierQen^,
;commuhications. The Contractor wiJI continue ip prpvnde.services that Ir^ude: sp^en" language
•iniefpretetroh". American Sigh LanguagVCertifiad Deaf ihterpreiers. Oral Interpreters,-Oeaf-Blind
Tactite jnt'erpretersVpOed Speech. Interpreters and Communication Access-ReaJ-Tlme Service.
These services'erisure 8..uhlform .end compreherisiye approach fpr ell indiwduais to experiencemeaningful occes>.lo;0epartmenl^lnfo.rm8))pn.-prpgrams and services;

the .Cohlractor wll!'.provide ^servlces-ilhai are uhderstandalJle. and .respectful. In a.
fespoh'siye manner,■ for individuals -wiih diverse'culluraj.^health .beliefs artd 'practice, In (h_^ir
preferred'larigulget'^lh prdferre^jnterpr.eters; The 'Contractor.consistenlly responds to.urgenl •
nebds 'fpr .cprnmunicalion access",across ihe.'Ocpaftmentr- .end 8.ctlyely,.coiiaborBtes' .wilh. the.,
bepartmenl to .ensure forms ahd documahts received/:in. languages, ojher than English-are
•jfa.nstated In a'limely maltn'er.,

The 'Departmeni will monitor ,;cbntractecl serylce^s .using the fbllpwing' perfornnance

IndV'dua's served feet their, corrimyn'Kaiipn acce^ npiab's Were
'by*85%!dVr0sponsBSfed^^^^^ 5.

■'■.bepe'dment staff ifeel ihey arej/ible^-to" appropriaieiy ""serve Individuals ■^ih.
dommunicalioo accdss; "netfds as evjde.nced by 85%-pf.D0p8rlmeht staff survey'

'  -returnedfasjiVhsesfeiforting'thajihe..cfihtrabfgrappfopriaiejy^dal'veredservices: -
"r ^ Ji\ beparimeht staff have the .translate'd written majenais.'thay nejjdjn order tg serye

;^ig^js'^ff^ctjveiy.as:e'\Hdenced .by-;ira"n^ being'tyiflHed wihln 14
carendardays at.least

•  Comrhuhicalion A"c<»ss;s"eryice;C0pa6tyts wnsistenlty maint^^^^^
;byi'95% of PHHS;submilie:d ;inWpceia.liph/commy^^^^
tyifilled.ror a.'rhulually agVe.eablei elterrialive'is,provide^ by'lhe.sejectedvendor::'

"the 'Departmenl-.selecled .the' Cdhiractpr thr^gH a^.cornp'efiliye ,bid ,proc'ess\using'.'a ■!
lBequesl)for>ropp50is'..(RFP) tha.l'Waf "posted .oh ih^ pjsiqarlmenfs vyebslte fforr* ■1.2/23/2020.;(hrd"ydh2/2/202l'.^ThePeptii'pbnt recejvedi6ne(1):res^hW"lhat'^,
lalieam.of quaiilied iodiyidw^^^

■As referenced In "Exhibit'AxI'!hB^aTlach8d.conyact;.;the parties Have the";option; to extend
ithe agreement'" for "op' fe iftre© •(3^>d3[i^poal ;yeafsrcdn'lin9erit upon'satisfactpry" delivery of
iservices, available.fundingla^raarnem and Council approval.'

;Should the Icbvisrhbr ̂ and Cour)cil noI.euthbHze jhjs fequ.est, commuhicalibn eccesl
'services may .W^navallable^td iridWdiialC mos.l' in ;h'0o/pl t)epartrH .wpo may f>otfspeak"" English,' havb'limlled English ■p>biiclency.j:a;re'dda^ .have h.earing IpssV further.;
imdiyjduais (may .noi be able^to'access w^a.lo8bi0"' inl,biTh"atipn" available-through public fprurns,

•  itb.r>ferences'and/dr.evenis sponsored:by.me;Dep'artniem._ Xastty."omergency..communlcation ^
AtilleHns im'ey npi reitch .those most In n"efd"ofThe; :ejrnefgenpy."elftrts.. Leck..d.(5confiipyrli<;^11on,-i , fbcce5*s se'ivices" viol^^^^^ .rights iaws/which-rec|ulre;[h pssi^ianpe.b'e.

tp; 'p7p.vided for irtdividuajs

rir-;

measures:-

y.

i-'A

m

.  -• •t
■■HlsE*cbDvK:y..Oo'i«rnor"Cnrtsloph«f

■  end thb HotJoreWfi Cound.i ..
;rt9p-2.of3." -.J -

y.i

•rK

u

'.y.u

1: ' ■ h ■ /n
'C'U '

■.-i • ^



Docusign Envelope ID; 38A2770F-F2F9-4585-86D5-CCB799E72AD8
:••• I „ •%/

fi '

V-:

3; -'l-'

'C.'
5' Hli,Ciapan^..Govfl|rnbr ChHjlophe/'T. Sunufto

onJjl'l^'MbriOfBble Couricli^
.'P,00O3 Of'3

rV- V

.Area seived; Sl8je,wide

:Sourc« of fyndSM28% F^eral Funds. iEind'72% ijenei^i Funds,
inthe e'vent ihal^h^Federiaj f^unds.becd/rie nC-lpnge'r ayaiiaWe. edOillonal GeneraCFunds

"U

Resp^cttully submiited]

".i:

-.i ^fci KiMhuoAil J/ >;

'  * ?•*

;;i •Loff A.",Shiblnette

'^mrnissioner
•r • It: -

>i-. I:. Vi/' A" .'H v'lr

'■ if, •
vr, ,*

'  v, ■ i..
•I .. •>■ '

'h r- '■■■''
ti s;

h

h>;;

v« .r ■<;'<
'■ ■/• r.^ i<

r;i

\  ■

7.'

"  2,vi; w4r>. >>• f^l . !•(:-?! , <■')
■  ■ v-:. ■ ?.3 "

-'T '

.  . • ?.••
'  ' ' ' 4 ' .

r*v
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?•-

<ir

STATEPF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF [NTO.RMATION TECHNOLOC.Y

27 Hoicn Or, Concord. NH 03301 '
Fax: ,60>27M516 TOD Accto; 1-60O-735-29M

■ wwu'.nh'goy/doil •

u

c.- ^Dcnls Coul^l
Conintissioner

»•

'li

i!'

'Cori A. SKibincnc, Comiriisiioncr
Depaninehi orHeolih and Human Services
' Siolc of New Hampshire

129"PI^«ni'Sircei .
Concord, NH 03301 "

May'25, 2021

DcarCdm'iiiissibhcrSiiibiriciie:
t-

This lettcrrepfecnis formal.noiificatibn ihnf ihcDcpnrtmcni of Infonnaiion Technology (DblT)
lias approved ybufflgcncy'sYequcsJ to emcr ihio a coiurocl.u'iih Asccniria Comniuniiy Services^Inc. (VC#.
■222201) as described bclpvvnndTcrcrcnccd as'DolT No.2021 -072.'

.This is ayrcqucsl tdcmcpiriio ah ogYcemc'ntiopfdyidc DHHSwiih cpinmuhicatidn access
scr\'ic«."Thc',ycndor will provide a ccmralizcd appoiriimchl scheduling sysrcm' ihor is
nccessed,.vio a secu(^^web;por(al for tndiyldunlsVho correspond with Ihe Depn'rimcni and. ■
who arc deaf, hnying hearing Ip'ssl arc blind, have low vision, have speech injpoiriucnis.^do

' norspcak ilnglish.o'nd hJfvc Liiniied English Pfpnciehcy (LEP).

.  ,Thcompunrofihec6nirpci.isnpiiocxcccdJ2,435;2.89.00,cnd"sWnir|>ccoinccn"cciivcup6h
the datc'oT.Gpvefnof nnd Exccuiiyc.Council. npprpval, through Junc;30,'202-1.

'  . "1 " " ■ ■
A.copyorihis'letier should acconipany.ihc pepphinem of Hcalih'and Hiiirian Services' sub'mtision

lo:thc Governor ft r.opprovftl.
.Cf . ' . V'

S>nCcrcly,

Denis Gould

DC/kaf
DolT;#202.lt072 ''

^RID; N/A

.cc;, Michael WilHainSi IT Managcr. DolT
-  'a

i'r.

:,T

r;-'
•S'

s-i

v,^- •

'"//jnbvbfwf Technd/op/« Todoyfof Nfw Hompshirels Fomorrow"

"■-•i

I* ,

•:}; li;

I:;:
;'.i<

a
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- New Hemp'shjrc'Departmeni of Health anci Human Sorviccs
^  dffico'of Susiness.Oporations -

• ,Co'ntracts'4 Procuroment lini!
,  Scoring Sheet •

' j

K''

' CmmuniuTion Acccss'SHvicas-

•s

RFP-JOW-OCOM-OV^OMMU
RFPNano </ RFP Number

K <

Bldder^Namt; Paaa/F<D
. Point* •

Section 2.4

Actual

Peinta •2-:

..

Aa^entria CommuniCy Servicc« ns
•3,

.  2,0. Pata/Fail'
- Pelnu-

SacUon 3.S

Actual

Pelna

. ..

B50 .7)2 ■sV

■'vo .
f*

•*

■  5-0 ■ 7-

6-0 i'- '£■:
"  " .8.

... '■ M ^^0. %'<
■  ..j..

"

V's;
Vr'f

y

•S

.Jj

.  .35,

vr*

•

• -%;

*

./'A

J

l

fteviev>«f Namea

M* KnocijU. C^m>ems
Coofeina>» ^

-;jMh Marcbi^ Piegram'Spwi.lV.

fnrett ionea. A4tn4n.iV . ,

aura Mcdashan, Preorarn Spec.)')

... -tr

yi-i ■
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ft

Op<».SJ^^E^IopeJO':2Cra2224;ME):470A.-4FeF;AO^
KpMM NUiNlpER P-J7,penlon 12/11/2019), ,

SpbJCifi:_Coinniunlcoii6n AcccsV Sc^iccs, (RFP-2022-OCOM-P'^COMMU-6l j" V,,.

■•Notice: tjjl of its ariBchmeriis sHall.becomejpublic.upon wbmisiion'io Governor and'
.  -I^ccyiiyc Coiihcil .for ipprovBl. Wny i'nTormaliion.ihot is-private. confideniiol or p.rbpriei.ory must

bcclcirly'ideniiOed ip'iKe pgcncy nfTri ogrccd.ioin wriiing priorjio signing (htcooirBuV,".

,  ACkEEM^r
•  tb® Stiic'pr NcW;Harnps*hi.rc Co'wraaor hereby muiuajly bgrec as.'follows:.

CENERAt-PRbS'lSrONS
i . jbENTIFlCATION. . . y-

■p;

■ l,.r'Sittie Agency,Nome '

'>i,c'>»:H6m'pjhire.Dcponm"em;of Hcniih pn'd Hunfwn Services
^  * »• '

1.2 Stoic Agchcy^Addfe'ii ^
. ' ^

llO'PleasanuSircei
CMC0f<l.NH.W3QrOB57

sf:

■|.-^3 CpntrBCtor Name " it ^

Asccniria.CorrimurillyiSer.yiccs.Ohc;

1.4 ..Contractor Address
•  (si-

< *1

:26l Sheep Davis ftp'od;-.A 1 «
Concord,-,^!f'Hd33.d!"

.  [i

1.5, Coniractp'r Phohc;
Nym)xf

(663)'4I()0322'-

•1.6 Accouni.Numbcr
•  12

;dk-55;642-4220.I0-: !
■■79;i;oqc)p' '

l.7iCornplc'ttonDa.iC .

rJune 30, 2024
i;. . - '* •'•'j

'1.8 Price Eimltatiph;

S2r435;28.9 .

■  \
f.1.9 Conireciing OfTJccr fof.Sioic.Agehcy ' "' !

:Nflthph-p/ Wfijlc; dirccVoV j,..

i.lO SlBlc Agcnc^y Tclcphone Numbcr ,

:(603).27;ri63l • . ' isk
J,.J["I Cofiti^t^mf ^ifi'naVurc' 55^T I

■  patfc: '

J..12 Name nnd Title of Coniraclor'SlgRfliOjV " '
•Jeffrey ixlnQey cHipf .of- ^..'External Rel

t.r.l'i .Sltic AgencySlgnbture;

An'n HV'Nkandry oaie;. ..'5/21/202
r.M^ NanKiflnd Ti!lc|,of Stale Agency Sigiwtory.

£  5.^"" **' **■ '-^ad^Xssodatc
,lrl5 ApproN^J. by ihe.N.H. pcpahtucni;'of A^dmihisiraiiph. Piyision;orpprsonncr.if?/r//jp//w . '

Oy:.' . .pinxtor.'dii:' j?;.
.  . '-f "■ . .

1.16 /fppro\iiJ by the,Attorney Ccricf:8.lj(Fprm,^Subsiatxc and,Ex.ccofi6h)i7/o/;/?/»c^ "

By: ^0^^, C^. 5/25/2021
I...17 .App.rpWlby ihc.C.oycrnpr ond Esccu[ivciCoiincir/r/r//y^^^^ " " -fi*'"

GiC Item number: • vC&CMc'ctirg Dale;:

a't:1pns i-

Pagc^l of 4,

'<i ' . vs*.

V .

vjjl
•CdhVractbr:rniiioTs ■■ ..

•  "

•»T"-
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&s»gn Envtiope ID: W

:1. SEHyiCES TO BE peRFpRMEO. TTie Sia^c of New
;Hflmpshi"re. ociing ifwough ihc:agcncy idcniined in block l.l

IcngagcJ "controcior WoitiHcd iii. block 1.3
!("Conifoc|Of"V(o pcffoirm. iind ihe Cbnirflcioi shajl pcrfdrm.^ihc
work or iaic bf.goaJj or boih, idcriiified pn<l.''>wc panicuInHy,-,
idcscribcd'in Ahc:pilMhcd EXHIBIT -8 which i$ inco/poraied
^hc'rtin^by rcrefence'('^Scw

3. EFFEtriyE DATE/COMPCETIOIN.OF SERy.lCE^
.yi' Notwiih^afiding'thy provision' of ihis Agiwmcnj lo ihe
tcontrtry, dnd A*ubjccs';io tbc; opprovol of .the .ppVcrno' and
^ecuiive Co«»»ciI bribe Siate'brNew Hnmpihirc. i.f.oppljcable.
ihl»7Agr«V«rti.andflllbbli6»iions ofihe panics hereunder. shall
becbroc cfTwiive '.on ihc idnie ihc Governor and E-xcciiilyc

iCouriciJ npprovt ihi$.;Agrccmcni''o.v-indicnicd in'block I;I7.
u'nlc.<S no'such appro^nl isrcgwircdi in which cue ihc Agrecmcnl

EfTcciivc Dale,'ail ScK-iccs performcb.b/ihc Conirecior pnor io
Ihc nncciive pajc^shall bc. pcrTomcd m.jhc sole risvyorjhc
Coo'irocipf'. ond in the cye'ni ihm this Agreernent do« r^b«bme
effwi^.Mhc. Staic'shali hhvc.no iiftbMii/|o the Coni^cior.
iiKluding wiihoyi ;Jirnitaii.on;;jtny obligation no, pay ihc
Conirpcior for; any co'sis ihcurrcd/,p.r Sci^ices'
.Cohiracior mu'si cbmpiete ell Serviccs.by the-Completion Date
s^incd;in blixk 1.7.

4. CpNDITIONAL'NATyRE OR ACREEhlENT, ;;
Ngiwithsiandihg' any' p.'fo^sidjt...or this Agreement to the
coniW^;^ ail obligation^^^^^^^ State hercuhdcr.- including,

■ wiihoutTimllmion/the conilnunhec.prpjsymchlx he^
'cpntingcn'uupoh thc7nvflilnbiiiiy..nhd conljitucd nppropriniipn'o.f
foiidV ofrccled.by:any state .or'fcderai .'legisjaiiyclo/'exccituvc.
aciipn ilvii reduces,^climmnies or-'rpihcrwiw.jmodincs ihc
cppfoprioiion.or oyoilability'df funding for ihis^'Agrccmeni/tihd

, ihc Scopc'fpr Sertncei provided in EXHIBIT B, in'vvhbic or in
;^ail 'the :SiBte be 'liabic'Yof^ any .paymcnis.

hereundcr ih^e.xbeis dfsuch ovailabjc:8ppfopriarcdj[unds.- In ihc
eyeiti of'h'reduction" or icrfninaiioh of approprihted funds, j^hc
•;Stiicshnn.hay^tKc*nghi.ro sychj^uncis
^iKMfAc nvailnbi.c,- i.f ever.-hi^ shall have the right ̂ toTcducc^
'Vcrminhic.thc sVyiccs;undc iht.s AgrccrhcuVimmc'dia^cly. upoti,
gi^ingxihc .Conlrbctor'noiicc of'subh^reductipn or icrfninoiion.

.. The Sttic.shall nbt;i«.rcquifW',lp t™hJ.fc'f ̂
becouhi"or'souroe 10 ihc Accowni idcniincd in block 1.6 In the-
cv'cni.funds in ihaiiAccouni arc rcduccd.or qnavoilable.,

5. eONTIUCT pRlG^.RtCE IiMJTaTION/'
fAYMENrV ' • .
5.l\Thceonir»ci price, mcihoP.ofpaymcitt', and icrms.o'f paymcni
nro idcniificd,br>d rnb.rc particularly ;dcKcnbW P

•' ,w)il_ch iVlMcbTporo.icd^^f^^^^^
■5^ The paymciti by'.thc Si8ic.of;thc.coniraci price sholl.bc the
onily ond .ihc c.omplclc ,rcimburs,cmcni;tO'ihc Cohirp^or for ell
bx^hkj';*of,wHateyeV'haiV '.P^ifftcd by the Cphlmc.i6r tn.ihe

"jkrfpnhancc'h^crcof? and 'shall ihCkOnly^arHl the complete

compcnsatron to ihc Conirscior for ihc'^rviccs. 'nie^Siaie'Shali '
■have ito liability to the Contractor oiKe'r than the cohiraci.pnce'
5.3 ilhc State rcicAics the fight to .pffsci-firom any ompunts'
dihcfwise pa)'oble to i.he Cohirec'iorjundcr.ihis Agreement those"
lipuidatcd^amounis required or permiiicd..by'N.H; R'SA 80.:.7'
through RSA-80:7-c or nny Other provision of law.
,5.4 Noi\viihsiandihg.any provision ih'ihis Agreement ib-thc'
'coriirary; and itoiwiihstah'dihg urk.xpJee_ied eirtiim'sinnces. tn.h^ ....

'.cveni:Shpll ihe;ioiai.oroll paymenisaujhonzed,or actually.madei
hereuoder/cxcced the Price CimiiBiioh sq fonh in'blpck I.8.;

6. COMPCiaNICE BV CONTRACTOR with Caws -
and RECULAnONS/ EQ'UAC EMPtCiVMENT
oppoH.ruNiTYr j ' . : . .

i"6.I In connection with ihc performance of ihc, Scrvicc.s-ihe ...
iGbhtracior shall comply vviih all rnppjieablc whiutt*, laws," .
rcgulaiipat,'and order* of fedcrii',. qaici county or municipal
■auihoriilcs 'Which impose bny-^obligotipn pr duty upon the
.Contractor, including, but not.limiicd .to, cinl.rjghis and equal
,.employmenl,oppofiuniiy Imys.. In aSdiijoo.'if this Agrternem tsj
'funded in any port by'monics of the Uni ted Siai'u, the'Contractor
shall cdhiply wiih all.'fcdcral c.xeculivc"ordcfS. rules, regulations, ^
and statutes, and u'ith nny niles, regulniion^and guidelines a.xihT
State of ihe Unijcd States is.*u.c to jmplcmeni these"fcgu!qio5.s.
The Coniraciw shall olspicomply,with nil opp]icnb)c.inicllcciual
property Ja\y$.
6.2 During ihc.icrin of this Agrccmcni, the Coniraclof shall .not
discrimiriaic hgoi.nsi e.mjbloyccs or^app.licams 'fdr .cmplpyrncm

''^cause ofracc,.color, religion^ creed,age, sc.x..handicnp,'sexual
•o'ricnialion, or national origin and will iakc'afrirmaiivc action to
prevent suc.h.dikfimiit.ation. '. . -

'"6..3."thC;C6nirucfpr"o"grlccs".'io ^rmi'v the Sioic^pr U.n!.irt. Stales," ;
ncccss^pnnyortlicContrncibr's books, records hndnccdintisTpri
ihcpyrpwcpfasccfioiningcompliance wiiKnil rules,.regulations

.^ondlordcrs, and the covcnqnix, terms'and reb.ndiiipns o/, this
• Agreement.,

/{

.7' 'ftRSOiNlx'El;.,-. . J,,, .;
'•7.,l,Thc, Contfi>cior.shall,0i"its own expense prpyidc a.li'^idnnel
•^■fiecwsaiy io,pe>form the Servicu. Thc^.Contmcior lyairants that
'nil pefsoiVnci engaged in the'Scrvlces ishnll 'be rciiihlificd^ to*
pcfform tlic Services, .nnd' shall." be .properly ;:iiccn.scd and
'•oih'cfNvi.'Jc authorized to dd.sp under nil 8ppli.cob|c".la\y^^^^ [»}.
'7.2, Unless olhcnvise jpiuthprlzcd in wriiing. during the icmi of
'this, AgrwthcM, and .fpr ,p period of six-'(6) months aner Ihc

•"Complction'Datc in block 1.7, iheGomraeior shall,'not' hire,.and
.shall^nol. pcrniil j^ony subcqnirncior or other person, firm; or
itorpdraiion.with, whom n is engaged-rn'o combined cITpri to
•pcrfornft the ^rx'icqt lo'hiric, any person whpis q State employee
j.or officiol. who i-x.-maierialiy" :io\*olvcd, in the pr^orefncni,
,:ndmihi,5ira\ion jpr' performance of U.hjs.^fAgrcc.incnu This
prbvjsiprt.shall su'rvjvc'lcrminaiipn'pf ihis'ABrccmcnt:

•7.3 The"Coiliraciing'Ofilccf specified in'block,i;9Vpr'his pr'hcr.
successor, shall bc'ihe. Stnte's fcprcscrtraiiyc. .Injhccycqi.df^^^
'dispute ■coricc'rhjng !thc" interprqatiM of |his AgrecrrTcni, the^.j-, ...
•ComVnctlng'pfTicer's dcciijpn'.shali be .final forjhe;SiBie; i"

3k:
'(•bnirBclorOfiilials'.i'

"■ ■7 7doi'<!OT?71..
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j'8. EVEWt pF>ETPAULt/R^£
6.i Anyone or more.of ihe followins eeis or omissions of ihe'.
'Coflimctor shall roiUltlu(c.i|n cvchiprdefoull hcreundcr ("Evciil
iof Ocfoull"'): • c
'8.1.1 l^ailurc ipj"'p«rform ihc\Savic«y«h5facipf>ly pr^
Khdiule;"
'S;t.2 railure lo submit onyrepon rerjuiriedhereunder; and/or

.  ,'S;I J failurclo/pcrrormanybthcrcp\xn»Hi;termorppndiiipjt.pT."
'ibi.^^Agrpcmcm.. '

,  _8/2 Upon occurrence of eny-Evcni of Dcfluh.-ihc.Sio'ie.may
leke any one,'or rrvore, or ell. ofjhc'Ipllowlng.Bcjionr]
^8.2.1 give the Cdniracior'o writien hoiice'specirying the Eve'nt of'
Defauli nnd requiring it to be rcml^ibj, within, iit.lheitb^cnce.of
0 gfCfttcr pr lswr.*pecific(itipn*oYjime, lhlrty.pp) days from the'
'date of the noiicc^ond if the ENvni prDcfnujtj.t not^iimely cured,
iicrminotc this Agreement; cffcc.tiyciiwp (2)'doyiS;oftcr giwng tk;
tConTi^ctor notice of icrmiriaiion;
^8.2.2.givc the Conlrectpr n wriilcn noiicc-sppcifying the Event of.
Dcfauli and suspending all paymcnis .lo be made'under-this
'AgreVmchi-nnd 'ordc'ring that the. portion oj the cpmraci,.price,.,
.which wpul.d otherwise, occruc i6 ihe' Cpnfmcipr during the'
'pcri^'frpm the date, of such notice.uniil'.'such.time as the .State
determincR thy the Cp_mracjpr .has ciircd.^i.he Cycni.„pr Ocjauli''
fhdll never be'paid to the Contraci'dr;'
•8.2.3 give ihcContraclor a'wniien noliec Kprcifying ilic Event of
Ocfauh.ond set-off against any:other obligations the State may
p>yc to the Contractor any darnages.tKe.Sjaj.c su/fcit.by'reasbn.br'
Ofiy'EvxnVo/.pefouii: pnd/bf.
•.8.2.4,give iheConiractor a wriiicn'noticc specifying the Event,of
(Default, .ircat"" the ■Agreement; -m ibrcbchcd,''terminate .ihc^
^Agreement and puiiu'cany driis'.rc'mtijics 'ai'laworin equity,:or
both

"-lit
..

^;3. No failurciby the State lb cnrorcc any provisions hereof aficr
any!Event.of.befauii shall be deemed o waivcf ofi.is nghts vviih
i'regcrd^ioiKai. Evc'rii pf peTauli; pf-.nny sWscq'ucni ,Evcni .of

' Default.-. No express failure to enfixcepny'Ev'eiti'or Defauli shall
■  'be dccfnc4n.waiver bfjhc^nght of ihc]St'aV Venfcrce cach.nnd

oil'of lhc_ provisions; hereof.upon any further or piher £vcn);bf
^cfault'.bri I'lic^pari pfihe jC^pnl^^

9.-TERMINATldN. , .v
9.1 .NoiwiihslBndingnpofagraph-8,''Thc iStal '.rnay, ai jis-..sblc
di«reijph;,tenhinoie'ihe'A'grecmcn.i forpny^fiospni'm whole or'*
.in.'pan..byihifty (30) days writicn-noiici.tp ihc'Conirocipr-ihat
ihVSto'ic is exercising its opiion to tcrrhinatc'^thc ABrcemcfti.
9;'2 .In ihc.cxxni.of.an early termination"pr.ihis'Agrccment'Tor
any ifea^bn'/diKcr ih^^^ 'complclipn'p.f i.hc vScr^'iccs; the
Contmcibf jhnll, 'at' "the .Stoic's' discretion, idcliver' to the
Cbntraciing.Ornccr.'noi Idler iHon fiflccn flS) days oflcr thcdaTc

• pf 'l.crminnt.ion. p report' ("TerniinuiibnyRepprt")'.describing in
dciftij nlJ'SVrl^iccV-pcr.for'm^ Ihc^cdnifacrpncc earned,,ip
nndtinc'liJding the dalcbf lerniinoMon. '-TlSc form, subjcci.inaiicr,

:contchi, dnd fiurhberioT copies ofihc'Tcfminaiioff Rcppn sHill
bcjdcnilcpl loVh'oic.orany'Fjnid.Rcpon dcK/ibcd^^ the au'ached
EXHIp.lT.b.-Jn'ftddiiib'n.jtj th^^^^ ihe Coni'mctof"*-
shall,' wiihihj'j'days of nbtice.6Xenrly'icrmtnBiion,.devel6p and

•r.- T'

,subnitt lo.aiie Siaic'n -JrBn.sition.Plari for service.* under (he
.Agreement. .

'ID. DATA/ACCESS/CONFiOEf^tlA'LltW
Vreserv^aVion.., " '* i.v
l O.i As uscdjn iliis Agrceincm'the N\*ord 'v'daia",ihnll mean all
informaiibn nnd things dcwlopcdb'rbbiainc'd du'nng the ' " ;t.
perform'ancejpf.ior.ncquired'orddvcloped byicason'o^^ this,.

'^Agrcemchl,.including, but not limited to. all siudies. reportt,
ifiles,'formulae, sun'cys.'mops/cliarrs, sound recordings, video
vtMordings, pictorial reproductions, drnwings; n'rmtyses, graphic.
irepre.«eni«iton5.-co.mputer prog'mms.'eomputer'prlnlouti'. n.ofei.

•  -Iciicrs, memorohda, papers, and documents."all whether "
ifimshcd.or'urtfinishc'd.
'>0l2'All.dotn n'n'd Any propwy/lwhidh hn.s been received from
'ihe Si'aiejor purchn.«e(1 with funds provided for that purpose,-
un^d_cr;ihi,s Agrcemci»i, shall Ik the prppcny.bf ilic State, and

.  .shall be rciurncd to ihciSiaic upon demand or upon tcrminslion
,of this Agreement for any fcison.
iO.3 Cpnfidc'ni.io1ityo^daia'shall.bcgpvemed;by N.H. RSA,
'chapter 91''A br'bihcr exi.<ling law. Ditclb-surc.bf data requires'
Pf 'O'^.J^T'hcn approval of the State.;

•rifCOfVTR^ACrp.RIS RELATIQIS ."I Q THE STaTC. In the
perfo/rnhnccfqf thi.s Agreement tjw Cbnirpctw is in ail respects
qn .indcpchdcni^conirncior, and Jisi neiihcr on .agent nor .-an
employee of the State. Neither ihe Coniracibr nor ony.or.iis
■brnccrs, cinplbyees. agents, of mbrribcrsXhal! havc auihority to
•^bind'the Stnlcpryccclvx tiny. benefiisArorttcrs' cpmpensaiioni^^^^
other emolument.* provided by,ihc.Siaic to its employees.

Pagc-3

|l2f^.ASSlCNMKNI7pELECATlON,/SU,BCONTRACTS:;
'  ,12:1 "The Co'hl,rncio"r .shall not n.*sign, of.'6ihcr\visc;imnsfcr any" •
. Jntcrc.sTin ihls'Agrccmcnt wiihoui the prior written nbiice. which
^.sh'ail-.,bciprpyidc,d to the St3ic.a"tjcasi..rincc» (15) days pripr'to

ilK,pssiBhmeni,.and'b .ivrit'leh consent of ihciSlaic/for purposes.'
of/this' piragfbph,, 0 .Change^ of ;,Conir6! -,shall cor«'iituic'
niiignnicnir ."Clionge 'lof Control'- means (a) rncfgcr;-.

'l^cbh.*dl,id.aiipn; or a irbnsafiion or scries.bf related transactions in'
.whicii'-a third party,, together with its afniiaies, becomes th'e>,
direct or .indirecl-owner of flRy pe>ceht',(5054) or more of the "
\*o,iing ''shar.c.*^6r:.<lmilnr-'equity 'jm'cresisl;jpr^cb^ 'vbiing-
'pqWeViof.thbConirac.tor,- b salc/o.roll pr subsionriaUy o)|

."'ofihc^asscts^qf ihc^Co'mractp^ ' ' -.r
12.2 None of the .Scrviccs/Shal! be'Rubconirtclcd by fi tc"

'• .C^tirtcfor-wiihbulpnor wfin^ hbtice'ohdp.b'iysent.b the Sj'aif
"•The Siai.c'i.s chjiticd to copies bfail xubcopjra'cts^bnd asstgnmeni-

.  agfccmcnis and .shall not be bound.byinny provisions.coniained'
'■■in a subcpiitiTtci o^an.ossigntnem ngrecmeni toj^vhich if-.is noi.a
•'pariy. "

i'i. |.ND'EMNIEICVripNV.yii|c.*soilicrwi5ccxempi'cd'by low;.
ihc'Cohiractof shfll) .indemnify.and hoid.harmlcssMic S.i'atc, its.

.-ofTiccre ahd ernplbyees, from 'and agajnsi 'any ortd oil clajms,
,^liabilit[es.ond costs for any. pcr/onal injury or.pro'perty damages,
. paieril or'cbpyright inrringemcnj.'or.oihcr,claims asserted against'

the.'State. its officers or employees,Avhicharise^oui. of (ofwhich,
^ihay bciclaimcd to ari.sc oui'^opuhc acts or''bmi.*j!l^ of the

"Coniracl'or Iniiinls

>:

f.V
■•'V,

'•if
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^'mrBcVpr, Or subcpntroct'orf, inciu'ding bui noi limited io thd.
negligence, 'reckte1u''6r inieniipn'ol conduct. p>e Siafc shall not

liable Tor ony costs incurred by ihe^ntractoir'orising under'
ithis parPB'-'ph ' i-. N'O'^/hbsfonding lhc forgoing, nothing iK'.cIn
cpi;ii'pinedshaUbedecm'cd.io"c6n$iiiuteD wpivcrofih: sovcjcign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reser\^d i6,jhc<
Stale. This- covenant lin parsgmph 13 -shall sur\^ive the*
•lcrtTiinaiidn6fihi'$.A8''ecment'. ' ' • , ,

:l4/INSUfUNee,- I
'14.i The Conlmcior shall, tM 'its 'sole expense,- obtain and
conl'inubusly :mainiain, in.'.force, bVid 'shall /CQuirc. ̂ any
:5ubconirocior or'assignee-to,obtain.and mainlain j'n" forct. the
follovvihg insurance':' '
)4.|.|J commercial gcr^Fol liability insurnndcbgain.'ti oil 'claims

^orbodily'injury,''.dealh''or'propeny damage, in nmounis.o'r hot
IcsX ihnh^S.I.^OOP.OOO. per occurrence"on'dS2,000,000 .oggfegaic ,
Jorexcess*;and. " •

'i4.i.2>special cauM-of loss coverage fonn covering ell propeny '
subjcci id subpi)mgn}pK.I0.2 herein,'in,an Btfiduhi^nbt lev than

'-/80y*;of the whole replacemcni'yBluc of ih'c properly.
'',14.2 fhc.poiicics desc,nbri|n_subpara'gii M. I herein,.sKall.bc
on poliey.forms and ertdorsemenis.appros-ed'rpr use in tKe Siate'' <
•.6r,,Ncw Hampshire by ihc.N.H. Dcparimciil-of lnsumncc,.and
■'issued by injirrcrs'Ji.cchscd in ihc.SiaiC'orNew Ha'mpshirc.

1.4.3 The Contractor shall Tu'fnisK to the Comniciing biticcri.
idcn'ti/icd in blpck I.O.jbr his or.heVsuccessor, a certifienic(s) oT
'insurance for 'al| insurance' required under this Agrc^cni;
Conimci'or shall alto fumish'io t% C6nimci,ing''orrieer identified
in block 1.9, dr.his.'or her $ucc<ssbr,-'cc?tincoic<s) of insurance'
•for.all rrncwai(s)orinsumncc.rcquifed.uodcrthi$ Agrccmetit no
laicr.jhnn ^c,n'(10) day.* prior io ih'c ,c.spiraiio,n date, of .cnch,
m.surancc\po}icy. ...The ccrtjfi,catc(s)''of ins^iirancc and nny"
renewals thereof shhil be oiioch'pd.and arc.incprporat^ Hcrcm b'y"
txfcrcncc;

,l5^WpRJ<,ERS^^^^
.15:1 Byj.signing thi.s'ogrecmehl, ihc'Cdnlftciqr'agrcts, ccrtirics
lind jvarran'ts ihai.iKe.Cbni'rocio'f.is in compliarKC with* or c.xcmpt
•fromi ihc'rcquiremM ,RSA.'chap^,e^28l•A.f■,'•,l'^^^^
CfntpensailoiY')!
JST2 tojhc;cjtlcm ihc"Controcior.is subject t6;,thc;rcquifcmcni.<:;
'pf*N:H., RSA chapj^ci;^'28i,-A,-vCoitiractor'^shp!l ^rrtDiiitai.n, nnd^
require,any 'subcohtraclpr o'r M.«igri'ee Yq secure^.irid' maitilain,-
poymcnl, of AVort(eH''-tCohipc'iis'ptipn in" cbnnecliotY... with

.jBCti viiies which the person proposes to undcnoke pursuant to this.
-Agreement. TheCbniracibrshall fumisbihcConlrac'tingOfficer,

"idcm.incd inbl,oc.k'i.?. or his'or,her s'ucccsVo/.proqfcifWorkcfs'
Gompbn.sation in the mariner described in''N!H.- RSA-chnptc>
28!-A«ond nny.opplicablc 'rcncwal($j ihcrcdf. .which.shall'be
aitacKc'.d, and 'are^mcorporaicd^hcrcjn.by, reference. 'The Sinic
ihiill. hot be* fciipo.itsibic for payitycjii.^pT any, Wo^',w'
Com'pchsbiioh 'pr'cmium's''dr*for-Bn'y ,bihcr claim p,r bchcfn To/
'tbhlractpr,; Or :8ny subcontmdor dr*,employee df'Gonirnctor.j
Vvhich jrtighi arise ;,under npplicnblc Siaic.of.Ncw j-lnrhpjhirc'
•Wdrkc'rj' ,Com'p'en5,hii.o,n ioVvsy ,iri .con'necilon ''wijh ih'c
pc/formari'cc.or ihc;Scmcc.sdndcr,hh[s:,Agre^^

16; NOTICE. 'Any ' notice by 0 party .hereto I'd ihVotKcf'p'an'y
sholl.bc deemed to have been duly delnxredPr given'at./he liinc
.of maili'ng:by certified laail. postage prepaid, in n.liriited States.

..Post Office &ddre.ssed .lo .the panics oi the 8ddr!Risc.s givcrijn
blocks.l;2 and 1.4, herein.

rji

'1-7. A'MENDMEhlT: This A'greemc'ni may be!fl'iKcnt!c<J,-\vaiv«l
fi t diichorgcd.Ofily'by on instrument in;.\vr(iing sigiycd!by the,
paniesy'.hereid and only after'apRrovbl o.f.such ariicndmcni.
waiver or discharge by ihc Governor and E.seculive Council of
ihe'Stble of New Hampshire unless no such Approval is required
.under Ihe circumsiahc^ pursuant id State'iavy^'rulc'pr'pd.liey..,

(l,8.,CHpl,CE.QE LAW^AIS'D F,OR'UM_.cThix Agr^crrienVshall
be governed, inte/praicd tind eonsirued iiS accordance with'the
lnw$ 'of the St'alc.pf Ncvv Hampshire,--end.is.bindingr^upon and
ihure$'io.ihe ^hefit of the pDrties'an'd.iheirVe'spceiive succu'sdrs

• and a.sjigns.^ T>^>*^rdi.ng u.scd in this Agrecincni Is.i.hd.syordjn'g
chosen by'the panics io express their mutual iriiem, arid no rule,.
'ofconsimVtion.shnli be appiied'againsa'^or.in favor of ony/pariy.
Xny actions arising out of this.Agrccm'c.nCshall.bc dro.ughl'on'd
maininided in,New HampiihireiSuperior Co.iiri wHich/jhall.ha'ye"
cxclusivciuri^iction'thercof. ' ' '

19. ;C<)NFLICTINC TERMS. In" ihc'.cvchf of a _ccn'fli,ci:
fci/yccn (he terms Of this P-37 fo.hn'fas m^ified in^EXHiDIT
A) and/or aitochmcnt's ond.am'c.ndmcht thereof, the terms Of ih€f,
P.37,(ay modificd id E/HIDJT, A) shairconirol. ! «
20. THIRD. PARTIES, -the panics' bcr'cio'do nor intend ,to" -
bcncfii^^pny third panic.s. and this iAgrccincnt ^shoil .'noT be.
c6nsjrt}cdj»pdq"nrer''nny,'such benefit. • C

21. HEADliN.CS;, The heading ihrdijghout',(hc;A'grc,cmeni a'r^
. . for reference purposes'only, and'ihe..Vvords'coniBined 'ihcrcih;

shall in lio.u^y be heldto explain,'"rh^ify,* pmplify Of'.bid i.nthc
iiltcipretfiiion", eq^siruciion or riicanin'g dry^hc.p/dyjsidns.of'ihi
Agrcetrient;

22.' SPECIAL vfRQ'yiSlpiNS.- /Addiiional. dr;,mqldifyingf•
provisions .set forth in the pnochcd EX HISIT A. prcjncdrpomied-
hcrcin'.by rcfcrcncc; '

23.",SEVEI^VBILITV; ',lfi'iKe''c»Tnt an'yprih'cprdvislpns'.ofthis'
.Agreement nre .held by o'.cpurt'.pf cdm'^icni jurijdiciion'ld be* •
.conlrary to any'state or icdcrol.law.-ihe remaining^proyisions of

-.-Hihi$iA'grecmcni..wil,l remain in,full force;and cfTcc'i:

.;24.. ENTIRE AGREEMENT, fhis Agrccl^'nt-, which'ma'yTb'Cj
-.executed .in a iiumbcr',df:counicrparts,5cAch o"f which shall bc-

.-.dccm'c'd tin original. cdnMiinlcs 'Ihc icn'iirc/agreement and
.■'undcfsrohdihg between ih'c panics,-dnd. super'sc'dcs-oil ;pn

agVeemenLs and uridcrsiondings s^lh respect to the subjecj nxa^ef'
• Jtcrcof. „•

•^1

•'pagc^d'ofd ■ fjk
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P0wSii)n.Eiwcjpp«.i6V2C9b727'4r«^
.  - .. .

New Hampshire Departrrieht of Hfallh •andiHum^ri'Sew
CommVnicatioh Accew^ ^ "

EXHIBit-A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD:GQr;jTRAGt PRb\>isinMS

.1. Re.visions to.F6rm,P.?37, CSehefarProvlsibns'.

-i,"i;/ .iParagrapb.-S. .Effecliye pale/dbm of Services, is -amended by;.adding
r  -::sbbpa*ra9?aph 3.'3.as.'fqllpws; ,

3;3.. Thp parties may extend^tha Agreen^ fbr up lo.lhree (3),edditi6nal years
■froiri the .Cb,rnpletion;"Dale, conlirige^^^ upon satisfactory delivpry'6f
-:services,-availableYunding,'agreemerii of the parties, and apprqy^^
'Gpyernpr .and Exe^ , ' "

1.'2. Paragfaph (1.2, Assjgnnjept/Delegatibn/Subcbntr'a airiended-by ;a,dding
subparagraph- - ' ' ' " "
"\^v3 - 'Syl?.QPJ?Jr.3P.!brs.:are'subje.ct ito^tfie";^ contractual conditions as-the

Cbntractdr.-ahd^ the GphVactof is'responsible, .to" .ensure subconiVaclbr"
<>• » I'cbrnpliance? with- those. 000^11)60$: the Cbi>lra,ctdr,^shali -have .writtep

lagreerherits'.w^th all sutxpnVaclqrs.-specifying ihe.worklo'beiperfdfTned'.
an.d ihpw (^r(ectjy,e.,".aption .shafl. 'be rti'ariaged jf the sb.bcontractof.'s
;perforrnahce is iinadequate.. •Cpn^ra'clpr";sha!l rnanage,
subconlraclpr's jpertgrma^ art 0090109"^ ba'sis and take lopirectlye
:a.clig4as h'e^.eYsaiV; The Cohtractpr shajl ahnyally.proyide the'State with .

.... k; ' ® '!®A.^t'^H:®b.bcpntractp^ ^provid^/.for uoderjhis^Agreemeht 'and ndtify-th.e.SJ.ate.by^any"inad'e!;iua^^^^^ ' i-

■X'

■W

^5 " ■»i-*i .

,  'K'. U; V; ■•^1

''RFP"-2'022OC0Me.ip0MMUp .'6IA■bl^A.^Ro»iilo■r9 to aBndiw8"CcnlrBCJPfOv^ •.^'CohlfBelSr Inltl'ab

'
.  -
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c

New .Hampshire: Department of HleahVand^Human .Seryl.ces
ConimunicMion AccessiServicesi ^

.EXHIBIT" B

Scope of Services
.  . ... •. C ' t )

1. ;Stalernoritof.Wofk -;General

"1.1.. The jConlractor'^sh prqyicle'*a .uniform and .comprehensive approach for
ih?^iyi<^.M3Ls ip obtain*ihe;ppimmuniM^^ services they need, including:

a.

I.T.3,

1,1:5.,

1.2:

?r

"1:3.

Current- and ,;potentia( .cjients of the Department Interacling .With
D.epajtme.nt,staff.' . ' : •

Individuals [seeking empioyrhiBnt'.wilh the "Department and' those,who..
wbrk7p^jhe DepaHmeht. " ,

iEmplpyees tof 'the, . peparlmenl., "to enable, ih'erh to', '.effectively,
[■communicate- with, cliehls, :applicahts for .'services, and* rhembers .of
the public..,' " ' ' •

■-Mernbars- of the, public alten'dihg Department], sponsored :pubjE
forums, "such as events.^cpnference^. and/^^^
.Members.^jihe: publlc-rp'cl&lying,Dep^artrhdht "public brpadcasts'.and'
''emerge.nc'ylcpmmunlcalipn '
.p.ocument Irahsjalion.

• Th'e .Goritracldr'ishall ■,pr6vide.,cdmrTiuhication 'access services foryndivlduais
listed in -Section ;,1 .'1^ 3'6.5 days ia year- "24. hours' a day'7 ■days a.week.wh'P,
correVpond-Wilh Ihepep'artmehtWh^
I.'i.l . Are deaf; "

'r%2:2, -Haye hearing ]pss.:

1';2]4,.;, 'ya.yeilbw:Y[sio.n'r
V.-2t5;. H.^ye i^eefchjmfi'a'ifmenlS;
[V2f6..; Do'nol.spea'KEnglish.
';l,;2;7;. Haye'Limil'ad £hglish],^r6ficiency](llEP). -

''The.CohtVaclqr-shalf, respond,tp.unplanned. 'urgent needs for. cbmmunicalion
;.ac,cess. within" forty-eight ^8) hours oT receiving -ndtice frorn.the^pepartmenl,
whichihcicrdesbui Is nOilimiled to: .se/vices.ri^^^^^

. .. ,. .. ....... .. ._

.ij.3tT;■ .BfC®au.pJ-,Elde^^^ ;apd '/^Tduii !S]eiyipe_s ,o'r 'biyisidh" for Chiidren. vYq'ulK
and Familiaj[pro^^^

'I'.Sj:?. New-Hampshire Ho,spitaFpatients.
\i.3.3. ' GJ'en'diM hbhne.residents". V'- 1

iRublic Health.^Emergen 'iv.

f'.-i

■

aFPr2p22"-'qc64yt.-CbM
,/Jisceniria'Communiiy[Services, i'ftc'.

.C^niroclor irti'iiBs

P^o i of 1$ bale
. im/mi

I.-;
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r, ' 7;.

'bocu'Sjflfl en*«^

New Hampshire Department of Health ahd'Human Services ̂
Communlcatibh Access Services

EXHIBITS

) /'

■1;3.5. pHHS public broadcasls.and emergency cpmmunicalions,
District .Offices.

■1.3.7'. Philbfook Adull Transilional Housing. ,,, ., = • "
1.-3:0. John M. Sununu Youlh Services Center.

1:4.. JScheiuting.Appojntmerits: ' i'
The Contractor shall-provide .commurilcalioh access seo/lces to ithe
bepartrnent tjy proyidihg: r
.1.4.1.1. Scheduled appointments, r. vr. r:.,
1.4.1,2, ;Walk:iri assistance. ■
1.'4.-1.3. Telephone assistance. '
1:4:1 .'4; Trar^slatiohs of svritteh documents;,,

i 4 2' - The"CQn|rabT6r. shall work cbllabofatiyely with-the bepartmenf to ensure
" - compiiahce with the 'federal Civil Rights Laws Title VI, Civil Rights Act of

'  4964; Ameriwns' wilh Oisatiility Acts of 1990, Section 504 Rehabi[|ta1jon
Act of 1973/and'New.Hampshire RSA:521-A andr354:A.

i:;4;3. The-Cdhrracior.,shall; ^ ■
1:4.3.1. Ensure 'Custbmer Services poordinators answer phones and

take'-Teque'sls-for cbmmunicatibn access services during'
business hi),urs and a 24/7. afterrhours' weekend^ahswerin'g

»A ancvAfor rallc anH With Wfifikehd

f.n.

service

I'.i

RFP-202^6COM■01♦CdMMU•^01,

Ascenlrta'Communliy-Scrvlcos. Inc.

, to answer .cavils .and' !assisl with, . weekend
emefgehcles. The Customer: 'Sefyice.s '.Coordinators .shall
.pbtaih the following.•jnfprm'atiori, wtiich includes.but is not .
limitecJ.to:

'1:4.Vl .1. Na,mes(s) and contact information ;forindividual(s)
euending the appointment:-

i 14.5.1.2" Effective and app.rppnate mode of'cpmrnuhicatioh.
requested,

1.4.3.„1.3;. Requested interpreter.'if.applicable. •
Provide lan "American Sign Language (ASL) Coordinator
,during :business hours and for the weekend answering

■ services, to.i^onitor the requests received for Deaf and Hard
of Hearing, Services. > «
Commuhicate any inability to accommodate the request-as,
sobn as possible td the requesting 'indiyidual.^and provide

'*• olherjqp'ligns io meet" the requestor's need, including^a'n
alle,rnaiiye'date'^for the .service qr :a different rhoda^.fpf;^

■  providing the service'.:. |[ 3^
"5/1?726?1

Conjrscior Inilials^

1.4:3.2.

1.4.3.3.

, P»q©,2 Oi 16 ,b»ie
V':
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.• * '■*'
Ik

;beeuSignEnvetopelp;2C«p2224.^W7pA4P^-/^832B8^ ^
'  . . # 1 • / . . w

•  . I'v .v

^■:u*

Nevy Hampshire Department,of Health and Human Services
^Communlcation/Ac'cess Services

EXHIBITB
,n. .....,,.,4*...,

i*.-;

.;

,1'..4;3.,4., Ensiire. .thai :any foreseeable interpreter absences^^
■. jv •coordinated with the, bepa^enl. and that alternative

,}\\ ' • ilnterpre'lers are madesavaiiable for the. given penod.- ■- '
:.ii4.4. . The Gqntfactbr-^shatl prbvide:  b' ••pentrali2€d'-";ap;poiniiTi'8ht scheduling

'  •> • system tljatls .accessed yia.a.secured web-portaj. The,Contrayor-sha^^^
.. 1.4.4.1,. Prqyjde rcredentia^sjtd; acc'ess the/dalaba.s© lq .eacH;person\

.. . ' . -who will be/equestinO'Ser^^^
v:- • ■ • • • .- ■ ' • . - ' ' ' . ,~-v . . <,• . v..

7.' " /; 1:4.4.2. Assign the.mo'st.approphale .available lr^terpreler.,,8rid then
.;v ' se'h'd femaii* rCdnfiimatibf!' tO' the. requestlrig pqr'sbn,;, The .J..

.Department, will have^^'the optipri 'to review.-lh'e, foUowihg
information; which'ShalT include" but i's not limilied to:

"  ' " "

1.4.'4.1l.. Iriterpfeterharne.
^  i\4.4,r2:2\■ ■ Inlefprelerxredentiais; as ayaila^^^

-•; i1.4.4'.;2:3; Edit request. .J"'" "i
... 1.4,4.2:4.. Cancel request.; "" "

Maintain" and preserve electronic retrievable ihdividqa)
re.cpfds relating to each individual seived^.which' includ.es but

'  j^.hpjii.mTied;, ^
!l!.4.;4.3i1. Ciidnfn^fe.i '

W  ■ iv • 1.4.'4.3.'2.. Clieril^co'rnmuhica.tion access-prefprences.
ft' ' iV « . •*" r. '•"* ^ ^ ^ '

.  11.4.4:3:3.. Interpreter preferences". ■ r' ^.}^-
1,4X3.4":'; lp.structibjiS;ipr [nle.riprqter.prefe/enc^

anangem'enls' '' or?'- ahy ;"6theh'. •specialized
- jhstnjctiphs cah-.al^b be notePoh the''reques^^ ,

■" ■ ■ Ust bf;iclients who have been served ^through"
prpybus^bcparirnent se.ry^^^ *'

i'li
:?.v..l'.4.4;4. Ensure" the Department's' :Account Adminisiraldr •for' the

*' ■> platfbrrn is .able'Id add/remove use.rs and xhahge" user
permission", levels .to ipcrdas.e .self-service abililie.s wiihth. "the, ,

.. platfo.rm.;' •

\.1.4;'4.5. Ensure thafthe web-pCrtal.and databaseis a secure"d,.web;si!le. -
1harencures;the prlvacy-rl'gHts of individuals served-thrbugh.

?: ■ Ihis Agreenieht. 'The;c,bhiracior shall rnairilain al.l.jhfp^
"■ >/, in accordance., .with ;sta.ndards' for confidentiality of ..all -if

•  p""aHicipani1nfp.itn'a.ti6.n..\h'atjsacquired by.any means, -Acce.ss
V-: ib CpriTrdehtial informatidh". pertaining id'ihe. Agreement 'and

fhe.individuals"sC'fved ihrdugh it"are.limiled.to only lho^^aff-
^  .. , thjsitjhaye a'.needilp pertpiroiihfeirjpb

.RFi=>^2022rdCOM^V-C"OM"MU.oi ' ' Cdftiracror Initials . I . ,
/  . .-.r " , uS/19/(20ZVv'

jAscen^lrlftJpommyn'ti^^ daio'> ^ ■. >}

.  "■ . ■ ; " . ■ ' ■ r*' ' . "" '
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bocuSlQn Env«iop« tOt 2C907224-9eE3-470A-eF€f •A06463288WA

New l^snripshire Department of Health and HumaniServiceis
>  Communication Access Services
^  EXHIBITS

1.4.4.6,

1.4:4.7.

Ensure every, service encounler .br transaction provided by
ihis Agreernent is. jinked -to the centralized app^ointmenl
'Scheduling isyslem. to perrnit anaiyslsof utilization-by both the.
LCbniracior and the Departmerit. •

Provide the Department's aulhorizef users with access.to the
web-portai?'.scheduling platform arid database.fpr.scheduling,
and,access toa variety of reporting tools^and,trainings. 'The

■7. ■ itobis shall tnciude. but Is nottimited Jo: " ^
l;4;4.7:i. Interpreter.usage: :c

1.5. The'Contractor Shall utilize sixteen (16) iPads; paid for With funds from this-
.Agreement, as' referenced iri Exhibit C-1. the iPads shdll include' the
Cgntractor's trarisjatiori so^are services; The Contractor shall ensure that the
IPads are returned to the Department wihin thirty (30) business days of
Agreement completion dale, as referenced within the Pr37. if an extension is,
,needed the"Contractor will make the pepartrnent aware. The jPads,cari only
,be used to support services as defined in this Agreernent.

T.6. The Cofitractor agrees to the folldwing terrh's regarding the ownership and use'
(of the iPads, the Cpnlracior shall:
T.6.,'1-: iEnsureJhat-the JPpds are rejurried to the_;p.epartmeht within thirty

pO) busihess'days of Agreement completion date, as' referenced .
within the P-37, If an jextension is needed the Contractor will.make
.the'Department aware.' The IPads pan only;be used to support,
services as defined iiTthis-.Ag'reerh'ent. ' , ^

1.6.2..

1.6.3.

Use Of the iPad isa ndn^transferiable right for the-Userlo use the
TPad. ' "" V
•Thb Contractor shall malnlaio. manage an.aSset Inyentoiy and shall
notify lhe:Department If the IPad is-.damaged.;losl or stolen.

.1.6.4": Jb.e .Gbniractbragrees applications.lpaded onto the iPad will be
it- festricled'tdsoftware.rebuired for language interpretation. Email .

Ssoftware'br accessibilily will not be permitted. , ^

1.6.5. 'In accordance with Exhibil K - Information Security Requirements,
the Coniractor acknowtedges responsibliityTor maintaining security
standards'including but not limiled,:to antivirus software, patching and
isoftwareypdates; v;- ^

iii .6.6. The Conlreclor acknowledges the Department's -Securily-Oftice. and
.NK DolT will not provide technical assistance'or IT support in
'asspciatioh with" the use of the IPad. ' -
ipripr to returning the iPads the Cpritractpr agrees,tp sanitize alj.da^a

•  :and,non-facTory issued,softwarefromi,said,deyices. The Contraf^*'"

■SKi'

RFP.2022-'OCOM-O1-.COMMU-Ol

MconVij C^mynlV-,S^0rvic^ PsgeAdf'iS

Coniracior Initials

OaiD
vwmi

■
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' OoeuSIgn Envotepe lO: 2C902724-MeMVOA;$jF6F-AO«48328BO^

New Hampshire Department of Health and Hurhar* Services
Communication Access Services.

EXHIBIT B

V'
If.:;

agrees tb.'cieanse airdata^ and using the Purge t^hnlque unless
'■ pijrge cannot be applied due to the firmware Jnyolved. For National

iristitute of Standards and TechrioIogy.(NlST) Media SanillMtion ,
Guides refer to;theNlSTSpecial.Publlcalidn 80ip-88 Rev.i. orjater

-for guidelines at https://csrc.nist.gov/publications/sp800.
■1.7. The Contractor shall notify, the Department (Ihe.Department shall notify-the:
"  Contractor) of.'cancellations' of all In-person- foreign language interiaretatiori

(appointments within, twenty-four:(24) hours of the,scheduled appplntrneni.
Payrn,ents by the p'epartmehi, when foreign language interpreter assignments .•
are cancelled by the Cpniractorare a_s-fpllpws! .in.cluding cancellations due tp;
'Inclement weather!;

. .1.7.1. .j If lan interpretailort assignrnent is cahcel'led n:iore' than twenly-fopr
■' \ ' (24).hourslh advahce.'there will be ho charge to the Department.-This

-■ is also applicable to .scheduled Over-the-phone interpretation (OPI)|
and Video Remote Ihterpretatibn;

7.7.2. . If an interprelatidh'assignment is:cance!led less than twenty-four,(24)
hours in advanceVths ehtiire block of time thai was scheduled may be
charged by the Contrac'tpr. This is. afsp.applicable to sched,ule'd OPI
and VRI; and:-; , , • .

'1.7.3; For document, .transialipn requests that are cancelled- by the
Oepa'rtment after work has comrnenced,- a fee based on .the
percentage of the, services, perforrhed may be charged to the

"  .Pep8rtnieht.j .
'■ ' ' 1.6. • The' Contractor Ahall notify the .Department; (the Oepart^^^ "hotif^ the

-C6ntract6r);of cancellalidn.s.of ajl in-persoh.American Sign. Language (ASL);
.  Certified Deaf Iriterpreters'(CDi), and Communication Access Reaj-Timei

i[CART) .Services, (CART) interpretation apppinlmenls within forty-eight ;(48)'
hours of the> is'cheduled appointment.-'Payments when ASL/COI/CART
interpreter assignments are cancelled are as ;foll6ws, including Mnc.eljatipns

*  due4ojnclemenlw.ea4!er,: ' - • .
I .B.l. If ahinterpreta'tfoh assignrnehi isca.nceHed rhore than forty-eight (48)

hours in advance, there will be no charge to the OepajIrnenJ, This is
also applicable to scheduled iVRl.; and, '

1.8:2. Ifian interpretation assignment Is cancelled less than forty-eight (48),
hours in advance.,the entire block of time-.tha.l was .scheduled will be'

'  charged, including iravet.time and mileage. Applicable to;scheduled '
VRI'.

1.-9. Interpreter Qualifiw.lions; -
,  1.9.1. The. Contractor shall provide,qualified Xtaff who are licensed by fintergreter Llcen'sure:Bpard and approved under the'N.H Departihe^ of

RFp;2022-OCpM-pr-COMMU-0> • • Contractor InUials
,  ' A

Ascenlrio CornmunUy Saryices.tnc. Page5of,l6 po'o

•.s-

; • .v"
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r,*:

tV; --I'

pocu!^Wl0p0lO:2Cfl62224f«e3-47OMFeF-AOWe32SB*A; ^

V  New Harnpshire Oepartmont bif HeaUhjand HumaniSei^iccs
"  Communication Access Services

^  -

.•,s..

> I

Educaiion (DOE), under RSA 326-I. whoj; ;a
'  • , 'i' . ici:

1.9.1.1. Demonstrate .linguistic: competency and proficiency in both
.English .and another language,.along with, sensitiyily to-lhe "
culture of individuals needing communication assistance, with
iheciemonsirated abiliiy to accurately relay information in both

'  lahguapes. fl.uenlly.. 5^: " .

"1.9.1:2. Have cbmplele'd a minimum of.;sixiy (60) hours of a certified
Interpretetion training program, including fifteen (15) hours,
with' a language-specific coach, and have passed a series of
aptitude-tests finciuding English and the target language
proficiency tes.is.

''1.9';! .3.^ Complete a sixty (6d>hour-lraining course cenificale'and pa'sS.
"  an in-hpuse medical Interpreter skills test.

1.9^1.4. ' Have completed certification through a qualified Interp.rel.er
'certificalidn board". « i r

K'.

&

l!9.i;5. .Cbfhplere'at leasl two continuing education classes-per year
as well as, mandatory annual employ'ee training Ihcluding the^

r  topics oVHjPAAnnfecliphs disea.se.xullural competency, 'and;
' sexual harassrhent-.

'1'9.^;6. "^Legai interpreters must be observed in a legal setting by the.
Quality Assurance'Cpordiriatpr.or other.designated staff and
\,have received a satisfactory score. Ttiey rnust als.b pa.ss an
i"n;hpus.e'legal le'rfrilholdgy tesi..

!l .9.T.7. ' Undersfand Ihterpreter-etHlcs arid'Client confidentiality heeds
..and abide by the .me.dicaLfl^al interpreter professional'M'de
pfconduct., ■

1.9'l,.e. Haye:appropriate pre-emplbymentjmmunizations and heallft
.  scrisenlng's. inciuding 'ih.e tuberculpsis -test, .C0VID%19

Vaccination, if applicable,.'and preferred 12'pnel -'.drug
screening,

1.9,1.9. Ensure ..that all-quarified 'iriiefpreters have full tsackgrbuhd
■  checks- including Criminal Offender Record- information

(CQRI),-. Sex; Offender-;Reglslry Information (SQRl), 'and
m'ohthly Office of Inspector General |01G). Qualified
interpreters must have passed a successfurNew Hampshire

' cflm'inai bacKground.check prior to performing seivices under
this Agreement,: "

'1.'9.^1.10. Understand interpreter ethics and client confi.dehlialiiy needs
and "abide by the'professional code.of conduct {—!»

■  " ' Jk
RFp£202^9CpMO",iTcbMMb^^^^^ ^ ■ ConlfBclOf lftilia.15

A$cent»iaCommunityServicos.JnCi •Oalo,_,, ..

Vi,
•  ?.>■'
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O&cu^ftE/wbpfl ID: KW22I4iM"EW7DA.8F6F-^632eB^

cj

NeW'Hompsh',''® D'fipartm^e^ Health and Human Services
Coin^uni6ali6h Access^S'ervlces '

EXHIBIT B

■1 ^ 2. Thd'Gbritracior shall ensure interpreters sigKconfidbntjalily agregnpent.
.  asT^uest^ by the 'DepartmenlVon an annuel basis and su

Department. " .

'.t.9.5. "The ponlractor shall ensure'each interpreter keeps detaijed recbrdsybf
"  all "vcornmunication. assistance -services-provided on behajf, ,of the*

Department for quality .assurance/and ulilizaliqn review^' The;Contraclqi;.
Shalt ensuxeThelfpllpwing-iMprrt^ traqKed:

Apppintmentstart ahdend tirh^^

1.9.3.2. lhterpreVer''s.periorrhance;.an"d appdihlment history;
•i>9".3;3; \<^fifirm.ati6njb"r,payment-. ^

110;. »the (^"hlf^atdfshallY^rttjciqsely cSliaborativeiy; with Deparlme^.\ sta^'tq
ensurb jhai the pebartme^ cohnmunlQation. access, needs are being'met
VeWectivelyT'Which includes b.ut is not jirinit'dd .to'the Contractor:

.-1 -iOVt Participaling'iVltie^ DepaiHmen'l;;Co.mrnuniw Access Work- Grpup;!
'  ̂ ciip'prlsed.of .cross-^^^ representatives:as well•as.-extornal„

rSlakeholders', ,

i:fi".i b.2. beyetopfn'g arid providing regular data and repbrts that indica^|qtref)ds
and needs^oi'^seryicee provided,

.1'.:l!0:3;. ^esponding.sao. annual-essessmetjls an;d feedback from^
- " ' * :ivUhin lhebepartWentjomeetcpm^^

.M"66ifying.;the brbpoSed^sbA'ice-deli'^^^ model in.; response jb/thje^^^
' " iripuls'r'as"rieeded..iq,ensMre^<^nlinubu
T'l0:.5l >Working e^^^ with, D.ep'artment 'staff to, learn .the'variety of

seriiiceSiiayailable'i.O, 'prder for-the Cohlractbr's. -staff to eff.ectiveiy
,.descr|t5e these .services id clients/applicants.

'N'-,ld 6 'Teaching Department staff abouf the varieiy'pf comrhunicaliomajcc^^
"  :secvic.es :aybil'able:: througH ihisl'A'greeme.nt. as weH ps the .^'epific

I 'prd.ces5es,and,prpcedures that will be gsed for accessing services.
Updating and-pro.vidiog>a . current [i'st.pf available'interpreters, and

'  . v" iiran.slatorsTdjthq dn";a quarterly.ba'sis,.
■IvtO.B. i-S.uppdding '-domrriunica.tiqn , access; -the.

m  ' 'bepart.iTieriL, SuppodVill ihciude., byl'n^ -
I  ,.y„ vCrieating'-oc .ypdaiing infqrrh.alidn.al niatenals.jlangoage

'iden'lificalidh dardV^
'1.ld.-b.2'. i^ssighing a single poirjt of cdhiact who !sTespt>nsi.ble,for.i'. .qpprdihation clf^fseb^^^^^

'• que'stio"nslahdpbncerhs'as:lhe^^ 'Q!,
V  ' V

vRFP-2b.22:pb^^^
Asceoiria^Commufiiiy.'Sefvlcw^^ r;-: PW.'v?' "'® ■ "u "'. • .

?•! •

■
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'bbeu^n Envelope lO: 2C«>J2J4.'fi$6iUrOA^F6F-AOe4e32BBflW

New Hampshire Department of rteaUK and Human:Serylces
• Communication Ac'cess Services ii

EXHIBITS

r'

:  '1.-10.9. The Conlraclorishall attend meetings-witK the Dep^artmenievery two,(2)
-monihs'/and shall: shall provide updates and report on their progress
towards,., meeting' all perto/mance fmeasures and .overall ;program

.  ' objectives. .

•"o!

Iv

'•I

1 ■

•  ■>

fj.

%

2.2

ft FP^2022-OCOM;or-COMMU-Ol .•
-  • . I. ' • ' J"

. ASMnlria Communiiy Scfvl"cos;j'nc. .PegoSol i6,
'iV

"CpnifBClor WilalA

lOele

i.S

.2. Statement of Work - S.ervices tor Individuals who are Deaf or whq have
Hearing Loss, 6>'for Individuals, who oxperlence. Speech Impairments

■  '2.'^. The.Gorit'cactor.'shall p/ovide statewide'Communication access'services to
.individuals who are deaf.jhave hearing loss, are'blind, have low vision, or have

■t. sp.eech Impairimenls. ^Seryices shallt be provided twenty-four.(24) hours a day,
• ■ 'seven (7-) days^per-week;: Services must inclydCr but are not limited t^

:"2-.d..1; . American Sign Language (A'SL) Interpreters: f ■ ■
'2.12. i.C.er1ified Deaf Inlerprelers (Cblj;
>.13. -Oral Interpreters; ;
,2^,14'. /pealBlind Xactlle.lnierprelers;

.« )'2.l5. Cued Speech'interpreters;, -
2.1.6.. Cbmrnunicalipn Access Real-Tirne;{CART) Services;. . i-- '
2.-1.7.. . Nepali Sign Language.(NSL)j . • ■).. *' -y ^

'4 "XA- l^rge'Prlnt; and ^ " ^
2.J.9. ..ASL Sight Translation via video.

■* ' ' ( ....

(The-Conirac.lor ^alLensure seryjces are avallable InTfiuiliple.settihgs.'which
"  include but.are not limited.1o;'

■  ■' 2.2.1 .Department district offices, isatelllfe .offices; Department; run
institutions and:.vari6us centralized locations throughout'.lhe:.State;

• '2.2.2. in the. cdmrnunity; such as.jn clients' hprn'es; and.
2.2.3"; Public meeting venues...

3. Statement of Work - Services fpr individuals who"may not .speak English or
r have Limited.English Proficiency (LEP), Braille translation for individuals.who

are blind and seiyices for individuals who have Low-yision:

,3:1 The Contractor shall proyi^e spoken.language irilerpretation services,Statewide
for individuals wKo'-are ,not English speaking or have LeP. In,^ addition, the
Contractor shalj. provide Braille translation services statewide for'individuals
vi/ho.are blind, and services for-indlviduals who'haye Low-Vision. The services
must be ayaifable in a va'rlety of languages twenty-four (24) hours:a day, s,evgn
|7)'days per week. The in-person language interpretation sewices shall'Wgde,
but'arehbt.llmiled.loaheXoilowfing languages:, ' •" ''

1.5.' a'

T/10/5b2i
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.bdc.jS»Qn,erw«k»pfip:2C«022)4-ME3r476A^

;Communicatjon Acceiss Services
"EXHIBITB

V!

A.- !'■

I*

U! ;<!

'3ri/1. 'Arabic'

lAlbanian

3.1:3. - Albaniari (fromJ<b'5^^
• '

• • :3.1.'4:' >Amharic
lArabtc'

•3.T'.6> l&dsnian .
3.'l-7. 'Burmese

"3.1.8. 'Cambodiari/Khm.er •
'3.T.9. 'Chinese jCantpnesej:
3 .'1\1 p;-, tChinese (Manpann)

Crpalian

"  bari

3..1.'i3, 'bztfrigkh'a'.(Bhiiiane.se),
3.1.-1.4. Farsi,

''3.i .15^.- R''ench1(^arisian)
3;:i.l6. 'Ffench._(Caha"cJian)^
5ti,17, iGa
3..I.I8. Germali-'

-■3;1.^9:" ''Greek •"
:Gu"ahT

'  ̂ S3i.^:2l;. Gujaraii .
'  - -il.'S. . Hai!iah;tire!p'^

:3:i;23." Hjnpi
'3ri.24. .'indpn-esian
pvi:25! .Ifatiah-
:3.iv26. Japanese
:3..1:27;- Kikd'ngo.
3;!i.'2'8:- kinyarwahda/Kirunbl
r- - ' • .

.  '3;i:29. 'Korean
'' -Krahfi

■'i.T:31. ..Kurdish
RPP^P22^'PPOM:0/-Cp
Ascenfrif

CJ..

v.;.

'U

fO ' .'■•

"tro*

idonUBcior InUiels.

bato '

M'l
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OpM5.)9fl'£M^l6pft6:3C4D}224-«SE3^7pA-8Fef-AD»489280MA

^Communication Access Services

S  EXHIBITS
^  ̂ ' ,.^r; V-

3.1.32, Liberian English

'3.1.33. Lihgala ,,.f . "•
V  ' -yjy-

3.1.34.^ LugencJa.

3.1.35. Maay

3;i;36.' Malay „•

3."i.3L M3|ayalam

3'1.38. Moldovan

3.1.39, Nepair,

3.1.40: Nepali Sign Language (NSL);

3.1;41, Pplish

3'.'1.42. Rortuguese"

•  3.1.4^i Punjabi , '<
' J. V ' * •

3.i.'44. Rohingya

3.1.45- Rbrrianiah

3.^;4'^ Russian ,

3.'1,47, - Serbia_rvr:.

^  3;1;.45. ^rhar ^

3,1,i49; .Southeast Asian

3.'1;5C)! Spanish, u;?.

JJ'.l.Si., ^wahiii

3.1.62, Tamil

3.1.53. Thai '

-  ■3.1:54. Turkish-'
3.'1.55! Twi

r 3,T.56j Ukfainjaii
3.157, Urdu
3.1.58. Viernamese;

3.1.59: Otherlanguages upon request". '■ "
3.2. The' Cohlraclpr-shall ensure inlerpr^tatiori services .are' available In multiple

settings, which include but are,not Hmiled to: .
3.2:1. bisihct^dffices, saieiliie. offices,, institutions and various cenj^ffed^

■  ■ ' • • . i

i'ci

ii:-

S: ■ RFP..2022-OCdM^1 .COMMU-0»

'AsconTrta Cornmunlly SofvlcM.'inc; ■ Pago ip of IS

.•Oil

Coftka^or, Iniiials „

' DalO^-.
rrnr^i

'■uy-.
.  I
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'

•;v

.

;Ooq^n6nveiop«!rO:2C9p22a4-«K:M.7pA^f8F.A

^Ncw.Hamjashlre Departrheht of Health and Hujifian Services.
Communication Access Services

.  ' EXHIBIT B

■fj

locations thVou'ghout the Stale; y;
.InJhe' CjDmmunlly, ^^^^ a.sjin clients' homes..
jPiiblic meeting venues; ^

•3.3.

.3,12.
p.2.3.
The■Cdrilfactor^hall' pfov^ .communication 'access:ai.ds'.:\vhich shall, i.nclud.e.
biit is nol timited to:

3.3.'1. • Face-td-fac© (FtF.) iniperson iniefpreiation;
3.3.2, ' Over-lhe-phone Interpretation (OP-I)'.

;.,..3..3:3. Video-Remote lnterprela|ion (VRlj^
3:4.,

'3.5.

3.5.2.:

The Coniracto-r^hall provide ^ite^specinc. dedicated interpreters statidried e):
^igh-\;Qlume.DislricTid tor "scheduled blbcks.of during reguJaf'-WOfk:
'h6ur8/as-descfit)edjh Sectipn;3.S:2.6.belqw^ ^ "
.Site^SpecKic Dedicated Interpreters

..3.^.1. , ^the Contractor shall provlde.up ytp .ninety (90). hours per week of
-'dedicated. bIock;scheduIed •-pn-siie jntejpreters. . who' myst;. -'be
iStalioried. during' re'gular work'hbufs'.a's.idenlified in Section 3.5.2..6. "
:jhe ,epntractor-shali;coliaboraie,wilh Department staff to.,ensure;the.
interpreter's iirhe'.'Is-, of'"niaxirhu.m^ b'eheTii by' providing' ^biTlirigUaj
support:servicesv^endir^t;face:tbTace" interpretation^
not oe^ed. SucH''supporl mayi.nciude b.ul.is o.ot.lJmiteAlo;.
:3'5.'2.i-. Placing bhbne'CalIson;b.ebalf of D,epartrh'.enl's^^^^
,3l5.2'.2v )hterprelling '\e!ephorte rnessages..rebeiyed ;On-s)te -at

blherlpcalidns,,
:3..5..-2.J;. Reading a'nd interp.r.eling vv.rittep^mallenals, fpr.D^

Staff-. '

.:3.d2.4.- :■Translating written.-rnaterials {if ith.e .Iriterpreler is -,also a
gualifieitra.rfslajp^^^^^^^ • '

3i5.2.5. The Departrheht wiilcoiiducl.a;p.enodjc reasseSsrhehtqf pn-
;. sile.i.nierpretatioO needs every six.(6).mon^ reserves
'  the Oghl ;io change' the allb^libn' of languages -and

iriiefpireter hours' upon a thirty (-30) iday writt.en advanpe
notice'to ihelConlrbctorf TheConfractbr ph'ail ensure'staff
bave'the abiljry.tplWo.fk aj.other jbcatjorts p.h'^a'.shbft-jerrn'^
basis, as^fequested by the p.epartme'nty.vvhen the ybiume of* •
jnterpTetatiP.h .needs, wi.lhjd the speclfi.ed'district•pfficeli.s no,!;,
$ufficlerit javrairr'aVit 'the- Sjiieclfiedjfoll-lim'e equivatehlsbr.if a
shofi^term.need arises at a'differehi iocatiori.:

RFP;2§Y2:OCOM^'l7cbh^^^ ■
'Aic'enula'.Comir.uhiiy.S'c

:CcntrK<Or Iniiials

— 01

Jt---
-vwmi

bale
-♦'I.
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.  envtlo^ lO: 2Cfl02 l24;98E^7pA:#ftf;'.>^«32eB66A

Npw.l^arnp/HirejPo'partn^^^ of HeaMh'and Human Services
Communicalion^Acces^.Services

?; / EXHIBIT: B

■

,'V'

3.'5.2.6. Trie' following-ishhe aniTcipaied allpcation ,pf'the tota|/,pf
nlnatyi90).BIo;ck-scheduled hours per.
I U:' Vi'rtoi I. OA^'l 'f3/«mee'iKrao

j  V*',
^h^nnchcslcr DO Souiheim DO , Concord DO'

Spanish 35 hwrs' .35hOu«- •' •NM,

SwahjJ i'/Kirirndi)XinVnh.*'®"d.®' W  'n: N/A l.p .

•V)

3:6. Trahsiatlon'.^ei^i.ce.s^^^

3:6.1.. ■ The Contrkclpfshall "tfanslale^wriUen matBrials fpr the'pepartment
.;vyil"hin^^ 5^10' business :dayS'./unjess diheoM ri^^'ested by the
Depdrtment.-i^^icRincline but.afe.npnimited to; ^ •'

vt ;3.:.6..1-.l-, Poffps.

!Br6ctiures. , .,/ ~'-

^3'.6.-T.3. Docuriiehts a's requested,;fr.oni English'.to other language,s
.-.i .(including Braille).

■■3.'6/1.4'. EligibililyVmaterialslub'milted ^ and.client.sv--
3.6.1.5. Jn the pyeni of cahcelatipn 'by .the .pqpartrnpnl;; the"

'  , .Cbhtracl6ryshal]/ch'arge only fpr.iwprk that rSa,s.a!rppd,y.bpen.
'•cpmpjeted. ' " ;■ «

3:6.2., ■.The'C'mtyactpri^hati.pipi^dejT^n.sipJpnsB^ *
.  'as'foiiowsS . " '■- " ' ....K'*. . . . .. . .J - •

'3.6.2■.i^, Sdyrcje; lekt is prepared ;|o,r -franslation (if documenit :.rs
'* ed^tab^e^tfa■nilat6V^|i^drki vyiihin The,;;-sp.uTQe filje, pr wUhin;p.

■  . Wprp fi le cpnyerted-from.'the Ofigihah or docurhehl cohlenjsi-
.n ■ V'gy 'Be^exlracted fo/p^a ■bjlin^Ual JPCfPClfe

■3'.5b.-2:|._,' beparitmenT:sjaiff'^can b .for answers to "epy
ternriiriologV or fonnhat questions;

■3:6':2..3. 'A translator translates the text;
.3.'6:2.'4; Tranii'atedtextisreyieWed'py:^
■3;'6;2;.5, 'A secdnd tran'siafor proofreads trie ij-ansiatioh'.if needed;

.  3:612^., The fest translator reyiews/accept^addressbs any
corrections;^

;3;6.2.7. project managemenl checlts for b'astc' "erfprs^^ (e;g.,
'• misspelling;-, .numbir- "eriprs, opiissipns. awkw;ar.d-page

'breaks; character display) and ehsures'thal eyerTthiji^.ln
■  :prderr ht

• ; v'i)

M

:F^FP-2pJ2rp.CpM5':C^^
i'A'sce'nlVib'PommO . P«QO i2.6i 16

vV.

-iConifBClor ifilOalis;

Del6 _
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0««SlfinEftWtop«j6:2C962j?4.WeJ^70A-8«

NewiHampshife;Department,6f Heait|r.and Human Services,
Communication Access Services

•  ' EXHIBIT B " !
,Cv.»

ir.

3.6;.2.8" If final do.cuhiehl 'pr66fi"ng h'ee'ded. Cpnlractor graptiics
Team places The Aexj .into 'its final format ar^d The first
.translator reviews ithe.final, formalrlo' bej Sute.;texOdisplays
' ■'terrectlyian^ ,■

>^3 ■6.2.9!. Rfoject nijanagement, .dejiv^^^ project on . Time •and
according to P'epartm.ent expectat • '

y; »"•!

T;/-

-:s;

4. Scqpo"of Services &
•'SOfveys ,s . . f.
4;i The ContradVdf shairerisureTine'nis^have jheTigh^ tpfite a complaint or.gtievance

"  a'nd have such'reporisireviewed within thTe'eT(3) days, uriless the'Cpmplaint,.directly..impVct^ the-health land, wellnes^ case the
(ipm.piaint rnustbe r!ey|ewed..withi|iTwelve\p;2) hours.:iAll. report .must,be sen) to ^ ^
th'e.bepaTtnTMt w'tK'0!hyenty-f.oufT24j,hotirs.ofTey^^ _ .

4.2., ^XheXb^if^ctof shpl) conduct clle'nt saftisfactiorf sufryeysto rTjeasure-cu.stofner ^
it " ,^tisfa*cUon"afid«T>^cvlde..the^^ .tfn;a monthly basis.- 'andraf

requested; Xhe'Cah.iracfor'^ail.mdnitorth'e ..v:,
.. ^.vcohduct ofVeiVices by;: ■ , y

t4.2Tr. Sending Oepartmefit whp, iwo/k with interp/elers an overalltairsfaclioh'5urv.ey;via a mo6ile:8pp!lc.aTion uppn-i^^^^ dbmp.lelibn of.the *
•  • s'^Bduied;apppinlmeh^^ ' X'

4:12.- ..Sending-aTjmjnimum a,"momhlyiSuryey Mbhk^
"  ..j. . . custbWrsT6..cdnnplete';whicbTnc!ude,$ a^.s^^^^ ' - .
"  i^il rpmain^^n.pnymgusiM ■ v.="-'

4!^'.3. Rr9yidrrig ;the\ppfe a^mllp^'.Tac.e.index.survey If heeded.
•T ..':'4;2.4': "" iJf.The^cliept requesT/providihgThe qpjipri tpcail ciiehis/b.n .a ni'loimum

■pf'-phcea'mdhth.^ .v- -
4:3:. theCbriiractorshalirep.piTahyclieh complaini"s..tp;thpOep.a^

'  ■ .within Thre'b •(3y.b6'sines's\d.aiys.:_of The-'Contfactor-shall .notify the-
'pepartmept' imrnedjatelyjf any" client'sch'e^ isspes prconflict? aris.ej"and _
■wdrf^ l'p finda.iTi^'u^^^^ The Contractor'shall; '
4;3'.i. ityfohTtor all. suiyeys-and ari^sure por'rective measures_.a''eT.a.H®.h.

'  Hhterprelers ahd;staff asrtepe.ssa^^ ^ ta"''''
'4.3.2r -'■■■■En.sure-pdnce'rhs bf'a ;quaiitati.C''a;hatO're-.are-,han^ by ajfher.fhe"

rcSitr^cidr's'" ■" ''"J^ssucah^e. ' .GpoTdiKaldr or pTb'gra>
•rp'anagemeril. ^ ■

«»: 2} 4 3:3 _ ."Provide, in'djyldtiajs .with qoncemWcornplalnls wl!h.-aC6dsS .iO'c|ffgne.al" i' .
'fev^ls;pf"inarifibfee if'tH"ey-fe*6iHheir.c6i)cera?/ppmplalnls

. 1'- . beingaTTdTbssed. ' =7 .n; ?
v;. Conlraclbt-lnlllals

AsbcniflaCbmmuniiy.^eiyices.^ .^Psge 13.q(,i^. —.

i:? si ■- . s:;i^ " ^
•V
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4.

kV.

V

;v)

New Hannpshire Departme^^^^^ Health and Human Services
Communication Access Semces

EXHIBIT B

3*^

Vfi,

,4,3 .'4: Ensure management invesUgales each-complaint to determine- 1 .
there-are Weasures that can be taken to mitigate the reoccurrence ofthe unsatisfactdfy-ormcceptableexperlenfe^within thirty (30^,^^^
:bf/eceiS&y)e.comply

d -3^5 .Report- alhconcern^comptaihls>':to' the, O'epartrnentwiihih. three (?)'■> . ' ' i; -tiijsinessidays^of-recejpt ahid holify the'Oepartmenrimm^iat^^^^
client'scheduling issues or conflicts arise. ^ ^

's.-Exhibits Incorporated 4:., .
■  tlieCotitractor:shaiiUs^anddisc!9sePrbtecteid i^eali) Wontiaiion.ln-^'  ; 'ihe Standards flor'Privacy of Individually identifiable HeaUh Jntormat on

.(Privacy Flule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164):,under the Heallh Insurance PonaWy
and Accouritability Acl (HIPAA) of 1996, .and in accordance with the altacliedExhibit r. Busiriess Associate Agreenient,,iwhich has been executed b^.the parties.

5 2 ■trte'eonir&r-shall m-a-nWe ail confide.ntial'.data related to this Agreement' in
■ accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS information Security Requirements.

S.sV Ttie Contractor .rhai] comply with all Exhibits D-through .:K,iwhich Are attached
"  h'er.eto^and-incorporated.by reterej^ heieiQ- r*.

/'S, Reporting Requirements '
'6 -1 The" Contractor- shalFsubmif progress' reports ib the; Department oh-a qoal®'])'

' basis, and as-requested by the Departnient. The.report form.al ,'  " :the:Cj?n,tractor after the eHective dale. of Agreement. The, report shall ipclude,-.bU!
lisnoljirhijed IpV >^'

Hi-

-Projecl CAJtcpniLbS- ^
.6.1:2V Benchmarks reached;, '* • .
fe .4.;3. Barriers to.teachlng ben<Jimarks and solutions to barriers .experienced .in

• We previous quarter.-^ .
6.1.4./.Su'rveys.cornp.leted "
6.1 "S.- Service.en.cbu"mers or, tran.saction provided by this Agreemenl,

tS^'

. 7; Performance tyieasures ■ -

=; .;7,.1. The.COnlracio.r-shal| achieve thefdlidvying outcomes and be-reported.fof every.six;
(6j mdnth.pertod: . : ■
7 '1 1 ■■ 'Individuals seryed indicate their comrfiuhicalion access needs were.rnet

as- evidenced.lbx eighly-five, percent (65%) qf individuals surveyedTbporting triefare,satisfied.wi,th the interpretmg services. .
7-1/2-

-  "T '

Departmeht'^laffireporl'.they;are:ableto=approprialelyservejndi^
■\y,Ub cgrnm.unipgtioh access heeds,as:eyidenced,by eighly-.fiye

KRF-f?:2022:0.CpM-pV!CbMMgfm
tri 'I*
AsccnUi3"Communiiy Scr^ lie..

;CoHf«clof IfiHial.s;

iPaga 14 6116 .Dale
U-' • .

1571577571.

i-i-

tf-

lircif-
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5-;^'" .■ y-'

' OoCuSljnenve|6pelOr7Cro2224-Me3-47OA.^6F-AW83J0896A

New Hajppshire Oepa^ment of.Health and Humah Services
Comnf>unication Access. Services ' ^

.  EXHIBITS

(85®/d) of staff surveyed Yeportihg that ilhe ojnlractor appropriately
delivered services; ■
Department.staffhayethetrapslatedw-IUeriTnaterlaisthevneed tbservle
clients effectively, as evidenced by staff receiving ithe reduesled,.

.  transiaiedmaterials'in'the targe! language within fourteen (1.4) calendar
*  days, ninety percent (90%j of the,time.

7.1.4.- Commuriication'access-service icapacily is consislently\maintained .as"
evidenced by ninety-five percent (95®/o) .of Department's submitted
inierpretation/communication' access being fulfilled directly, or through la

•'J' mutually agreeable alternative provided by the Contractor.
-  " • ' . ' *

'7.1.5. The:Con1racior'shall activeiy aridTiegulady coilabbrate.wllh.lhe Department to,
.7 .enhance conVract^rnanagement. improve, results, and adjust, program dejivery

and^jDOlicybased.oh.successful outcomes. v
7(2: The Conlractorishall provide.other key d'a.la and meirics to ihe'pepartrnenf;

"  .-s Including client-level demographic.' performance, and.,.service, data"^ as
^  requestedbVlhy'Deparlment^
,7.3. Where apyiicabie', the. ^CoriUacldr shall collect" land ,share, tdata .with ^he ,

.P'epartmeyUn a formal specified by .the Oepartnient; ^
■ B. Ad.d it lb rial Terms ;=

8.1. " Impacts Resultihg lrorn Court p/,der> or L'fegislaliye Chango^^
8.1..1: The^.Contraclor ;agrees that, tto ;ihe'extent .future siaie or federal

legislation, .or cburt orders may have an impact on the'^Services
■  described;herein, the Slate has the right to modify Serylce priorities

bndrexpen^dilure requirements,urider.this^Agreenrienl'so as to. achieve,
'•* ■ ;Cornpliance therewith.

8.1.2. 'Credits and'Cppyright

'8'.l-;'3. ' ■AliyocurnentS-m'olices.-.pressVyease researchlepprts and .other
materials ,prepared during or resulting from the perfonmance.of the,
.services of the Contract shali'include the fpllowing.statement; "The
preparation of- this (report, document etc.) .was financed under a '

' ' Cofitracj with the Slate of New Hampshire.' Departmeht'of Health and
Human SeryiceSi. vyijh funds prpyided 'in part by the " State of New

.  'Hampshire land/or such "other funding sources..as were ayallabj.e o.r
.required, .e.g., IheiUnited States Department of Health and Human

... , .Services."
•  . . .. .

.8.1.4. All materials produced or purchased .under ;tlie cbfitract shall have
- prior approval frbm,.the^ Department before .printing, produciipn.

dislributiori or use.;

'it •?-

;:8.1..5. The Department shalT retain copyrighl pwnerylijp Ipr any ^^a)l
%FP7b22-iDCQMyi,^C0M'MU^pi J^nifodcw Inijla^

AscenWa Commontty Seiviccs. iW PsgelS of 16 ..

-f'M
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New Hampshiro pcpartment of Health and Human Setyices
Comrnunicatibh Access Services

EXHIBITS

2V •

>3

1'f

rri .
f51

'  original materials prod'uced.'includirig, but hoijimited to:

.8;j;5/iv Brochures. '
:  ; ^8.1 ;5.2'^. ' .;Xespyrce Birectbries. ' . ■ . ' ̂

v  8.1.5.3. vProlo.coisorQuidelinesr

.i8.l..5:4. ^"'Posters.' !:

. 0.1.5.5, Reports;!

8.1-6. ''The.tontraclpr sKall not reproduce anyLmaYecials product under the
. cbritract Without pnor written approval from the Department;

'9. Records, ^

'■ 9.1. The;5ontractor shall keep recprds.t'hal include;.bufare not limited to:
9 1'1-f Bobks. records. . documents and other electronic or physical' data

" e^idencing'.and reflecting a|l costs a'nd pther-expenses ■•spurred by the
Cgntractbr In the performance of the Gpnjract. and,all income :fe'^ived

^  br-collected by. the Contractor.
3:{'.2'JM\, records: imusf. be rnainiained ,ih; . accordance' ,wilh^^ accoyriiihg

'  . ■ pr'^eduresehd practices,:which sufficientl^y arid properly renectajl. such
toosts'and-expenses. and which are acceplabfe tplhe Department, and'
itd'/iOciudl;. wiihbu.l lirriltation^ all ledgers, tbboks.jecords^ and original

.  tevidehce:of cp'sts sucli as purchase reqd'.s'l'onsamJ orderS^ vou^
•reouisltipnsforirhalerials. Inyento.ries. yaJualiopj_qf ijvkind coritnbutlo^

■  ... .labor time^;cards.,payrons. and o1her records! request
llTeDepartmeht., _ - ^ '

*9.2.' : Puiirtg the terrh of this Agtebmehl andlthe period for/etentipn hereupder. tKe
Department; the Onited StatesDepart'ment of Health,and.Human Se/yices. and
any of'their .designated reijr.esenta.tiyes shal]^ hay® .tb all reports, and
'records rnaintairied .pursuarit- to the Agreeme.nt [fpn purposes of audit,
examinalioh. excerpts and |ranscnpls. Upon the purchase by the Deparlrnent.
pf the maximum "number of units provided for. in the ■Agreement and upoix
payment.bf ihe price limifalion hereunde'r, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations ;as, by the tprms pf the.
Agreerriehl are to be performed after the end .of the term of this Contract and/or
^survive ihe:..ierfninalioh of .the Agreement) shall lerrpinate, provided however^
:thet, ir ufroVreview pr the'pina^ ^ Report the Department shall
^Jisallow. any expenses claimed by the Co.ntractor jps costs hereunder the
Ipepartment.shall retain the right, at iis discfetioh', to deduct the amount pf such
iexpenses,as:are disallowed or ipjrecpver sych;surins frorh the Coritractpr.-

RFfe2022-OCOM-01:C6MMU-p1
*• * . . •

'Asoenfrie/Pom^nlly SoNlCCS; Inc.

3t.
CbrilfBcJof" Inllials _ ...

37I57?5?i
•pago;l6ol.1,6. '

. Vi. . ?iV •

Dale

r.v

.V,-

ifV..
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New Hampshire Department of Health and.Human Services
-  Communication Access Services

EXHIBIT C Tj ^

:* ••S

1.

2.

iS-

r-.

3.

'4.

f-
Pavment Terms

■  /

This ̂QraenTenTTs/funded by .s

1.1. 28%; Federal F:unds .

•1.2. 72%:General;f.unds.:

For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. the Department has ideniined the Cdritracior as :a Subreceipleni, !n^.,
accor^lance wlh 2 CFI3 200.331. p.

-2:2: The Department has , identified; this 'Contract as NON-R&O, ■ in;.
,a,ccprdance.with 2 CFR.§26o.332. , '

2:3." The'de mlnlrhis Indirect Cost Rate of .1,0®/o appiiesJn;accordance with 2
CFR"§206.4i4. ; '

Payment shall .be on a 'cost reimbursement basis "for .actual expenditures
incurred in the'fulfillment of-this Agreement/ and shali.be in accordance with
'the approved tine ijern/aVspecified in Exhibits 0-1, Budget through Exhibit C: ■
e.-Budgel. .

The C'pfitraclor shall s'ubrhil ah invoice'i.n,a fo.rrri satisfactory^:!© the DepartniM
by the fifteenth {TSth) wording day pf the following mpnih: whjch identifies.and

■  reque'sts feirrlbursemeni for'authorlzed expenses incurred.:ih the "prior moojh.
The Qpniractbrt^all ensuf^The'invoicels'cbrnpleied, dated .and returned tb the
Departrh'ertt in.prderlpjniliate paymerit. '

5; The Contrector shall prpyide backup;d6cumeritati6n w invoice
that Includes, .but:is hot limited to: " -

■  5.1. General Ledger,inlcuding all reVehue.arid expenses for thi's cp.ntraU.

6. i' Ih.lieu of hard copies,,all invoices niay be assigned an.electronic si^riature and,
' .erhaileb to KeHie.Esdale@dhh5.nh.Qbv.-or invoices may, be mailed to:

;Finahcia)'Mariagerj
^Departrnenf of/HeaUK and Human Services.
129 pleasant Street"
Concord, NH 03301

7. The bepartment shall m'ake payment to the Contractor within Ihirly (30) days
of receipt "of "each invoice, subsequent to appro.yal of (he submitted invoice arid
•if suffibienr funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General •
Proyi.sions^Fprm NurWber p-:3_7 of lhis,A9re'^

6. The:,final invoice shall.be due:to .tH©'Department no later than" forty ('40) days
after the contract completion.date.speaned. in pp/iri p.^T.vGdneral Provisions'
Block, l.TjCbmpleiion pate.

■?>

' Ascenlrta'Comrnunil'/S«c«

' RFP-2022-OCbKH)1 "COMMU-OT. ^ :• .•

.  , ExNbtl.C:

lOais.

Ji'} •:•?

rr- i^{

5/19/2021

•I

rr
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i; . y/"'

•  . ' - ' - .V . - ^ ■.'i;,. S;?- ■> g-:'_ ■' vv ,^
'  OodjSlgnEfwIOC^^DlZWOni^E^TOA-'^eF-AO^^^^ ■ - ■ i...

,  New Hampshire Department of Health^and Human Services
^Communication Access Se^ices , _ c

^  .'■■ • .. V.EXHIBIT C- i • t;

'

■'9. ■ I'Xhe Cbntractor/rnusi provide Ihe services in Exhibit.B. Scope^orServipes. |n
ipmptiahce wilh'fuhding requir . ' - w r.

10. The CpnTracrtbr.agrees'that fuh"dlng under this Agre.erpent may be .withheld, iri. .
^whole or iii:.pa'rt 'in the .event of non'-cbrtipliahce" with" the lerms.and conditions'

-  of-Exhibil:B;.Scope.of.SeryicesV

^,3

iT

•.Nbhvithstandeng anything to Ihe/cofStrary'herein; the Cohtradtdraigree^
-funding under this agreernent may be withheld. in whole or in part, iri the e^ept ■
;of noo'Compliance with'lany.F.ederal.or^State law, rule or regulation ̂ applicable

■  ito the .se.ryices .prbvidedi/or if the Mid: se^ces or products have not-beensati^actori'ly completed in .accordance vvith the terms and conditions;of this
ag^eerfTent. . ' -v

'' ■■ ;i2%otwithstandirigParagTaph'17pflhe.Generai'ProvisionsForm'P--37.changes
'  |jm"iied"'!tb, idjusting- ambu^ within the "phce liniitation ,and..adjusting

'.ehcumbranCes be'tw.een Sjat'e Fis^l Years arid budget class lines through the"
'Biidgel Office may ;be: made by wriUen- agreemem of both parties, without
pbtajning apprpval of ;the Governor and Executive, .Council, -if needed end;

f- justified.i • rjustified..

•
i'3. 'Audits-

*1*3.1. The^CpnTractbr.is-fequir^^^ "submit.ah annual audit to the-Department;
el . ' ■ jf"ar)yprthejojipwlQg cpndiliohs. exist:- •• • ' i-j

•j-'y

X3^lll.•■.Condition, A'-Xhe Contractor $750,000 oVmorei inf. , ^ ^
•  fideral'-fbndsreceived as a'subrecipiehlpyrsubntjo;2 GFR Part ■ •

j  ■ 2,00.-'during'lhe^m9st recently,cornpletedfiscar^
'■' - ■ :i31'2'MCoridUion B- The Contractor isWbjecl to audit pursuant to the . • '^-iequlrenl^ls.bf iN^ RSA 17:28; lll-bj:pert^^^ ^5 «

[prgWzaiibns^receivingsu^ppilb'f $l.'000.000dr^^
jConditipnC--JheConlractorisapubliccom"pahyahdrequired

,  • . iby Security,and .Exchange; CbrnmissJon"{SEC) regy latibhs lb ■
>x . .. isubrn.it.ari,^nnyal finaricial audil. ' , -r*

13;2. if Condition,A exists,ih'e,Cor>traclor shall submlt an annual sihgle.audit
performedby an ihdeperident Certified PublicAccountant ,(CRA) to.ihe

^  Department within 120 days after^lhe close of the cohtraclor:s fiscal -
w  ' " 'year. Qdndycied jn accordance with the requirements of 2 :CFR Part

P,;., 200, :Subpart'F of the. Uniform Administrative Requirerhehts, Cost .
„f^rihcipies.,and AudilRequIrementsforFederal.awards. '

^13.3. If Cbridllidn B dr Condition; G exists. the^Cpntractor shall submit anannual finaricial audit.pefformed by an.lndependerilCPA,w,ithin-120
.  daysdfter the cips^

13;4. Any Coniraclor thaiXepei ampunt'equal to 6r.:gfealeF:4han--V $25p.000Trom the'DbpartmenLdurihg a singlejisca ^
^i'scenifiadbrrmuhliySc^lc'w ■ .., iExhiWlC - Conibaw Wiitfa
ftFP.2022:OCOM'OlrC6NlMU^T R®^.2.ol3. - .. .

A-/. , - ■ ,v. - - V ' ■ ■■■■■ ' _
'i - ■ ■ • .. ...

t-:

1.;
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.  ■A

y;

Communicatioh Access Service's
r  - ■ ' ^ EXHIBIT C-

pf the funding source, niay be required, at a rhinlniurn..to sub'rTlita^^^
fmanci.ateudils petforrned by an ind'ependenl C^Aif Department's;

«> ; ' tisk^assessrnent deterrnihatioa indicates the Conlracldf-Is high-risk;
'l3.5. 'In-addition to. arid ndf jn any'v/ay'ln.limiiation of. pBiigal|ons,.pf. the,

^Contract. It Is junderslOod {and agreed by the .ConlracW thai 'the
>t- ;o eontractbr'shaji be heldJiab'ie for.any state or federar.audit:exceRiipns

"  ahd. shali {return .tpvthe' bepartment -a" 'payrnents .tria^ei under ',the.
.  Contract lb which •exception/.has been taken, pr'-which^

.'t;.

'li'rK

'•>ri

"i ..V

c?:-'

"V, fi?'

'Ti'r.

iy

•'-A
t-r.

i?.

i'lSV

"^^Ascohlfia'Cbi^udiiy;^
^RFf»-202;:PCbM'^i pOMwUp I ^

.^eihWfC;

j'Pajei oTs,

■  ■, ■' h

.Jf
;'CwirBClw InillaSi _ii

i5/19/2021
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.  666iS|i^£m^jop«Vo:.2CflD?224<^^^^ •

New HernpshVro bopartment'of fiealth enct'Human;5Wicos-
"  ' liExhlbriiO • -

•iT;:-:

;9pRT'lFrcXTrON-REGVRDTNG bROG FREE^WORkPLACE REQUIREMENTS .

The Vendw idehtifie'd Iri, Section l i 'drthrGeriere^ ag^ees'lo comply with the provisions of
;SwUons.S151-5j60 ol lhe prug-FfM of "198^(Pub. L. 100';690. Title V. Subtitle D:
CUiS.C.^O'l et seq!). and fuJiher agrees to^have the Coritractor's feprcsenlalive, a6'identified;in'Se.clI6ns,-■'■-l.ii"!andl.i2',ofihe"Gienef'al.Pm'vl5io'ns>xecuietheifplI^'n
..AtTERNATiV^^fbR GRANTEES ptHER TR^

. ruS;DEPARTMeNT-OF:HeALTH'AN,D HUMAN .SERVICES VCONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT'OF EbUCAtlON-CONTRACTORS •'
US DEPABtMENX Of:'agriculture • CONTRACTORS -v;

CThls'certifrcat'ion'isrequifed'bythe regutatiorSs imptementing'Sections'SISl-SieO of Ihep/ug-ffetf;
•Worttplade Aci'of 1988 (PuS.^-. lOP-€90.Trtie V. Sublllle D: .41 U.S.C.'TOI .eUeq,). The..January 31.

Dfi'H'H nllihA Uau 04 iOQn Pnriaral R9ni«lA> rnnOA:

- 'I

j.. I989.fegulalipris were amended arid.published'as, Parjil.l ol.-the May 25.1990 FederarRegisler.lpages .u
v  '• '* -2168V-2l"69V)/andrequife"certilicationby.9rWlees(ar>dby''inference.sub^fanleesandsub-._.v '
5:: conlfactpr8).'fiior to ward'thal they>111 nr^ainlajn .a dr^grfree Workplace. Section 30.l7.630|(c)'ol (he

/regulation provides that a gr®'''!®® infeVchce'.-sOb.^ranTees and sub-contractors) that rs aVSlfle
. rnay eleciU make onVccrtlficatiphJoJhe'Oeparirne^^ In ewh'foderal fiscal year in lieu.p.f cerllficaip for
'e8dh^9ranl.durlng the'fedarei fj^al year covered by the'ccrtifl.calipn. The certificate sel oul below'is dv
'htaicriai rcpre'sehiation of fact upon which reliance is placed.when ttie agency awards the grant- False
• certification or vlolatioh'pf the certincalidn sha'll be grouHds'tpr syspenstortpf.paymerits. suspenston.or
•tsrminelion'.bl granib/p/^goverhme^ suspension or dpbarnrienl. Contractors using thisform should ...
;ser>'dino: ^

*  . -n-
... . , V. -

•Commissioner
j'Nrt'Qepartmehl.bf HaaU.h''8hd , '
129 Pleasarit Streeir' "" ^

•■Cpntpr'd, - <-.•

•LV'I./Publishing'a'slalPr^entnbtiiyingernployVes.thal the - .
' dispensingV possession,Of,use bf^cpntfblie^sub^'dnce.ispj^^^ , •

worKplace.af^jspeilfying (l)b actiphs tjl^l,wil.i,be taken against ernpipyees fp; yipl.ali.on of such,
fj prdhlbHIon;' *_ ' * ' • " " ^

J.?- Estebiisf^ing'an o'rfg(^.no drug-yree^ewafe.nes^PXpgram lp1nfprmjemptoyee.s oboulYj2r1. The dangers of d709:abuseln".lli,e,w6rkplk^
'  1'2;2: ■0'hp gfantee-.s^ppjicy'Tof'ma^^ • !>.

■i;2i3'. ""Any avialiable dri^ co.unselingiirehBtiilita.lipn. and employee assisTance programs;,and
'l.2:4; ^yhepenalties'^that maybeirbpbsrediupbrjlemplbyeesfbf dirug abuse^^^

■ ' pccuMng1nthew6ri<place;V^ . ,-,. ,1. ^
Makirtg ft,a ■re'qulrftmVnl thal.eachiemp.lby engaged in.ihe pertorm.ance ol.lh^granl
g'^en a.'copy of ihe^slalernent required by,-^a^^ ^

i.4. Nbiifying the."emplbli'ee in|he'8ta\8rnefit,re.quired.by.pafe9raph (a)l^ as a condition of
eniplbyrhent under.lhe,granl.'lhe employee will

Abide by tfieterrn'spf.the,slaie/Treht;'8nd . .
1'^ T;4.?/ Hptrfythe eiPP^y®^ PT 9',, ' ' " ;;sia"tute occorringjn lhe workplace no later-than'five'catendar da^ after such

^  . 'Conviction;-' . , . , r- :<
11% • Notifying the agency In w.nli.r?g;wllhin;leiiA.®l?'^9®t<fays re.ceiymg notice under. ^

;;; ' bubparagraph;i..4*.2'f'rorn;an:emptoyee;br pth'eiwlse receiving adual notice Of such conviction..
Employers oXconvicied ern^oyees.muii'prbvade rtblice.^n^^ P?>it|9h tjt'P. *9 eyei7.,9'?h,!btficer.bnvvhdsV^"rant,3ctrviryTHej:bAvi'cteb;empib^^

/'f

•  > 'uUmWaJ DaAI iJf AflAAAfe*. ' ' ' *
\7a ̂ A«' IaIiIAI « Sm

■
imi t

.wdrkplA:eReeul'Cffie'nit: S/19/2021

'  - " T • • ' "-k" ' -
>, ■ IC; - , . ivl ' ■ •

■g . . , . ■ . ; ■ ^
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New Hampshire Depertmerit ofiHbdtth'and Human Services
^  Eihibitp " '''

has designated d:cenlral.point for the receipt of such notices. No'tice.shall include the- .
identiiication,nuniber{c)'.ol.e3ch a'ffedted graril:

h.6^: takingbnepMhejoltowingactidns; wilhin McatejdardBVsoj recejving npUM
'subpafagrapih l.-l.2. wllh'rcspect to any .employee who.is so convicted

•V 1.6.I7 TakirigeppVppriale.p'ersonneieciion ogainsl such en employee, up toen'd'intludifiig
.terminatiofli consistent with the 'rcqdiremenjs of the RehabUilaliori Act of 1973. "as'
•ernended'.jjr

'0.6.2. Requiring^uch emptdye'e.lp.parliclp'ale sejisfect^ly In'o drug ebuse 0&sl8larKe..or
reKat)itita)lon progr^'approved for such purposes bya Federpl. State, pr local heattK,

- low.enfofcemoiili or other epprdpnalo agencyf
1.7: Makmg a.gobd.'faith effort.tp cqri.linue to maintain e drug-free workplaceihrough

implernefiiallpno10aragrephs i.'i. i;2.l.3;;i;d7'l,.5.;Bnd i'6 ^

,2. The graMee" may insert In ,tKe"spdce 'pfovlded;wbw,lhe:silc(^ of.work dbhe:ln
icponectipriwlhthe'specificgrw^^^ . ' . .

^  • ff.

Pl8ce',oj Perforniancd^fstrcei ̂ dress, city.icounty.-slale.'j^ (iisl each location), •

•ChecK □ iriliere are ^rkplkes on (ile that e%.npl,8entW^

,;l-'

:S?19/2021-
*!'> . • . /

,Ddle

Vendor Name:

•• >5ame?W^W7viW
.Tiifa: HChief-o.ftTta^f 'f.Ix^terna) Relations}

•A i!i
is- il'i

j,;

r.\r

i? '<■;

<cuOi-<MS"iori)

ot

>E>rt^'tXrCVrtif«^ drug FiM tVcddbr'tnUlsH^^" ,
vv<rttfie«ReQul/5ffleflt» '' ' <<( " - .5/19/202X

■pagc2,cl 2 ' « Octc "

;y. J".
' I <
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(ti,

Eftvtfope'O: 2C90222^MeH.tPA4f

^^evv'HaVripshiro pepa.rtmBnt of Health and Human Sorylces
'  -Exhibll-6

» «• .. ^CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING r?

■fhe VeiSdor idenlifiid.ih Scclion r.3 pi the penerBllProvisi'ohs Pgrees.lo comply.^ilh the pVpyrsions of
Seclion'319 of,PuPItt'L8w ipi-121. Qoverrvnentwde^Guidancc for New Reilficlions on Lobby.in9,''aod

•  .31 V-S.cJl 352. and further aV®es lo have ihe Cpftlraclor'Sjfepresenialive.rasjdenlified ir^ Seclions l.\1.land 1..12,oTthe'Generai Provisions executejhefollovflngGertlRcelio'n^^ . ' '•
liiS^DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND.HUfMN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS ^ '■

.  US DERARTM6NJ OF eDUCATlON:^CONTRACTORS '
'■ US department pFIAGRLCyLTyRE/CONTRACTORS ^

,Programs,(indlcaioaiJplicable pr^fam covered^
•Temporery Assistance to Needy Fomllies under Tiile lV-A^
'Child Support Enforcement Pr^ram under Title fV-O .

-••^Social Serv^'ws'Block Grant, Pfograrr) urfder'T.i|lc XX- . „ '"n;
T^diaid Prograrrt'under Title XIX '

• Xommuhily Senrices.BloCk Grenl.under Title.VI■jChad Care Developrnenl'Btockpranl under.Tflje ly

•/

fS:.

-The uhdersTghed.certifics. to the.besi of his or-her knowledge and belief, thai:

V. NdFederal fippfopriale'd-lunds have,"beeri*p'a'dj5r w'l) be pajd-by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any'perspn for.ihfluencing of aiiempling'td influence an'officer or erhploye© df any.agericy..D fyicmt^r' •'
pi Con'gr'ess. an pfTtteV or pipployeVol Congfe»s..or- an emptoyeo 61 a Member 6i Congress incdnricclion with the awarding of any Federal coniracl.fcdnlinualipn.'rcncwal. am^ndmenl.-or •,
•modificiiiibii of aayFcderel contr'wj. grani. loan^pr cpoperetive.agrecmeni (and.by.spBCifX!T>.enlio^
^sulJryahlee ' ' . i • ■ •

-• . . ■ :
ui2. If any fundi.other Iha'n Federal appropriat'ed fi^stiaye beer) paid or wrill be paid to any person,for^

'inlfuen'cing orpUisnlplingtb Influence An officer pTem of any agency, a Member.of Copgrcss.,^
ah Officer or employee of ,Congrpss. or art"employee of. aj^^^ of Cohgres? in cortnec.lipri with this;

• r- ■Fedefarcohlrecl'^rpnl. ioan.-or copperaliye agreemeri fan^d by-'specifjc menllpri sub^rer^lee or subj.
coolracipfiyhe'undefsigncd shali cb.rri'p.tete prid.su^^ ' .
Reporl-bobbying, ih^acco'rdance wlihjts insifucjipns^ attieched end identified as Standard.ExhibilE^T).

•3 TheVrt^ersigned'shairrequifC language of lliis certification be inc.lude.d In the award , , ^
'  documchi for subvawards at all liers'.(includlft'g 5ybconUacls;iub:Qr8nts.,8nd.cpntracis under grants,

ioansl and cbppelaliveAgrieemenls) end thai-all sub-'rcciplenls shall ceitily.and..disclose,accordyrgly.
»ThiS-a'itification is'a maicriai represeniaiiori .offacTupdn which feiiance^wo>f)iaced.~wtiedlhi5".t^
was made or"entered rnlp. Submission of this ceriilicatiop is a pfere.quisile.for ma.klng or.enterirrg.inlo.lhrs
Iransecifon Imposed by SwlioVl352;Tftie.^T,-y.SVC.pdp: .Any person who fails lo file the-reou^d
certinMlioh'sh.ati bo.subject (6 a civil penalty of ncA less,lhan:$1,0.00p and not rpore ihan^lOQ.OOO for
each such failure. .... 7-r

r

S/19/2021- •

r;
V*.!"

{■:
Verrf.pf.-Klafhe:

^pai©;-" •

■c-

:coioHMi»ti'pni •

•■>s.

toWTOy.i^ipney .
chie'f -P.f-' staff i' External -Rcl ati.ons..,

•.M

.'eitfiibfiE-Certi^tioh-Rboa'ffl'noCobtying , ..  - " I .5/.19/.20M
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Now Hampshire DfipAfimont ofHolaJih and Human Services..... * ExhibitF,'- - "

^ fi

■f

■:.*v
.'.i

i'i

V r , ■ CERTIFiCATION REGARDING OEBARMENT: SUSPENSION v
i/,,;, |-AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MAHERS ' -

The CbrilraclorIdentified, in Seclion jljS oMhe General Pro.visl6ns agrees to^cpmpjy with ihe provisions of
Executive'pHice of-the President..Executive'O.rde.r 12S49 ah(i.4S,CFf^ Rart 76 regarding Oebarrhent. ^

• Suspension and Other Responsibilhy Mailers; and further agrees'lo have the Contractor's ', ' . . "viprosentative.'aiidenliriediriSrtlibns-l.l^ I.t2 ollhe Gen.eral.Prpyisions execyl.p the fpiK^ng
•..Certincaiion: • " V- ^
'iNSTRUC'tioHs FOR certification:-

1". By;slgr)infl.artd submittir^g this proposal.(cphlrkl). the'pr^^^ primaryppriicipanl.is proytding thp.
r' .cetiifiwtion"set (Xii below., - • »- .

'■ • "

"2., The"inability pra.person to provide the clrtificattonVe.qiiired betow^will not hecess'arrly Yesujl In denial
of paiydpalion in this covered irariisaclidn''II necessary, the prospeclive paf1icipant.shall,submil;ao.
•cxplanaildh blwhylt cannot provide the certification. The.cenificelion Of,expla.naiion will be.

I' corisidercd In connection with the NH Oepartmeni of Heaiih and Hurnari Services (OHHS).
.detenninalion whether l6,en'.ter ipio.thi.sltrensa'clion. However, failure of the prospective pri^^ly- . , ..
.•pgrtidparit to furnlsh.a cerlificalion .pr.an exptanaiion shall disqualify.such person frorn partcippti^n. in

'  Ihisitna.hsadion.:,. \j-.
i''. . r.

3.. The' c^ificaiion jn'this.crause'is;ia "ma'teriai representation of fact upon which reliance was'placed •
•when DHHS determined to enter .Into jhis.tfansaciib^. If ills later determined thai.ihe.prgspective .
'primary pailicipant'khovnngiy rendered ah'erroneous cefiificaiipn, in addition lb other ferhe.dies,

•. avaiiable.lo.lVe Federal gbv^nmeni, OHHS rnay ieVrhinale.thisl/ansa^

0 •' !4',-The prospective primaryrp'arlicipanl,shall provide irnmiediatewriller) notice to .the OHHS^agency to
" wh'prri.this proposal (contracO is submitted if at any :iifne.lhe'pros

That It's cbliificaiion wa's'Orrpr^edijs or. ha^bec^e'erfoheqys by reasyn^ol.chariged
xircurhslances?' " v;

•5:- "The:lefmV-,c6ver€d'lianiact"idn,' "debajTcd!*'suspend^ ■ „
■  traris'ecliprl" ■p.aftidpahl.'^^pqrsoh;* •pfimary'c^'YerBd U^ansactipn^^ 'proposat.'-and

•ictuniarifyexdu^edAa'susddln.ihis clause:, ^feoveVge'sectibfivof th.e rujesjmpJe.men.l]r>g';Ei(wyljye;prdV "12.549:
ir;. attached detinitip,r)5; r.-^:

■Y' 5 ,5, The pros'pe'dive primary"pbhidpept ®9(ees.by'submitling this proppsal (contrad) thai, sh"ould.(be
proposed covered ,tra(%SD"clipn'b0 entered jhtb,'ll_sh0n n6l'kno)^ngly.enter iniqeriy.jo'wer.tier coye/ed

•  ■ frahsaction.wllh a peVsdri'wh"d'isdebV/ed)su5pended. declare,djneligible. bryd - ' ,
' 7rc^'parlicipat.iprSinihiscpyered"irp'ns8Clibn. unless^^^^ " '• '-"'T'

■> :i

i7v The prbspeclive primary-participaril furiKer.agrecs'by suijmilling this proposalXh'atjlw)|linctude lhe
rcia.use'.iiiled ■.Certllica.tion Regarding ■oebarmehi,Susp€nsio,n..l.neli9iblliiyan^^ •
■l.pwc'rTl'er Covered Transactions,''provided .by'pHHS,'withdutrmo.dificalion;-in all,lower-tier,covereditransactibhs arid iri 8B.80liciiali.oAs for lower tier, covered transactions. .. • rts

!;8. !A;par1icipahT;ih e covered Iransoclion.may "rely'upon^a c.erliricaiion of ajprospBCJw In a i:-; , r^-;'ilower lieV"'.co.ve'red trarisacliorS" that i.1 1Ahbl debarred, isyipende^'J-Oe.iigi.ble. or Ihyplunlanly exd^ r.v
Yrom IheicbvefedAainsa'ctioh'. uriless it Knows thai.lhe cAftincalto is erroneous. A participant,rpay
'decide the method arid frequency by ^«ch H determines the eligibil'ty.ol its. pnncipqis. lEach
partldparit .may.l5_utYs;n6i required to-check the Nbhpfo'curcrneht,Ll.s,l (of .e.xctud^d.paities): ,

•'.'■I..

-.9; 'Nblhing!cbrilained;in the foTegolhg shaii be require esfa'bllsh'mehtp
MnbrdcrferendeY^n^gqpdjallh'ihecertificalioh.re.quired

'  '/i" ' .AndOUv«rRMponift>il'iyN?.h®'fi.^ _.. s,';s/19/202l
ciioMHynoJij' , tv r»we;'.v..

r,,-- ' ■ i

Vu..' y.
To
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Envtlo^\of2C9M224-W63'-47DMF6F-ADW
'  ••

'  "New..Hamp?hlro Dopsrtmonl^of ̂ aith.Bnfli Human Services
^EihlbU'F

v> ihfofmaUon of 8 participahl is hqlfequiredjp.excecd that Islnqrmaify possessed by a pnjdenl
^ iserspnlnthe prdjnaiy'coQrsejp^^ • .

•ip. Except for Uans3Cli6ns''eulhori^, uftderp»^ S'qf"IhesB.inslruclions. if a'parbcipant In.a
'  cbyeVed.tfohsectlon knowlngiy enleVs rnto'tfiowef lier cW^ed tfansaclion wi,lh;afpcfs'on who is

8usp€nded.:debk(red.-^tneiigi,We,.of voluntarily excfudeP from participation In this transaction, in
■  a.ddltiqn'(o bthcV fcm^lgs 8valla>j0 to. iW5edefdI,flOvwnfnCTi.-pHHS may tcfminate.lhis.!^n"$§cij6n.

■for causjB Of defaulL . '
'-.VPRltiflARy^COVEREp'TRANSAC^

11. The prospective prirnaty .participarit ce^'fies.t'o.lhe best of itsjknoviriedge a«^ belief.ilhat it .find its
"pririci'pals: " '*•

'1.V.1 i' ere not presently debarred.'suspended. proposed for debarmeril. d^ared in.eDglb[e,:orWlunlarilyexcluded frorn covered, transacliohs'by.'any Federal,department or agen^;
hWe a lhree-year period preceding'tHis proposal (contract) been convicted df of h^..""^iyciviij'uygmentfendered.againsllhemforcorrimissiqnoffreud'oracriminal.offenselrt ,, ..

^'1 -connecUdn wl^ 6bteinlhg.;eltemplih9,to bbiain..dr'peWormin9 a public (Federal, State'o.r Iom|)
,ifansfictibn."or,B contraci u'hder'a public transaction:'vl.plalidn of,Federal_pr Stale aniiirusl' ,
statutes dr.CO,rhm)ssionrof,emb€alemehi. thpft.,for9e'ry; brib0i7, /aisifica^^ ■records; making false siatemerils.or rece'iving stolen pro^rty;

') 1 %\ are not presently i'ndicled for otherwise,criminally br.'civijiy ctiafged by a goyernmentai entity: .
J/ ' (Federfll..:Slale*'br.ldcelj with cbmmlssionbf any of Oie offenscs epumeraled In patragrapH (l)(t>)

.  of lhi5".'certlfical\on;;en'd • _
11.4*! tioye' npl'Wiihin.'B thfee-yeaf'period!preceding;lhi9 0ppli,caiiqn/pr6p'psai had.pne of more'public

" ' * tf'ansactiqns (Federal. Siaje of 1^1) icnrtriated^fqr cause or defauii.-
l2!.-VVfief,e'tHep7bsp'eciiyDprfma^ Isuniable1d'cert|fYlo,any,;oftheslalernenls'irithis .
ii .cerilfiMiionr.sucli'prpspeciy^^ attach'.an expiariatlo'n to.lhis_^propos8l.(conUact).

LoWER'TIER'CdVERED.TfUNSAATipNS^
•  13-: By signing and'subrriiltiit'g thii proposa1,(contr8ct):.lhe prospe'ctwe lqwer liar participant.'as!

''fdefined in 45 CFR' Part "76.TcertfieMo t^fi-'^sVof Its knowledge and.bclief ihat jl and ilqpflnclpals:;^
rt jriv'^arc'fiot presdnily debarred* propose^ fdfdebanmcril. declar^ Ineliglbje. or

■  volunldrily-exduded ff6m''^rticipaiion;in ihls trariMCtldn^by any'federal de^rtmeril'or agency^
13!l .^ere the.prospeciiye'low^ is urtable to.certify to any of the ab6ve|,such^ -'-•■pyo'^.ctA'tfparlapant shall atiachanexplanatidnjtd^this'prop^^ ' •

Irtfl. The prdspecljv/jbwef^tiAr'parUdpanl^urlhef agfe'ps.by'S'ubmijliftg this;propOM
*  InclddeftWsclause^nljlled.'CertjficailpjfRegardingDeba'r^^^^Voluniary'Ex^usion':.-.Lower'TierCdye7ed j(8hsacli.pns!*wlthpul

n  ,tfa'nsactio.ns'"anb ih ali s^.icjlalidn%fof'|ow^^ transBCtions. ,
Ti" U?

'Cqnlractbr Name:'

7^b«<utl9A>«IV'

M:

^5/19/2^021
Mb V ■ " - KHnney

n

>r. ^ch'ie'f.ofiS'taff A'External Rel^atloris.

Eii^i F--^Cortific«iiooR#flit4iftfl"bobifn^nt,Su>pen'i'toft CbyfSdwJnlCo^^
o-i 'I. ...... ' e <1Anb.Oihw.RoipOftiioEty'MsHea, ;5/19/2021

• •.Ciwbwls'no'jj' • ' ^ Pigo 2_<rf 2i ' ' ".J
r

'-■3 ■ :v' ' ' , ■ ■■■■ v; ^ ■ , • • ' ! ' ■ji: ' - • i:*:" . • ■
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PocuSlonem«iop«"lOf2eW22J4.9eej^7OA-W:V.-AO^t83208WJA
•  " - .iK ■ " •

Now Hdmpshiro OiBpartment of Healthjand Human Services Ij
.V ■ ' li • '■ " """ -Eihlblt'.G rj

Xi

K"'

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PgRT-AINING Td.
'FgDERAL NONDISCRIMINATIGN.-EQUAL TREATMENT-.OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS-AND
^  -WHISTLEBLOWERPROTECflONS; ^ *

V  j.' ^ v..
The Coniracipr idenlifiod In'Section 1.3 of Ih'e.GeneVal Provisions agrees.by signatore^of.the pbhiractoVs "
fepreserifslive as,idcnUfied;ln/S«iiphs, =iri Vand,^ the General.Pfovisions. jo'cxewie'tlw follo^
certificaiion:- ' ^

.  • r- VJ

it -
CohlrdCtor willcdmplyVsnb wli^r'eguire-ahy^su^rantees.brisubconti^ldrs io'compty.-wUh any ep^lcable
^tirtBrol hondiscrjmineiioj^'reQvir.enipnlV. which inoy incl^o:

■ r- lhe;prnnlbus'Crrme;'Cpmrdlend ,Sefo;S|rp Aci of 1^^8 (4^2 U.S.C. Seclibn 3709d)'which proVilbll#.
;rMiplehl8 of federo'AinPing^^ifaf jhls etalirto'from'discrimihdUng. ellher^in employment practicos,pM'n
the deiwery of services or bcnefiis.son the basis bf race,- cd!bf^../eligipf!. national origin.' and sex!. The Act
regufreiscertslri fedpiehts to prtfducc an Equal.EmAtoym'efjt'.Oppphu^

' '• the,Juvenile*Aj5t,ice Peiihpuebcy Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S;C:. Seclibn 6672(b)) which adopls.bV -
'Velefince/'the civH, fighis obtigalti'ons of ihe^Sa'(e.;Sireets!Acj,,-lR p( federal iunding under this
sialyie We prohibited lforn WscH'"''^3j'h9.'either irf e^loyrnent.praclices or in the deiiyery W. servlMS or

«... behefitV.^on the basis',pi race, cotor. religion.^ajlpn'al.prl'ginl 'aHd^ 'The.y^t includes Eqirai
^Ern^oymchl'p^'f^riuni^^ ' ' *

■ the Civil'Rights Act of 1984 (42 'U.'S'.'C..^SWtiW.20p0d.;wliich prbhibils cecipients .ol.federal financial
.aWis'tancc'frbm discrlmlnaiing oh,the ba^.s of ra'ce.'cplWr Pr national origin in any pr^ram or activity):'
• the'Rehabiliialibn.Act U.S.C, Secjipn 794),-which prpKibits.fecipients'ol'FederalTmahcia)
'BSsislanpejfOrndWtminWingpnthebasisofdiMbility.'ihregardid'^

•  .fseWices pr"'benWri's.'Tri.a^ • "i
.!!'iii€ Americah8-w}th-!bisabiiiiie$,iAWqf l?§p,(42'U.SfC.fSecllon6 i5i3H^34). whlch,pf'oHlbUs'_

'  ̂di'scrinnin>iioWand'€nsures;e9ualopppriOnity'forpefsons-wihdis8bi%
,  ̂oyemmerii^sery,ices-public accpfnmodatio'ns.-cbmmercialfaDliiies.'arvd.transpoftalioh;

,  6duc8tlbri"An^e'n6menWof-1'972^-20U!s:Q.'S^ip^^^^ 1W3.;ip6^'^);'i$bi.chK0hibHf •

i r'

^y.

4

sdiscrimihaUon bn'ihe basrs'df se"^x ih fjw.eral|y assiStW e.duMtion;pfograms;:
" ih"e"A9e;6iScriminalipn;^tpf'i^ uys'!C;,Seciibns;'5H06<)7)..whlcb prohibi'tsldisWiminalioh on the" '
Msis'W.'POe iri.pWbrarns pr'aclivilie^ receiving ^.cd.eraj finW'cial aSsislahce.'. U dops'noj mpiude

yemplpynieriidi^min'W
'-28 C°F:R."pt;.^r(U.'S.,P'ep3rt^^ Regulaltp'ris-pJibP GrahliPrograms^
(lj.S.'bepartmVnl:orjush^ RegyTalions-NonWsWimiriWioriiJqual Employment,0^^ P.bJ'cies'

•and 'Rro^ures):-:6xeWiVive Order No. 3279 (equal p'rpleciibh.bl the lavi^.fdr fa.iih^based and co.mmunl^ ••«
"orgWizatipns); ExWutive Orde} No.,13559. which pfpyideluri'dameW
crllena fbrjpcirlnershjpXWl.h.laU^^^ apd

- 2WC P-'R-Pl-30tO'.S.'b'epafimenlofJuslice'Regutalibhs- Equal Trealmentfo _ v!:
6r0aiilzatidn5):.8ridY^istlebl6wef'pfdtectigns41'u!s.C.-§4'7l2'and'TheNaiionaipefense;A.uthor[zaTibn
Acl'(i^D'AA).^Fiical Yea'f2p13(P,ub.- L;?1l2-23?,'W'8ciB the Pilot Program fo'r'.^ '
jEhhanc^nWhl ofCp'htract Emplqyee.Wh'isdeblpwW-Pro'to protects e'mployees^a^ •
fepriwi. for;cert'ain vyji'ist'je blpwii^ actjyiiies-tn cprihectibh with federal gran'lis and^cbn|[facls. O:
'The certificate s'ci'bpl'belbw Is ar^ represehtalloh pifact.upon whichveliance Isfjlaced wKen the.

' ag'e'ndy'^ardS'.lhe grant .False ceri'ification or,vioiatlon.brtha cerlificalidn.shati be'gVouhds for
,ius|iBnsi6n ol paymenls,,suspension.or'tWrninalion 'pf.'Qranis. or government .wde s.yspensipn .pr
debarrneni! ' ' '' ':-3

ExiiM G ^ . . , , .
i  , , .. .. Cohtracibr Iftiilajr .3,.,

.  . ::!•<> vr ,V' ■. V-' «tfwHiS«>wrp«iak«, • - .»v c/lo/inoi

■irS :'iir.'«onw'i ..RKero,i;2«
Voi'' Iv - '■ ■ . . . ' -

'.-s . . ' ' - 'Ki . .
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New Htmpshirq bepaftmont of Health and.Human Services .
'  ;Ekhibit"G;

U  In i>>o event a.Fedefal bVSlale'court 6t Federal of'Stale adnijnislralive agency makes a finding of
^  .. biScriminM'ion after a due procesf hearing on the grounds pf'race. color,',religion, national origin;,or sex.

.  against a recipient of funds, the rl^ipient.wilj forward, a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Righlsi 'tb
ii jhe'ap-plicabl? contracting agency or division within the De'pajiment of Health and Huma.n Seryjccs. and
•  • " ,10 the Department of Health and Human'Services Office bf.lhBiOmbudsman. ,- , '

•  2«

The Contraclor.'ideritified in Section'.V.sTof.the GcneraJ.Rrbvisibns agrees byslgriature of the Coritractor's,
'representative."as identified in Seciipns'1,.1 i_e.nd'1.1.2p.fJhe'General.Proyjaipfis, to execute the fp)|pw|ng

■ certincalion:

I. By signing and 5ubmIlllng''trils'pfoposal (cbritraci) the Contractor agrees lb.compljr wth the p.ro.ylsloris"
'  indiceied abbve. • ' " •,?

.to •.

i'J:

K\.

•1. !'•;
Hi

^S/19/20n

'X:
Date

sy.

'ContraclorName:,.

Tfi't thief of ,ltaff'"^. exTerniil Relations,

fii w  Y-
Vr >

ifi

'■o; • «  .

jk-E*Nt)it_Cr
,^,ContfacJ«f inJtlfli^

. r , ' 5/19/2021
'  Pajeiotj, "■ '

W-'
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'poeyS^;En^dpe"lD;'2C9bV224.fiiEi:4.^

New!Hampitiir«.Oep.srtmont of Health and. Human ServiccV
'  Eahibit H

'i'..

'cv

:: CERtlFICATtON REGARDING ENViRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE''
y/' ' " i;::. ■' . '

^ J'. V;. ' 1 M

Public liw iq3*22t Part'C- En^rprimenlai Tobacco Smoka^also khown'as"(he.Pr6-;Chilbrpn^ 1994
(Ad), rcquirei thai "smoking not bepermitte'd in any any indoor facility "owned or leased or ,

• co'riiracted'for by an entity'and used rbutiriely orVegularty for the'provision of health, day care., education,'
bViibra^ sei^ccs^tb bhildren^undei the bge oi 18. if the services are lunded by Federal programs either,
direciiy or through State or local govern'merils. .by Federel grant, contract, loati, or- toah guaranteeT. The
law dbc'8 hoiepplylo children'# services provided in pfivale'resldences, lociliiles funded sotely by
Medicare br-Medicaid ruf*d^ end portorib.of fadfitles used fbr^lnpaUerit drug or alcohol treatment. Failure'
td'com'ply with the pfOvislohVof Ihe.law may result in Ihp.imposltjori^of a ciyij.rnoneiery penalty ot up to
-SibOdper.day and/orjhe |.mposUfen olan admlnisuative compliance order .on the responsible enlUy.^

"The Cori.traclor ide'ntilied in'Seclion l.3:of the GeneraVP/ovisions.agrces.-.by signature of the'Con'tracior^s'represenia.livVas-idcnlihedln.Secbon^^f.il.anb,i;i2,of the General.Provisions. .to,e ^
ceniricalion:.-.

1  By"«igiVing' and subrniitihg this.cdnimcl, l"he:CbnUactor agrees io'make feasonablec'tforts tp conrply' ^.;wiiKairapplicabiepr.pvision8ofPubiicL8w;i03-227LPart G knownas th8,P>o-ChildrehAci.bl.1994.

5/19/2021.

•"Gate ,' '

•-.Conlractor.Name:;

r-'

$

Name:* •
TIllPv- chief..of.'s'cBf.f External fteVatl.p/is

" Cv

:Vi

'V.

' tr- 5,1.

'yiT:

if.

i>SK

>'c ' I'.'j

'•'v~

'I'l

V

-

a

y-x I,-

{CUOmViKRO

^ ¥'

embil'M.-CertScijbn R«fl»fding_
Etwironmenui Tobiccc Smoke.'

i of \ ~ '

f.t /T—0« I;!

Cont/»d'6r titipij^— ■*"
'  " T■  • 5/19/2021

Oaia- •
•■S'

? * tp
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C^^;£n^l6p«',tO:7C9p2224:6^3^TOA4Fi^.-Ab84832BB9&A

- - - . .. V .

■'.i"
- >

New H'empihiro PepsWmerit of Health and Humen'Services

Exhibit I .

&

'i'i

Xi-.

A

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
-  BUSINESS ASSOCIAT&AGREEMENT

J  •• • • :

The Conlractoridehtifielin Section T .-3 o^ithe General Provisions of the Agreement agrees jo
comply with the Health lnsuxance'Port.abilily,.8nd*Accountat)ility Act. Public Law I0i4-19'i and
wilh' lhe Standards for Privacy and Security ol Individually Identifjable Health lnforfn8tioh.'4S . ■.Cpp Parts 160.and'1W' applicable to'biisiness associates. As defmed'he'rein. 'Bl^siness-
Associate' shsiil mean'the Contractor.and subcontractors ahd'agenlslbf the Contractor that'
receive, uise or have ^cess.tp protected health inlo'rmalipr)' under this Agreemenland.'Covered.
.'Ehlily' shall rnean the Stale'of;New Hampshire. pepartmenVof Hea.llh end,HurTian Services.

(1)':- befinltions^ . , "
ja:^ "Breach" shall have the'same rheaning as.-the't'orm>'8fe"ach"'ln sectio'n" 164.'402:pf Title "41-

pode of Federal Regulations.

-  'b. "Business Associate' has the,meaniriig giveh.such.term in section ,160..103 of Title 45,'Code'
of FederalRcgulalions: " .

;C. • "Covered-Entity" hasjhe meianingglyerisuch term irisectioh;i60.T63;oTT.itle'46, '
Code of Federal Regulations.

id." '^Designated Record Set"shairhave-the'sarheiheanihg.asjhe term "designated recprd„sel^■;
■  in,45 CFR.Seclion, 164.501. • :■

e' "bata AQQreQatioh''Stiallhaive'the:samemea'ninfl.as'.thelerm'dataiaggreQation'fm'45.C"Ff^ .
Section 164.501. ^

"V-- . . , . '•f,. tHeaithCare Oberatloh's"shall have.ihe^samem,eaninj;as the:ierm,"heajth carePperajiohs"'
in 45 CFR. Section 1.64i501.

• g;: 'HITECH Acl' means theKealth informationTechnolqgy^^^^^^^ Economic.and Clinical Health'Act;Tllle)(lll. Subtitle D, Part liA 2 ofJhe American Recove!7 and„ReinyesimentAct.gf
2009. '

-  »•« ' '

h.-, vHIPAA':means the Heallhlnsurance Pdrtabilily,and.Accountability Act of l996,.'publtp.Ls)!y ..
.  •i'l04-l9T and the Standards f6r,Privacy and Security,6f Individually Identifiable Health'

Information! 45 CFR PartsT60.462,arid 164'and amendmentsjheretb. '

i. 'Individual' shall have the'same meaning as the.'lerm."individual! in 45 CFR Seciioh 160.103
and shall Include a.persoh.whoqualifies'as a personal representative in accordarice with 45
CFR.Sectiori 164:501(g). itis

'Privacy Rule" sHal).mean IheiSlandards for'Rrivacy of Individually Identifiable Health
.ihformalioh al 45 CFR Paris'160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the .United States-
;Departm€hi of Health ahd Human'Services. . . ' ' • •

X

:j-

a

' ■> -
tu- ■-

... I'
- S-.'v

!

k., "Protected Health ihfor-maiioh'ishaH have.the same_rn,ea.ning asjhe term "protected health;
'ihfprmatioh" in 45.CFR Section.j160:103. limited to lhe.information created.pr reCeiy^b^
Business Associate/rom.dr on behalfofCoyered^Entily. "

3/2014' • " • ^ C. rftftiiftatu IniiiataVl^!•  " ' He8imimur«ftce^PoneWiy^r i':.: '''
K'- • . Bujlneu AjioUaieApfwrnw!. ' _ S/19/2021

•;./ PMft i'oi6''.
-  " r; ' ' ' , • '-I

Dale"

■iu.
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/y V; • i* .v

VI ̂

■ ^

71 » ';■■ ■ . '■"* iv-
cr:'- >. . . . .

'  « • ■• . .V

C^Siflft6fw«iWlO-2C9l0222<-«»E3^^-eFflF..A0^

til

J' ' ■ • ' • Exh'ibill ■ ■ ../ J 'I jvi; , W'..

,  I;-, i.. "Renui'red bv LawVshair.tiaveMhe.same.mean^ ie/m -r^uired by law'-ih-45"CF_R' . g . |Jv
?  Section-IM.-.103:- ' r. •' -r' ;-;w

•  i->- ' . ■ , - " ' • i?.--.' . '
'  "■ m. i"Secretatv''.sha[l mean ihe^Secretary piifrepepartm.ent_oYftea^ and Humah-Seivices'or. . r.; Sr-a

•:> .• his/her designee. • " • , ii-'- ' . i:'" '
.  . "''n 'Securitv Rule" shall MeanVhe Security^S'tandarcls'for the Protectibn'ol Eiiactronic Prdterted

'-Health Information 8145 CFR-Part'iW. SubDart C; ahd>fT^ndmentstHefelo. . > -
.. ■ •■■ ■ : ' ■ -■

ft '-unVecuf'ed.Pfbtec^f^ Hpalth Infofmation' means protected health Infofmatidn.thal is not
•  v;v-- ' $ecured>y a technology slandard thal renclers proiecled health infofmelldn.unusaWe.

•If. unreaclable. or indecipherable to unauthorizedJndividuais and is deyelo'ped or endorsed by '

• • ^ Institute:
. .. . . . w, vr ; .. „,Ziiv,;.'- • rp biHer Oerinilions-- All tefms noi.othefvnse deflned^hereiqa.halj have the meaning-^ .

■  established ijnder 45 C.R.R..Parts'l60. ,162 and 164, as amended from lime to time, and me
,.,J: HiTECH: ; ■■ ■'■ ^

>t.t Art' ''ij -ti'; i* ft.^  ' ■•>V «- _• •• ?•
g 'fi • ^ ..j , . - ; '. (.! • v.: r-t

n...^'i aaIkIjv.I l»a rMe^lne'iirA tnif PmtortoH M^alVh Infftfmdtlon.

'■ a.-; N i8usiness;Associate7sh3ll hot use: disclose, ,
fv' ^ •• lriformalion;(PHI) except as-fWasonablynecessa^ to jsroyide the■£xhlbii.AofJheAgfeemenl.>'Fuflhej3^sinessAssgclale..in"dudin9but'^

its dire'ctors.-6fficers-,empl6yees.aridagents. shall;n^ use^disclose, maintain ortraosmill
Dui In manner that wni'iiH r^ftA^iitiite fi Violation ftf the Pflvacv and Security Rule." '

-V. . ; Its directors.-onicers.,empioyees.ana.agenis. snail noi USB, aistiuse,.tiidiiM«jiii w« iiai.i»MiKi

,y,- ■"/

,
■  -- %PHljn any manper mat would cortsjituteJ>'p^^^^^^ ■ : '

■  ̂ ' ,ri'- 'f bK- . ■BustnessAssociate.may,use;p/disd^^ . ^ vf-. *'
•  • -> • ' : . ■ • .; -.j; '/ Fbr.thc'prVper managemen! andedminislra^^^^^ . P

'  111. 'As;requjred byj.awrpjjfspanttplheterm^s set forth-lh paragraph
ji.r, • jif. :Fof dala^aggregationpur^seVfor the heallhcareqpclallons of poyered i-

.• r .• ;Entiiy.;-^ ^ "" ' • '
•  • ' i".r- • "" iw-i-; r .' vv

c.'i; - tPthee)rtent'BusihcsS'Assbciateispefmiited.und€rthe-Agr^^^^^ y,
■  - - third parly. Business'Aswiaie must obiain/prior to rnaklngiany:5ij ' ■ •

.■ ■ ^ .Veasonal)|e-assurances from tKeth>d pa^'".lh8i such PHrwillbe' held confidentially^ .
^  used.or further disclosed only as reguifbd.b'y'raw. or for ,lhe purpose for which it was' ..j

-- ' disclosed tpThe third party; and (ii) an'agTeemenl from such third, part^ V.vi K
Associate, 'in accordance with iKe HIPAA Priyacy,^Security.rand Breach ;Noiification' .. ..

^  Rules orany^bre^hes of the corifidentian^^prihe.PHIMo the :e)(tent.it hespbtained ^^
knON^edge of such breach. •-' . - ' . ' ... '•tl.y-j-i^  y.y , fi'.

■  . r. • r' ' Li • ■« ' • -B »' *•?'' «
• v.';d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such'disclosure 18 reasonably necessary'to./provjdeservicesunde/ExhibltAoftheAgrcemeril.'disciose.anyRHIinresponse.lo'V

 i' " ■requeslforrdisclosu7eonlhD~basisth>iltisTequiredbylaw.wilhoutfirsinoti^^^XoveredEritily so that.Covered Entity has-an opportunity to object to Ihedisclp.^^and f, '
;t6 seek ap^rbpnate^e'lier^mCovered Entiiy:obiecis to such disclosuf^^^

^  COftlfflClOf lnl^ch> ■ ■

'  5/i97ib2V .. . ■
■ DaiB '• ' •- 1.: y

s  : ,vr' ;tvy.ff. 4.^'. , Vy-: ' 4 ■ y . • 7

;•. - i3i?ei4 • >i' '-'W-V , •'■ E'rJO'U.. n
.  « -S-- "■ • HcBBh IpisuriftCC Ron#Wity Ad; . .. . ... .

r-MiLilVi .^. 8usV>«»AjtodBte'Aoreemonl' , . *' .. 5/19/20? 1'
'• . .!'/ ■ ' -Daio..::— i.;

''•a .- " W "4 ' ■ ' I V'- " T • , Tiv.
■ :.r: • •' • . • •• ' ■ k
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.  'A v! '"'.ly:

.  .1 •

>■ ' -'ij tlif'." v.. . . ^ S
^-s li , Z fJ: 'J)

Do6lSlBft'E(t-*k>^lp;2CfiDH2*;98E3-470A-ef^^[)We3JeaflM^ '•

New Hampshire Department of HieaUh end Humih SoWlces
9i

" Tv ' Eihlbltl ,V.
,1* -ffA j . v:: '

^  Asspdate^shail>giBin f;om,discIosihg the PHI until Covered'Enli^ has M
fC'Tiedies. f), ■ :« -. r,-.

,  e, frihe Covered Entiiiy rwTifes ihe Business Associate that CoverVd'Ehlity tie's a'QreTd'tb.''
.y. ' be bpund by additional re.strlctions over and above.(Hose us'es Of dlsctosures or security

.•safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
' shall be bound by such additional r'e'striclidns and shall not disclose PHI in'violation of,
such additionsl/estrictions and shall abide'by^any additional security, safeguards.

(3) ObUQOtlons-flnd Activities of Business Assoclato. .
'%ii -7 t. - , ■ -".y

a. The Busine'ssjAssociate shall notify the Coyered.ErMlty's Privacy .Officer irnrne'tjlaXelyi.
j:; ' 'alicrihe.Business Associate becomes aware of any use .or/disclosure of, protected ' .

p'""' health jnformalion not provld'ed for by the Agreernenljhcluding breaches'.pf unsecureS
'• ^ prblecied-heallh Inforrtialion ahd/or'any security mcident lhat may have an impact pn.the, v

:•? 1 ' jjrolecled.health inform'atioriof the Covered.Entity. :-iO

.V, ■ . .b.,- ' the.BuslhessAssoclaleshalllmrTiediatelyperforma'riskassessmerilwhen.it bccomes " 'X*' ,
c. V.'." ■ aware of.any of.tfie above situations. Th.e riskjsse_s_sment sh^ Incjude.^bul rtotjje' . "'•f;

limited to: V 'i\ c-
..r.- ■ '

■  . V 0 The ,hature>nd e5rtent^bf the protected heaiih inforrhadpn invojyed. includ^^^ '
'  , lypes.pf idenlitiers and the.likelihopd of re-jdepjific^^

0 The..unauth6rt2ed person ysecf lhjj„.prqiepied hep^th Infbfrnatlon-prjto-whorn the • •> . •
'  •>: disclosure was. made; _ , . , : • ' . . .

o Whether-the^prplected^hcaith informabon was aclyaliy"acquired or Vlewed
b  •fhe ejrte.nt.to whjchMhe risk to th8;prplecjed health information has been

.51^.miligaled; ' -r- '

^. ■ The Business.Asso'ciale sKall comprele'ihe risk assessment within 48 hours of the",
breach 8nd.,invm,ed.ialejy report'thj^flndl^^^ risk assessment in writing to th"e,

'  *■' . ■ Cpvered.E_htity, . -.y *" . -

c.", The Business Xssocial'e_s%llcomply.v^iH all sections of the Privacy^ S"ecu7ily.a^^
V-. ' Breach,Notification Rule. " . . .

d. Business Associate shall make available all of ils iriterhal policies a'nd procedures, books
and records rejating to the use and disclosure.of PHlTeceived from, or created pr
received by the Business Associate on beKalf Pf Covered Erility to th'e Secretary for
pyrposeVofdelermiriing Covered .Entity's corhpliancewilh HIPAAand the Privacy .,and •
Security Rujer '*• '.'j

e.- ' Business Associate shall require all ol Us buslhe"ss associates that receive; use'or have •
access torPHI under the'Agreement. to agree in wfitifi'g to.adhere to the same .
restrictions and conditldris'oh the use ahd.discl6sure;o( PHI,contained herein, including
the duty ic return or destroy Ih'epHi as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered.Enlily .v
shall be considered a.direcl thlrd.party beheficiary'pf Ihe. Conuactor's business^^^pfjate

0  agreements with Contractor's Intended business.associates, wlid" will be'receivlft'^Hl
-S- V 'artOH - Eihiwil Co^fBclOf WihiJi

.  ' — .He»>u\iftiOr»naPon«t»BiyAfl . "
.  ■ Bvtlnwi Auodoi# AoieftmoN • ., -S/l9/202l

•  v." P»QB 3 0t6 ' • •:

•S ' " 'i-. . . ' , ■
■  '/ ' .1. " ■ s;- •- •

.■;i^ •
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,  ' ■ iv ■ . i'l'i • %'■
^  . &:'C- . -.P

pOCii).SignE^tox'<0:!2C9P2224-8BE'^7C^^

^NewHgmpahlrp Dppsrtmont of Health end.Human Services

■  -- - Enhlblll- ■■

•  --I* . •• ■! |i I j, ' ' ■ • _
pursuant to Ihis Agreenienl/wilh'rightS'df'ehTorcemenI and inaemnifiw
'bifsirvBss as.sociales^who shall beigoVisrr^ed by""sland'ard ■paragfap^
cqntfact.proyi5ions^(P-^^^^ pf.this.AgrecmertI forthe'purp,ose:"of use.aftd.dlsclosufG of-
protecjled health'.j^^^^^ 13 ,^ ' '

I  f, ! . . . . - ' I »•' — 1:- "
■f. Within five'(5)'Uu'sih;esYday's"of receipl'of'a'writtefrrcquesl'fro'm Coyere'd E

-, 8y siness, Associate' shall mak'e avaijabie duiino' oprmai business hours at ,iis oWices.alf
'  *-* recdrbs, bcokSr aQre'emphis. "poHcle.s and prodedurej'fejatrn'o'to.the^use.an'd disclosure

■ of P.HI to the. Covered Entity, for'purpOses of'enabiing:Covered Entity to deterrriine
• Business'Aasociate's'cbmplia.hce with Jhe^ternis'.df.t^iAgreel^ .

;a

l« ■<:

-  g. ^yy^lhih;ten•(1.0)^Jousirie9S days^X.recelvin^ r^uesl/rom^Covefed Entity.
'v ■Busjhess Awo^iate shall pr^^^ to.^Hl in b C)esignaiet'y^ecpi^.,^et to the'- --

/. Eniiyi-oras^directed'by Cpyered Eptjty', io anjnd^ '•
CbfluiremenisyhderA'^'CFR^S^^^ .i- " %. '

k-i 4 •

hV,, -^tWn ten '(1p) busjness days ofVeceiyjng a wrinen r^uest/r.onn'CoveredEn^^ g
?(: . amervilment-of.pHI or BVrecord aboyijn individual cpnla

'Sej/jhe'B.usiness^.A^^ shall make-.such PHI.available to^Gpvere for ■
;arnendmenijni incorporate arty such amendi^fino.enaWe Covered'Entity to fulfill iis.
pyi9aiions*unSe>4$ i:;f:B 'Se,cijonil64;^^^ ' ,

■  PI ^Business Associate shairdpcurneriTsuch disclosures of t, .
I  ■, . such disclosy/es.8_9^wpuldbe;required for Covered Entity to responp^' ,
■  1ndlvidual.for;an^accountingof^dlsclosure^df PHIiri accordance.vvlth45.CFRj.Section •

,  " 16^528;
^  .. ?• ■

■*' c^thlnjehxTd) bjJsinesY^^ys-df.rc^^^^
fp|r>n accp.uriling ojdiscjbsyres.p^

-i . .. ■% ■ . ,[tp.'C'bydred;E"nli(y 8uchJnf6'r'rnaiidri'as;Cdyered i«i-kv/?
;  jtd.proyid'^ an aptbynjing oj.d.iscl^^ wlih respfecl-ibPHI in^accbrdan^^^

,  'Section 16^1.52iBi . .[ ■ ■i''

"r V t

1

(ky , 1n the,€yent;any;lhdividu^ requests accesVio. ame^ndrheni 6^/^ accdyhtlng of PHI-
direcilyJrom:the3ysjnes5[Associate.Nh"e^6ysi'ness'A«bciate,shall

•busin.ess,daVVfpr\y'^rb^ request,to,Cpyefed^ .Gpvefed 'En'(ity.:S.hQll, have the ...
resppn;5ib'iiity''bf.responding ioloiWarded.requesis*!';,However, if fowarding the

.  .■in'drviduar'e.requysrtoGpveiedEriiity'i^bu £nt'iy or Ih'e.Busirtess^
Ass6clate;ioylolbid!HipM and the Privacy arid.Security,Rule. ihe'Suslness Assdclale,
stiall Ins'tead respohdjto;tlie-indiyiduars requesras required ,by such' law.aiid notify ..
Coyered'Eniityorsych resppnse'es soofi as practicable.- .• - «

1,-5. With'intei) (-10) .businessdays-bfierminationdf.-th^^^^^ any'reasqn; the ■
..^BysinessAesocjaieshblj return .or,destroy ..'as ̂
,r'eceiy€dff6'm.''or{Cfeate1j p/.receivje'd bythc'8ysthe.s's.-A jhej
Agreerh"ehl.-;ahd-.sh*a!inol retain any cdqieslpr b8.(^;-up. tapes of'e'uch PH.'- If.returh.or' |

.deslnjctioh is ndl'feasible, or the drspbsiiioh.df .lh'e-P^I has beeri othefwise agreed l6..ln.i
"  the Agreerhent,-Business'A'ssbciate'%h"all c'onlihue to" exie'nd.lheprpieciidns.df the ...

AgreerneriT.-ib 'sVcb'PHljand limit;fuW^ disclosures of. such PHI to tlfwep*,'.
pyroses Ih'atT^akif.lhe^?^^^ or.desirucUon^ .long as Business

.:3/20.t4' •? i" ...... . | •■CbnifBclot Irtlloli^^^-^ -
IfUkifincBjPW^

.<'1.

C'."-' Paie -
;5/i9/202i

'

.

s
•  .-^v, - ' ' • . ' '

•  t*'. . jN . ' * *r»\
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74-
f.'

OoMSfonVr^'ki^jO; 2C9p222448E3-470A.eFeF->084e32eeMA;

.Now Hampshjrp^^^^ and Human'SOTvlCM-

6*hl6it' I

fft': ri. 'p-v

' jAssociate.maihlains.s If Covered EnUiy,'in;its solieJ'discrejipn'. f^uires !h^ the
"Businesisifl^ssdciate deslroyv.ahyipf'alLPM'.^l'?® Bjisiness Asstfcjat^^
■Covered Enlity'lhal the PHft ;

•X-Z''.

V  •'

b.

i.e.

A;

-  I'.i

. . ii;.:

i(4) ObilQatlons of Covered'Entity-

a. -.Covered Enli^ sh'all notify B.Ci'sine'ss Associate of'apy cH'anges or limit,aiiori(s) injts
^Notice of Privacy.Practic'es pr.oyidedjo'lndWidu'als ihaccordanc'e.with 45'CFR-Seclipn

•;!! it.W.A?©".. lp;the"e*terii thatsych^change. Or l|rnitalibn'may,a/fe^t;B
-.5-^ use prdiscjpsyre of_PHI.

•Covered Entity 6H;ali prompUV-nptliy Business Aes'odiale-pf ̂ any^cher^ges 'jn'^or reyScaUon
o.f.pefmi,s7sibri provided loi.Coyere'd Eniiiy by.individuals, whose PHI may be.used or r.-,.
disclOsed"by,B'usih.esXAssociate,under-this^-A^ pursuant tp'45 CfR Swtibn:
,164;5b6;ori45CM:Se"dtioO "

»• •'"^ • <
Govjare'd entfly shali,prbmptly,notify Buiiness.Asspciaye ot^any 'restriclipris Jn lh;e\^use or'
■discJosbre of Covered Enliiy .has agreed;lb lh accordance with 45'C,FR*1^W.522.

.  tplhe-exleni tKpt such" restriction may affect Business Associate',s use or bi'sclosurepf •
'"'J; - PHU ^ ■ ____
;'(5) Je "rmi n at 16 njfo f Causer *

ln'addili6h"ta,P3ragraphJ0o|thesla'ridardterrns'andcphdiltdhb'{P-i37)'^^ ,
■ Agre'emeht the C Entity- may irnmedlalely 'lerminaie the Covered

Entity's knowledge pf a'breach by Business; Assocl'a'te bf t^ ''i
,  . '^gre^nj .sjiffpjftifhOreln al.ExHlb,lty.;TI>b.Cbv^e"d,EnW^

teVmfn3jelhe''A9reernenl'9r pfpyde"8.n"bppbi;lunity.for.B'usine« '
bjlegeid bXeabh'Wiihih a tirn.efrarne;spedfieb by 'C^ / " •
d'eibfrhlnes'.tha.t,ne^tiier'terminatipn.pbr,ojre is;feaiib|e! CpyeredE^^^ report.the;

-  vlblalibn tbtheBjacretary'., " '

w -

Ji

k!-"

3V

j6) MiscellBheoUs

:a.

!•

'A

"Pefirii'liQns'ar^ Reoulatorv References! Airterrfis used.^b'ul nbroiheowi5e,6'e^
■sHall.hayc thb same'meanjng •a>'|.bose;ierms ln'ihe:Rnyacy and, Secu^ ly.Ruie/.^
ifp'm timejolimp? 5^ refefenWjn as'amendedjo Iriclude.lhis Exhibitl.'tb
'i Section In'tfie Rriy^^ Rule means t'he.^Secll.on'as in eWect-br as; •
•ahrrerided. . .. ..

Amendment., Covered,Entity and Busin'e'ss'Associaie.'0g"re,.e'.to take such actipn;p,s;ls ""
■'nBcessaiy.lb'bmehd-the*A9reernerit-, .ff6[T)time;totlrne.ys^is;necess^
;Enyty tb'cpm;Dly.wilK;thB-changeS ' ^
.Seburity Rure/and app1icabi0'federal;an& slate law

c. bata'dwnershi'p:. The'^iisihess Associate .a'lAnowledgp^ it'fha.s no ownership rights-.-
"j- .wiih'ifespecllbtherPHi.^prpyidedbyoi;,crea,ied;p'n;behaIfof.G.^^^

;d. 'Ihlerbreiaiioff:^' Th'e 9arties:agre'e;th'al any^ amblguity m ihe:Agree^^ 'pp<%e,cj,_.
■  "ib^permii Gbvered'Entilyj67cbmpfy wilh HIPAA.'^therPflvacy an'd_.Securily^f?.ule; :

CohVedbf r~rzi——ExNtrfll.3r20r«

'C

'Hc"i"ur> tnjuf«nc« Port
OuilnetfAtit^sia Agrceny|,rij ■..^yVWiOh.'

.<i Qala.'

.  »v-'

'('t-X

* ' ^•C4t
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AX ,

,'^OoQji^n gfWeiope ID": 2C9b2224-a86j;47dA-»FflF;-AOe4M?eB9flA,
'  '-./W - • • .

•N>w ̂ ampsh]^e~i^p^^ of Heaith;;e,nd Human Services;

'■i" Exhibit I

'.ft?

' i:'

'ic: 'SeolreQalior)., If any term'.pr cpndilionjOf lWs Exhibill or the appjicatipn'thereof (q any.

cohdilio'ns which can be^iveh effect withouijhe i'nya^d (errn'pr condition: b.this.e^^^
iefms and conditions of lhis;Exhibit rareifeclarjkl.scyefable.; '

'  "Ai ■ ' ' • •

j.' -^Sufvival. Provisibns'in th[s Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or.
:• ' ■ • destruction of PHj. dxlensions of the protections ofjhe^^g'reenriieht in section (3)1..'

defense ahd/indernnifjcation prbyisionsrof.sectiphT(3).'e and Paragraph ,13.qf;l|3e'

*  )' .i

iN^yiT^ESS t^EREOE; the partie's^hefetphaye duly exe.cut'ed lhis:E,xhiblt 1..^.
'  t VI V'

Oeoartmeril.bf Hcallhfen^ AscentHa Comnunfxy services•
",»^iaUb>p: ^iBftaUije;c;phtfacior

^  ■^Signature'bfiAuthorized Represenl^^^^^ |Sig'nalfure;^fXuthprized'Representaliye".

Si-I

-Anri. H.. jN. Lahdry [Jeffrey xinney

•v-.h b.f Xuthprized;fi?epf^^ 'Name of Authorized Representa
•••'• •'Acenr.i>rit rivn™S ccHftrtPr .'r ' '•'Associate cocnissioner ^

J... :• 'Chi ef ;df .-Staff External fteVatlons
'Ti.fie.df Ayl^P"z?d;Repfe5e^^^^ ' ^Tiile of Authorized RepreseritaUv^

-3 .rS/fUiOn -.J . ' ' . >5/l9%a' ' , .
>3"'' '4: 1-'— ■ ' —' —

-Dale-:- ^  ..• Date r?,j

m

f'.
' V,' ' . "A-

it

l-i

, if

'j

1';

'372014

1?-

/ iHeetlh'lntwinM RbrtrtWiy'Act
. eusiriessAsiodwe^Ag'eemerit

■ P^e,8;ol.fi"'-
.  , - . " .. • *■"

J-,'.'.
!? '•

.\v i./—rbi'

..[ConuVclorilnl'lix'is
-.Jt

5/-i9/2021
■ Oate'^."'

. cT.iii-'

1=; • -.V' -y
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a:

;^u^nEn^lopc'lp:.3C9p2224-^3:470A-«F^-M>64832U

I*

'' Now'HampshIro D«paf1m6nt of HoaHh and Human Sorvlcoa
ExhIbilJ

ii.

)S

Yx

-CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILftY AND TRANSPARENCY
-. ' ACT (FFATAt COMPLIANCE ' .t. '

" TKi Federal Funding^Accounlability and TransparencyXct (FFATA) requires prime ewardees.of.individual.
FedefBl greriis^yaj iqpr greater ihen 125,000 end ̂ arded^ October J. 2010; l6 report,.on -* '
data related to executive compensation and associated firsl^tler su^rants of $25,000 or rrtoreV If the

.  initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent graril.rnbdifications.result In "a total award equal to or over
$25,000. tAc'^award Is subject to ibe'.iFFATA'fepoitjrigVequirem'ehts. as of the date of the award.'
'In.eccordsnce with 2'CFR Pen 170 (Rep<^trig Su&award end.Executlve Compensation inlormatlon), the

. Oeparimont of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report (ho foDpwInp inforrhaliph for eny. ^
subaward Of contract award'subjeclto lhe FFATA reporting requirements; -x
1. Name of.cniity-' " ' ." ' , ,
2.- Arnourii o.raw^d
3. Funding agency ^
4. NAlCScodeypr contrBCls/.CFpAprogrBm.nurhber'fpr grants;
5. Progmrn source -
6. - Avrard.Htle descriptive, of the purpose, of .the;funding action

- 7. Location of thaentlty i-: ,
' '8. Principle plac^of performance %
V  '9.

v;

Principle place of performance
IJrilque'WfihtifieroflheB.ritfty(pUNSfl).. , .

:10."Tol^ compensation end names of (lie lop five.executiWs If;
10.1.''More than 60% of annual grdss revenues ere frorri (he F^eral government, ̂d.those

•  revenues are gfeateMhan $25Mi8nnualiy 8^^^ - '
10.2. C^mpensaiion ir^orrnalion is .ndt'alreadyayallabtc through reporting to the SEC.-' .

j.Prime grant.redj^ents must submit'FFATA required'dala by the end of the'month,'plus-30 days.jri'which •
theawardw^ewardemendmentisfnede!. ; ' ,
the'Cpntfacior Identified in;Swlidn 1 ;3'of the General Prp\Hsibns.egrces-io.c6m^^ the prpvisipris of .•
The Federal Funding A'ccountabiiily and Transparwcy Act. Public Law 109-282 and Put>lic Law ̂11 b-252r
0nd.2 CFR .Part 170 {Reporting Subawa'rd and.Gxccutive Cornpens'atioriJrSformatiqn). arid (urth.dr'agrees
to'have the Coriiraclor's represcnlaUve. as ideniined ln Sections.i.ll]ari& I.i2p! the^GenerarPrpvisions.;
execute lhefolldsMng Certificaiipri: " " " . I_ .. • ««
The bei^narned Cprit/actoragreesJo p/pvrde.needdd irifprmalion aspulliric , -r
Department of Health and Kurnan'Services end to comply .with allapi^icable pfONnsl.dns qf.the' Federal

'Finar>cialAccount8t^lily"'end.Tr0fisparchc'y'Acl. • ' ' " '
^  u" . • ■ ■

.J.'ti!

'7/' i--.

5/19/2021

Date
v.!

Lp,^lf®ctqr Name:' --

r >♦

Name:

•Title:

I'trfeV Kinney.

Chief "of Staff & External -ReVatibris

.-X:.

n.

■ h .

a:

I'A 'cuxxwviVoj'o

,  ''ittii-V' .
• -v

irv

ft* is?:-';

•,6it>ibSJ"-pertK(c«ii6on«9Bf(lif\{|ihoFtdefsJ Funding. •'Cofttt*aof iftlUah^— ■ .u „
AttounttWi/AndJroMQSfoncyAel.tFFATA^ 5/19/2021'... j- 2 ""

.:DiitO

-.V'tf

Ik. t>'
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VrV, i't -vi

:>

OOCUSI^ Envttope (O: 2C«b2»4-M£3-<7bA>8F6^-A0«4»U8B9«A\.

New Hampshiro Ocpertment of Health and Human Services
'  ExhlbllJ vi-ri

FORMA.
i";:

As the Contiaciof identinadlhSeclipn'l.rol the General Pfovisicws; l certify that the res^nses to the
^lowtiste;d questions pre irxje and accurate.

.  .96S67S664 '•
■V Th«nilNShum^rfQfvotjrentitv'i&: . • ' ■

2.- Ih'ydur business ororganizBlibn's precedihfl completed fiscal yeer.. did your business 6f*:orgar!l2ailon
'  receive (1) 80 percent or more of.your annual gross reyenuBin U.S. federel contracts, subcoinlracls.

loar)8. grants', aub-grants.'ohd/or cooperative agreements: and (2) 825.000.000 or more jn annual
gross revenues from U.S.■federal coniracls. subcontracts, loans, grante. subgranls.' end/or
cooperative agreemenis? '?• »•

'Ti

fi ;. :NOj .-.ves ■. -

jt thD^nsWeMofi'2'above is ^0,.siop here

.jf ihe.enswe/ to F2 abpyejs YES. please answer }he foaowlng: >:i

3.. Odes the'public have access to information about the oompensation of the eiecutives in your ^
business or organiialion through periodic reports fi led under.sectkJh .i3(a),or 15(d) of the^Sccurilies
Exchange Act of 193.4 (l5.U,S.C.78m(a),'78p(d)j orpccHon 6ip4W.l.he Infernal Revenue Code.pl .
1986?'

•NO jYES

Vfjhe'answer t6,P3 above ts YES.^ipp,here ■

'  inhe answer lo 'd3 above is'NO. pfeasaanswer thefbllowihgT
"  • . v.: * • '*f

A. 'The names arid'compensailon'pUhe five.most hig^ly.cofnpcnsaied officers in your busine^ or
org^.iralion erp.as.fptto^f ' ' i-i -a

r.-'.

Name; .Amount:.; ^
ii

XI _

4.

Name:,j.

Narne;

Narrie: _

Narhe:

Amount:.

AmounL _

Ampurtt:, _

AmounL" •_

'L' V.

K-

:Z y

.CUOi^iiOtO

fc. ...

■  EiAW J - CprtiAes^ rteoftfya fundinti Conimdorjralleli;Aao«nubiiayAftC,Trdnjp®f#neyAct(FFATA)C6fflpfi#nM " , 5/19/2021
Oitt-lL

•*
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.  '"■! ■■■■ " ' . ...
V' 5; . r'- • •

■.'! •..*• •*

0!XwSlonEmclap«n:2C9D222«-6^^70A-6FV:A(^e3Zee9M
•  - f-S'. -

1- V'. ' New Hampshire Oepariment of Health'^nd Human Services
... . - Exhibit K

'OHHS Information .Security Requirements

f".

- .v-
•i5

. c.'.

-T-;'

41 ■

V'Vc Si

V.

A. pe^nUibns

' The following ierm's may be renecte'd and have (he described meaning in iKis dp^ment:

-• V *Bfcacn* . means 'the. loss of xonlrot, compromise, oneulho^zed idisclosure. .
n; unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized! access, or any similar .term referring to

siiuallohs Iwhere persons other; ihah authorized users-, and for an other than
euthoriied purpose have, access or potential access to personally identi/lat:)te
'information, whether ■ physical or ejeclronic. With regard to'Protected Heailh 1-,,

.  Information.'" 3reach" shall have the sarne rneaning as the term "Breach'iin section
'164.^2 of titfe45..CodeofFederaiiR^ '

2.- ^'Computer Secudjy Incideriir^ shall have the san>e meaning *C^puier (Security,
Incident' In secjipri tvm (2)'bf NIST Publication 80I>-61, Compyter'Swurify Incident "•
Marbling'Guide^ National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Depaiiment
bl Commerce.

■3.' "Confideihiiat infc^rnatioh" ;br "Cbnndehtlal Data' rheans. ail confideniial Informalioh
•disclosed by .one party lb the other 'such, as all-rhedlcal. health,, financial, (public"*
/'assistance benefits and'pefspha.l informalioh including withbullimilalibh. Sub'slance^

,  Abuse Treaiment''RecofdSi Case! Records; Protected Health Infofrrtatlbn and'
Persbnaity.ldehiifiablelnformalion . . .

.  ' " ■■ . • •'
Cbhfidential((r{forimatibn'also Includes any and all.informailbri cvvnedTor m^^^ .,

ithe Stale of NH- crealed. received frorn or,on behalf of the Deparlftieni of Heallh"'ano .
'"'M . ' . Human\Seryices (DHHS)'.or accessed in the course .of. perfprrning*.contracted-

fseMces-^of N^ich.collection. disctpsufe.-p.rp1ecijon. and disposition,is goveroed(b'y'
^  I'state'o'r/ederal law or regulation.(This informaiion Includes, but -is npj limited to

.  ' .iProteclbdl Health .Informailbn'.fPHlj.v Personarinformation. (PI), Persona) Financial .
'Informatipn (PFI)., Federal, Tax Information-(fTI). .Social Securiiy Nurnbers (SSN);
'Pay.merit Card incjuslry (PCi);m^,or:olher.s€nslifve:and confidential information. '

•  4. ("End, User'means any ̂ person or entity^^le.g.; contractor,"'00111130101'$ employee," ^ v' M
'business, associate, subcontractor! 'Olhei .downstream'user, etc.) that re'cVtves .•/
DHHS data or derivative data.In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

-JC. . i I. • ■ ■ s r:\
5;. '"HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Rprtabilliy and Accountability Act o.f .1996 and the
•"^^regulations promulgaied.lhereunder.

.•ji

6. '"incident* means an}act (hat poienliaijy yTpjajes an'explicit or IrnpTied secuhty pplicy,
'whk:h includes, anempts'feither failed or;$uccessful) to gain uriaythorlzed access to a
isystem or ils dati; unwanted dlsrupiion,of,;denlal of service, the unauthorized use of
a sysjern.fpr (he processing or storage of data: er^ changes to.system hardware,-
•firmware, pr sofhvare cKaracterislics wnihoul the owner's knowledge, ihstryclion. 'or ,
cpns'erii. incjdents include the loss of-.d3ta [brough tj^e^ft or device rnispiacemept, loss

.} loVmisplacement'V harbcopy docum^ts.-and.misrputing^ physicaj'pr electronicv

.r.'

o. . .A-v. V"•*•' V5. LOil up4«l»'lQ/0tf«6 .. 'EiNbil K, ' Cortmelftf tr^lnli^- ■
" DKHS lAJormiUon • 4./

=•' ' SkurtlyR*qUfom«nU . . S/19/2021 •
•  . ■ P«00,lol«: , Oat* " -•
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In <?>-;

•r.O
v.- >1' 'iTr:

r  . I

w

V.i;

ii

;• .r^BW kampistiire Department of Health,and l^iman'jServlcGS
"Exhibit K r.

pHHS Ihiorm^tipri'Securi
)ri»

vV

ff. *5.

■y-:

f/-

,mail. aii .of which may have the-potehtial ,l6 put the.'.data at.i'risk pj ^riautbdnzed
•• .access^ose; djstlp'sure, mpdificaticm or-'d^^^ c-'.'

n  .7; "Open'-Wlreless" Networli' means anynetwork or seo'meht bt a n.etwork JhaHs
.not desioriaied by'thej."Siale of!New Hampshire's .Department of Infohnaiibn
'^Te'chnolc^y' or 'deJegaW^ -a"proiected "network" (designed, .tested, and

5  .approved, by means'df'lhe'*Sia'te..to irehsmU win b.e .cdnsidered an opennetwork;a.nd.hdt'ed^^ secufe^fo.f'th>-tra.hsmissiori'qf unood/ypled PI..PFI,_
PHI or'<»j;inden^ " * v* " n'„:

.'8. "persbnallnformation" (or 'Pr) means"ih^prmati.on which can be. used to distir^uish.
' br en indlviduars'identity^such,as .their nam'e. spdlal security number, persona)

irifdrftf/tion.'ds -defined, in New^ Hampshire RSA 359.C:19,. .bi6metric\rec6rds; etcV.r
ato'he. or'vmeh cohibined .with other personal.or kJentifying infofmalioh which is.lioked

■ b71irik8ble Id'd sb'ecific7n'diyjdu3C sych'a^ maidb.h
oame.Jefc'; ' " * ,

9  "Priyacy Rul^"^hili;mean i'he Siahdards for privacy of Irtd'ividualiy IderitTfiabie Health
&Ofmalion'at45 C;F:R.iPails 160andj64.>"romulgated: .und.er HIP^' by the Unil.ed
-States Departmentiqfi^ andMumarV'Sewces-.

■iq.;'Protecled-^H0iith rnforinilioh" :(6r 'Pgl'Ihas-the same.meaning as provided in the:;,
'  defihit'iomof^Pfblectea Health Infofmalibri" inJheRlRM;Pr.iyacy,Rule;ai-.45,C.F.R:..§!

■160.^03. S ^

lV':Secahiy^RuleV shail\ the'r^uhtyS;anda|dS for-ahe. Proieclipa
Proiecled. H.eaHh- Informalion ai .45^ .C.F.R. 'Part '16.^. Subpart/G, and amendrnen^s ^
•thereto^' ' i; . ' va

^  .'12- "Unsecured Protec)"ed^^^ tnlormation' means Protected Health ihipcmation ihat.fc;
'  .npiV^iecCrred' by lhat;fei^ers^;Prbtected .HeaUhf .informationi^unusbbl.e,{.-unr.ead^ Ihdecipherabie., ^bi.uriauiKorized Indiyidu.dls.-and is

-  rdeveiqp.^,,6; .ertd^ (Standards d'evelbp^ that is accri^i.t'ed .by/

I.., RESPONSIBlj-mES OFiDHHS.AND THE COkTRACTOR- K
. * . ... i ,

'  A. -Buslh'ess Use arid disclosu,rb".of ConfidenHal.lhform^lipn.

•1. Th'e Cbhlraclbr' fnusV hot/.use, djsclqse'. .majhtaimor; transmit Confidehtial Infofmatibn
except 'as reasdhdbly'necessary;as p^ Contract: Further.•Cohlfactqr.
Including .but hot iimlted to;,ali'lts direclbrs.-- officers,, emplqyees andjagenis., must .qot.
use.dlsclosejmaintain,oWiiahsmil^^^^^^ (n any manner that ^uld constitute a ylqlation;
ipf ihe'Rrivacyarid Security gule; * /: ..

<'2-. 'jhe, iCpfiiraclop inu'sy 'h^ a.hy'ebnfidentia]'.[nformajipn in'response,to a,
'  ̂'011

C#.
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•  ' 'PipftioIXt

li Co'nlrs^o/1 rVti&ts'

..s/l?/262i.
Oflto'-



, Docusign Envelope ID: 38A2770F-F2F9-4585r-B6D5.CCB799E72Ab8 'f ;? V"" --

^
••1

t.' ki

 'k;' "
•  k >:■ i!';'
- -f •■

■T'. ■ ' ■
•>;; ' 'Hi- r^. aV'

hj cUi

ir 'V- ,  . • • ■ '.♦! i.
jtf^SiQft i'nveiopi rt): 2C«D2.«'4.ME3^7bA^6F-AO«*452BB«A
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^  ' ''W ^xhibitX-v =■ ■• ** - y

s  .; pHHS'lnyor.mat}pn Secu% ' r^/'-

.

v."-

i':

■»v' .

-  'f^uesl for dtscldsure: on the.^^basisJhatjibjs repuired .by' in response lo.e
.■subix>ena* etCM-vj^tbdut firsl noillyipg DHHS^sp'jhat p'HI^^'has an opportynily Id
.cdnsenl or dbjeclValhe'disctosuce. ' , " ' ' .

[i. Jf DHHS rwtincs' ih'e Cdniraclor.thal DHHS 'has/agreed "io beNbp.und by ^additional
■r. 'Vestriclions-.pver and.above Ihos'e- uses' or djscipsuVps or isecurity safeguards of pHI:

6'. 'pursuanhto'the .pnvacy .and .Sec'ujity'filule/the/Cphlrapt mysl be bpuixJ by -syclr
/^clitipnal .feslnctions/end rniisl npl disclose PHi' In yioialipn of Buch"''addilipnal :
re#)clions:and.musr/abidyby:^ saf^uarps.-

Td. The, Gdni'rectdr dgrees that DHl^^S^'Data pT deriyatiye'there from discjpsed to an End
User must-6%'be usied.pu^uaiii to th'e lerrrTs of this Cwlraci.
The.Cprifrecfor 'agrees DHHS batadbtained under ihis/Qontracrmay nofb^ (or

- • 'any other pyrjw^s that are hot.indicated in Ihis.Cbnlract.
•6'; "The eon'tractdf. agrees'to grar^ a'ccess-ld'theTdata lo./lhe authorized repre.sentaitves

^pf DHHS for the'purpose orihspecting to cdnfirm^ cpfnpliance^wi.lh t.he terms of IhlS'
jiConiract,

n. 'MET.HbpspF SE'C^^ DATA
■1... Applicatib.o Enciypiiof):, If "End pser.;, is iVansmluln'a.. pHHS-/ v.aaia ^donialrtinQ

./CohfidBhtial. Da'iaVbehveen;epp)jcatipns..the;.Conjrac(or'8lie^ the a'pplicatidns.have
" ^ beeh'-'evaluated, ^.by./ expert' kno's^'edgealjl.e "in ;.cyb^^ a.nd that;isaid ,:i

appiicatipn's ehc^ptiph capapliVies/ensure.sec^^^ . ti
'2.. :Cpmpyte7/l^sXS;>n^ Portable Storage-Devices. End tJser may hot usc.corftpuler.dis^^^

drVpoltable.'stora'geVdeyi.ces". s.uch-as^a lhumb;dnye: as a rj^ethbd oUrahsfnlHing" DHHS,
'dala: " . ^ •

"" *3: iEncrypted Email.-Ehd' Usfer mayVnlyf'em"ploy. ,ernail tp; irapsmii bo.nfi'deniial.
emair Is/ encnmte^d' and being-sent .to 'ahd,.6eing, rece^ bV .-.email addr.ess'es of
fperspn5;aulhorized,.tp/epeivBjsych ihfp^ ^ ' 5:,

-a: ^Ericrypl^d VVeb'^SIIe.fif .Erid-Usefjs, empjoyinQ; :ihe' Web to::transmii; Corifidehiial ^
/Data. 'the secure-^ockel layers-'(SSL) mus|.l?e--M5ed\and
iSpcu/e. :SSL,'e.ncrypis:data traris'mitled.vl^^^^^

.5. ■FiYc~Hpsii.r>9 Services.-also known as File Sharing Sitel-EndUser"m'ay.npj use
• hqsOng sen/lceS. such as 'Dropbpx ■.or, bppglP Cloud Storage. 4° transmit

-CbM^'^Dr'al.Daia.. • '
:,6. .'Ground'MailSettee. Ehd tJser.may.onlylrahsmil Cbhndeniial.baYa vja:^^

_ mail wiffiiri-"the w and.wSen*aenl^to.a hampd individual..
,7, /Laptops :and''PDA/. i; End .User is .erhployihg\.p"ortabie devices, ip, transmit

bdhndenlial Data said d'eyi.ce,s/n)us.l//b8 ehd^pled arid pwsvvprd-protecied
'Op.eh,Wireless; NetWp^^ ■End'yser:(fia.y,rK)l iransiftjt

—w

■■ ■-
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.New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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pHHS Information Security Requirements

i-i " ?■'>*"

.V

,1' r; r:

' wireless netviork. End User must employ'8'virtual private'neiwork (VPN) when
remotely transmlllif^g via ao.op.en wireless, netwprk.

.0; vRemole, User'^mrnunlcatio_n. If End User iVemployirig remjDte iccmmunicailion to
access or iransmli Conffdentfai Data, a'^'irtual private network, (VPN)'mu.sf be
Installed on the End User's.mobile'device^ or laptop from ^Jch ihforrnatlon vyiJI be

■  transmitted br'accesscd.- . " '''

-id SSH File Transfer-Proiocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File. Transfer Pro'tocol.jJf
•• End-User Is employing-Tan SFTP to •transmit iCpnndeniiai. Data; End User will

sifuclure the; Folder and access; privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
inforrneitiori., SFTP fbldefs..and suthfolders used for irarismirting C^nfideritial Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion.cycle (i.e..Conndeniial Data will.be. deleted every 24
hours).' - >. ..

'il. Wireless Devices. If Er>d UserJs lfansmltlir>g'Cpnfidential Data via .wireless devices, all
dala must be erKrypted.to prevent inappropriaie'disctosure of-information.

nr. RETENTION.ANb DlSPOSITiON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS
*^"i

The Contractor will.o'nly mtairi.the.'data and any.denvative of the data for.the duration of this;
CoriiVacl. After" such tirhe, Ihe' Cohtraclor will have 30 days lo'destroy Ihe data .and'ariyj
derivative In whatever., form li..may lexist, uriless. Otherwise-.required^by law or permitted'
under this Cohtract.'To this end'the parties must:

"-'■.A. Retenilon - >5 n.

.1.' j.The Coiilracidr 'agrees-'it will hot store." trarisfer or process data collected in
' connection' with ilhe service's .rendered under this Cbhlracl oulside" of ;lhe' United"
Stales. This physicaljocatioh Vequirement shall .also apply in the implemenlation of

' cloud corriputihg'. cloud seryicelor cloud'islprage" capabilities, and includes backup
data and Oisasier.Recovery locations.

The.'Contractbr agrees to erisure proper ;secLrrily 'moniloririg capabilities .are .in;
place to delect poieriiial securliy events that; can impact State of NH:Systefhs,
and/or Department confidential InfofmaiioriVpf contractor provided systems.
The .Contractor agreesMo .provide security awareness and education for-its End
Users In'suppon of protecliing pepaftmeni confideniial.informalion.

The Coniractor agrees to retain.all e.ieclronic.and hard copies of Confidential'Dala'
In a'secure.locaiion andldenliiied it> section iy.A.2 ' ' ' ^
.The Coniractor agrees. Cohfideniial i?ala stored in' .a Cloud must be in. a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant splutton and cpmply.with all applicable statutes and,-
regulatioris regarding the privacy.and SMurity.. -Aii servers and devices rnysl'have
currejMly-suppprted and hardened., operating systems, the lajesi anh-vjral. ;a.rit]-
hacker, anTi-spam. ariii-spyware. and a.nlj-rnaivyare u1ilities:^The.e,nyj a

..."

2.

3.

!fl

5.

'f; i'.
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Exhibit K

DHHSIInformatron Security Require^

I,,*!

■  -A- , ,

itv .r n. . ^ *•' .
v^ole.-niusVhave iagyessive'ihirusion-kJetec firewall prbtectiort;,

:6., 'The 'CbnlracTor. ^rees -lo-aiSd ensuf.es^ Its cornpieie coopcfaiijwTwtK.ihe Siaie'S'
'GhlefJofprmaUon Officer inahe'riciecUbn of 8'r»y.secufiiy.vu!oe,fabiiit)j.of ihe hosiioj

•  '••• -v.
■' .•>, rrs

iB. DiSMSilioh;." . li)

-'1.. ' If the.!Contfictbr\wi!i:,m^^ C.bnficf€>iia'l Inforrnation bn..ils syste'ms' fw" ili
•  subiconiracipf systems^ the Goniractol' 'v^ii main documented process for

securely, disposing 67 "s_uch,dat3 .'upon 'reguest .or cOhtrabt termination; and wiU.
. obtain-.written certiriceti^7dr any:Staleiqr N6w"'Ham data .destroyed by the'

.v Gonlractor oi any subcdnlraclors as a pad of ongoing. emergency;-3hd Of disaster'
recdveiy opera7iof^sAw^^ ronger-'in use, electronic media co'ntaihihg State of
New HlampsJiire datVs^ be rendered unrecoyeratilD via a secure vvipe'pr^farh'

OCcordan^e .wihjndustry'-acce^ for-.secure deletion and media"
sanhizatibn^ ^'or othe'rvnsp'; physically", deslroyin ,lhe media (for ^ example..

:d.0ga'usslr|g^--as described in NiSf Special Rublic'ali.b.n 800 88. iRev.l. Guidelines;^
for Media Sanitizaiidn. 'Naltonal .Ihstllule •of .-Stahdards and' Technology. 0. .3..,"

■=pep~adment 6f-Com'meVce:7he.Gont'ract6r'Wiirdocumerit and.certify inciting at"
r, ilme^rthp dala.destructior^.iand wiirp>*ovjde>'wflttencertificatlo'n lo.tha.pepartm'dn^

upon >rcquestr The-written certification •will-7nclude. all ^details' .nedessaiy-: to
.. .demonstrate data has.beertpfpp'erly' deslrbyed.'and validaleid. Where applicable;^

■ V-' fj^ulalbry .and,;pvofessi6nal ,st3 retention requirements be 'ipinity'
qyal.uate.d by ifie "State" and'Contractor-pr^^^^

'  .2; pniess, dlheryns'e' specified, wiihinyiihirly (30) 'Says of the. terrnination of this
'• wtraci.-.dbntfa'ciw.ggVftdytq'JJesirpyX'fN^^ .?•

i,_: . ■s'ecu'^mo.thod such'as's^^ *■
•  3. -.Unless bthecwise specified, wihig 'ifiirty (30) days of the .iermlr»aiipn of .;ihls.^

Cbntracti-iGpnti'acior'agrees to .completely destroy"'eil eleciroolc^nfidenlial .Paia-
byirneahs of data erasore.ials'oknqwh as "se"cure da^^

.V ... . V ^ . ' " ■ . -
IV. RROCEOURES FOR SECURITY ...

ij >?

■f'

is -x- y

.^"ntr.8Ctor agreesrio S'afeiguard-.the OHHS Data received 'under iKls .Cp.riiiracl. .a.nd^-.ehy
"derivative dal3 0*^ fi'ss, as fdllows:

'■■iV The'-..(^trablor''will maintair^ prbper ie'curlty coriVals'to-prptecT orepartmenl
y  contid8rillarin(diw"4ijoh .collecledj fprbcess^. managed, ajid/or^stofed in, th.e deliy.ery'

e  'It Qf!cohtract"ed;se^ices. •
' 2.. -ThO Cofttracldr-will rhalnisiri- .polici'esi^a'nd proceburjei: to: protect; beptfrtmer)!. ^

[confidential ihfofm'aliort" thrdugh"ci,ut'lh"e irif.ormalioh; lifecycle. iwhera. ja'pplicable, (from, •
... "" crealion. 'transformatiori. use; .storage arid 'secure desjruclidn) 'r^ardless of the-

.. .media uSedJdsidreThedaiaXi.e.. tape, disk; baper.elC;). -

:  ., 3. * . ■ E-
"VS-lMlupd'al# tdoa/'S' • ^

'  oHhS InlofmaOoft
kff, 5 , • • • ■ .Soj^V'RoqU^.w^.'Hi. i 5/19/20.211./
...5 *■ j'oii ■*
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iNeW Hampshire Department Of Health: and Human 4©rvices

■  ' ;v Exhibil K - ■

'  DHHS Information Security Requirements.

.'.i

[ii

2. The Cbn'tracfoY will rnalhtaln appropriate and access cohlrols to
f.L ~ rpcohlriaclor systems that collect.-iranimit, or-stdre Qepartment'cohndanlial ihfofmatidn"

^ where applicable:

the Coniractof will ensure, proper security monUorlng .capabilities are,'ih .place to^
'  'delect ^lential security events ithal can'impact State loI NH- systems and/or
' Department confidential infprmalioh (or.cpniractor provided syBlems.

•r

i5.. The Contractor- will provide regular- security avrarehess a'rid- education 'foY its End
Users in support of protecting Dspartmieni.cohndehljal ihformatlon.

-6. If the Contractor will be sub^contractlng any core functions of -the engagement'
suppofiing the .services for Slate of New Hampshire; the Contractor will rhaintain a
program of an Iriternal proce^ or processes jhat defines specific security •
expecialions, and.monitoring compliance tb.'secuhty requirements that at^ a mihimym.'
match those for the,Contractor. includir>g^breach notincalign.requirements;

•N-:.

•  --W-rr

■ii'

7. the GonTractor WiliWortc wjlh.lhe Department to sign and.comply with ali.epplicabte:
Staie of New. Hampshire and Oepa'rtment system.access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms; and computer-use.agreements as' partiOf
obtaining and malnialhing.access to any:Deparlrhehl system{s). Agreements wlii be>
'completed and sigried by.-lheX.onlrac.ior"and any..appiicable sub-conlracto.rs prior.lo-:
syslem.access being authorized.

8.J iTfhe bepanment detennlnes (he'ConTractor Is a'Buslness Associate pursuarii to 45
CFR •leoriOSMhe CoViracigr will execute a HIPAA- Business Associate Agreemerit
:(8AA); wiih" the pepartme and is'res^nslble .for malrUaining compliance with the
agreement.."

9, The Co"nlractof"vyill -vwrk with the pepadmeni at, its'request to complete" a System,
Management Survey. The purpose'^of the survey" .is to enable the Oepartmenl and
Cdntraddr lo'rhbnilor for any changlisNn fi^^ threats, and vulnerabilities that may-
."occuf bverilh'e life'of the Cdhlracldr e'hg'agement: The survey will be completed
annually, of an'aiiefnale lirhe frartie at the Oepanrhenis discretion with .agreement by
the Cbntraclbf, or the Department rhay request the .survey be completed .when the
"scope .of the engagement between the Peparlnient and the Conlractor\changes.

jtf. The Contractor will not store, knpvrtngiy or unknowingly. any.State of New Hamp^ire.
'or.pepartmeni'daia'.offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales unless
prior,express'written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Departfhenl. '-. „ .

""

11. Data Security Breach Liability.. In the evenj of any .security breach Cbntractor sTtaJ)
make efforts to investigate the causes, of'the,breach, prornptly lake measures to
prevent fuiurc'ibreach^and rninimize any,damage or loss resulting from .the breach,.
The'.Slate.shan recover from the Contractor atl^cpsts.of response and;recovery from

f- -

y5.;L»si updstoMorp^is
'DHHS In/ortnaVcft

Conlrsclbf Inlllals.

•  Socufltyrtwlitrnonls' y..
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New HampshiroiDepartment of-Health and Hyman Services

-  -Exhibit K ■ ^ „
OHHS InfoYniatioh Securiiy: Requirement^ -'-r

't'.

rv •

■.i'- *•' •• i'.
breath, induding but ho| ;iimljed to: credii mortioiing services, mailing cosls aixJ

^cbstV'assoclated with website and tclcpho.ne call cenier. services necessaiy due to
the breach.

•• -Ji '■1%

-  '

'IVv "f .

'i2.'ConifBCtor-must. comply,with'all applicable statutes and regulations regarding-(he
privacy and .security .pf Confidential information, and rhusi in all other, respects •;

.  -maintain the pilvacy and security of Rl and PHI at a level.and scope that is.rtot less
(han".,the level and scope of reQulrements" applicable to federal agencies. Including,
but not timited to; provisions ^of the Privacy Acl_of 1974 .(5 U.S.C. § 5,52a). DHHS
Privacy-Act' Regulations (45 C.F.R: §5b). HiPAA-Privacy and Security. RuJes (45
C.F;R: Parts 160 and '164) that govern protecliorts for individually identifiable health -
infVrnialion and as applicable under State law. .

15.^Conlraclpr agrees "to "establish and maintain apprbpriale admiriistraliye. technical, arid
. physical .safeguards to protect the corifidehiialiiy of the Confidential Data !and to
.' p'revenl unaulhorized use or access to il. Theisafeguards must pro.vide a level and

scope of security thai is not, less than Ihe'ievel and scope of security requirements
established .by the Stale of New Hampshire. Deparlmeni of Information Technology. -;Refer to-Vendor. Resourccs/Prpcore'rhehl al hllps;//wvvw.nh.gov/doil/vef^br/index.htm

the'.pepart'meni of |nfdrrhatid'n Technology [policies, guidelines, standards, and
procuremenVinform'Mion relating to yehdo"rs:.

,14. Contractor agrees to .maintain, a .docprnented breach "nolificaiion ^anci Incldehl
f^pbnse process.. theVContractor will notify, me'Stale's Pnv'aby O^wer end the.
.State's SecurityjOffjcer of any^security breach Immediately, a! the emaii^addrcsses.
provided' ln'"Seciion VI. Jhjs-includes a confidential information breach: computer

'se'cPrily iind'denl. or Suspected breach which affects or includes ar>y.State .of..New
'.Harnpshire.systems lhat-co.nnect to State of-New Hampshire network.

15! Contractor must restrict access to jihe ^nfidehlial Data'pbialned under this
Cdnlract to only those authorized,-Er)d-pse,fs who-need.such OHHS-Data to •

•  perform their-officlal duties In connection with purpo.sesidenlified in this Contract. . ..^o

16. The Gonlraclor must ensure tBat all End Us'ers:
a: comply With' such safeguards as refe'renced in Section IV A., above,

."" implemefited to protect -Conflderitial Information that.jis furnished .by DHHS .
unde.r this Contract from loss, theft'or in'adyertenl disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at,all limes.
c; erisure thatlaptops: and other'.elecironic-devlces/media containing PHI; PI, a

PFI are encrypted a.hd password-protected,^ . S"
w  ..... "d. " send .emails conlainlng ConMenlial Iriforrnation .only if ehcrvpted "and being

'senrto,and being- received^by email'addresses-of persons-'authorized to
recefye such Information.'

vvs.usiupdV# lorow)® ExTibilK- -
DHHS lnto«ri\6 (ton

,S«cu>l(y RegutrefflCAls
:p»9o7of.O

o».
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-A New HampsHire Department of Health and Hurh'an Seivices

ExhibifK

PHrtS/lnfbrmatlon Security'Re
r.;>.

'e - lihpiit disclbsur^ of ih© Cohfideniial Informalion to lh,e extent permiiled by law.-. .. . .. .. ... . I. .. ■

f. Confidential Infofmatiprf- received'.under this Conlracl and individually
Idehlinable data derived from DHHS 'Oaia. must be slojed.Jh.^n area thai Is
physically and technologically-secure'ffom access by unauthorized persons
durir^g duty hours es well as non^duty hours (e.g.. :door lodl<S. card^keys,
biorrietnc idefitlfiers. etc.).

,g. only authorized End Users nriay transmit' the' Confldehiial Data, including any
derivative Hies cdnialnlfig'personally Identifiable ..inforrn'alion, and in all cases,
suchi.data must be' encrypted at. all. times When, in'transit, at .rest, or-when
slpfed on portable media as"fequired in sectio'n IV above. v

,h. In atl,'Other instances Corifidentjal Daia must be maintained. ..used anp
disclosed using' appropriate safeguards, as determiried-by .a risk-based
assessment'bf Ihe clrcumstances involved. " i /.

'l. understand ihaf their user credcniials;(user:narne and .password) must not be,
shared with anyone. End Users wiU'keep their crederntial informalion secure!'
"This applies tp predent^ls used tp abcess ihe slte directly, orjndireclly Ihrpugh
a third party-application., .:i; , ♦-

rr.

[Contractor is responsible ,for .oyersighli and cdrn'pliance .of ►'their End iUserS; DHHS.
reserves-[the right to conduct 'onsjle inspections to monitor compliance with this

".i. ! Contract,'includir^ the privacy-arvJ[security requirements provided in hereirt. HIPAA.
-  • .and other applicable laws arid Federal reguiationsiunill such [time the. Confidential. Dat©

-is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. ?•:
V. . .:'lOSS,REP.ORTING .

^The. Contractor'must rtoiify the !^S]ale>' Privacy "Officer and Security'Officer of any.
Secufily Inciderlls and Breaches imrnedialely, ai the emajl .ad'dresses^-provided In
'Seclioh VI. -X ' .1

.  ■ - !7i ■ ■ ' . i::'

The Gontracfpr'rnusX further handle and repprt. Inc'idenls and Breaches involving PHI In
accofdartce .^thjhe lagenc/s documented incident Handling .and Breach Notification

^procedures and in'accordance wllh'.4J2 C.F;R.!§§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
.  .hotwiihslan'din'g? Contractor" compliance wth ©11 applicable obligations and procedures.

•Cpntr.actpr's procedures must alsp.address"how the ^ntractpr will;

t; WenJtifyTncidchts: ^ i,
2. ■- Determine if personally idi^htlfiafile'iriforrfiatiori,Is involved iri Incidents;

.3. Report suspected br^wnhfrned Incidents as required in.this Exhibit dr;p'37;
4. (dehiify and convene'-© core* res'pdns0~9rpup"to:determin0 the'riisk level of Incidents

and:beterminerJsk-ba5edfespo.nses!iplnddenis;and- ■ <; • V'<'

. VS. Lost update tOr68il0

r-

EXM^'K-
01HS InlorniatiOA^

iSaWrity Roqulromefltft
page9^9
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5. Dstemiine;.whether^ Brwcti'nptincaiip^ and.-^'lf s;p.

Breach noiinpalion-.methodsV timing,..souYce^^ 8^^^ cocients•frpnv.among different • ■
•,-^pplionV; end bear costs 0i^i?ted*\viih the Breach notice as well as any mitigation;

'• :measures":% .-s i.: '/• *'

inddenVs/and/p'r/Brea^^^^ thel":impicato iRLmuat t^e 'addressed, ,ar>d reported.^.'as ..
appljcable^in a'c'wrd^oceVwih NH RSA^3^9^^ . ?:■ .S:

,  , VI. < PERSONS-TO CONTACT ^
<;r. -A., DHtH&.Priya'cypffic^r;

DHHSPrjyacyQffit^"@dhhs:n^
,B.; D.HHS "Secvfliy 0
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